Democratic Service
Complete Agenda o e

CAERNARFON

Gwynedd

CYNGOR LL55 1SH
GWYNEDD

Meeting

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date and Time

1.00 pm, MONDAY, 29TH JULY, 2024

*NOTE*

This meeting will be webcast

https://gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/l/en GB/portal/home

Location

Hybrid - Siambr Hywel Dda, Council Offices, Caernarfon LL55 1SH
and Virtually via Zoom

Contact Point

Lowri Haf Evans
01286 679 878

lowrihafevans@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

(DISTRIBUTED 19/07/24)

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru



http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/
https://gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/l/en_GB/portal/home

PLANNING COMMITTEE

MEMBERSHIP (15)

Plaid Cymru (10)

Councillors
Elwyn Edwards Delyth Lloyd Griffiths
Elin Hywel Gareth Tudor Jones
Huw Wyn Jones Olaf Cai Larsen
Edgar Wyn Owen Gareth A Roberts
Huw Rowlands John Pughe

Independent (4)

Councillors
Louise Hughes Anne Lloyd-Jones
John Pughe Roberts Gruffydd Williams

Lib/Lab (1)

Councillor Gareth Coj Parry



PROCEDURE FOR SPEAKING ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS IN
THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Council has decided that third parties have the right to speak on planning applications at
the Planning Committee. This leaflet outlines the normal operational arrangements for
speaking at the committee.

1. | Report of the Planning Service on the planning application
including a recommendation.

2. | If an application has been received from a 3™ party to speak the
Chairman will invite the speaker to come forwards.

3. | Objector or a representative of the objectors to address the | 3 minutes
committee.

4. | Applicant or a representative of the applicant(s) to address the | 3 minutes
committee.

5. | Local Member(s) to address the committee 10 minutes

6. | Committee Chairman to ask for a proposer and seconder for the
planning application.

7. | The committee to discuss the planning application




5.1

5.2

5.3

AGENDA

APOLOGIES
To accept any apologies for absence.

DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST AND PROTOCOL
MATTERS

To receive any declaration of personal interest and to note protocol matters.
URGENT ITEMS

To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chairman
for consideration.

MINUTES 7-12

The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the previous meeting of this
committee, held on, 24" June 2024 be signed as a true record.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

To submit the report of the Head of Environment Department.

APPLICATION NO C24/0011/30/AM BODERNABWY, 13-36
ABERDARON, PWLLHELI, GWYNEDD, LL53 8BH

Outline application with some matters reserved (appearance, landscaping)
for the provision of 5 self-build plots for affordable dwellings

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Gareth Williams

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C24/0083/18/LL CARTREF NYRSIO 37-57
PENISARWAUN, PENISARWAUN, CAERNARFON, GWYNEDD,
LL55 3DB

Change of use from a nursing home (Use Class C2 - residential institutions)
into a serviced hostel for holiday use (Unique Use) with ancillary warden's
living accommodation (re-submission).

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Elwyn Jones

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C23/0556/19/LL LAND AT CAE STANLEY, 58-130
BONTNEWYDD, LL55 2UH


https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=34865&language=en
https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=34932&language=en

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Development of 21 residential units comprising of 6 one- bedroom flats, 12
two-bedroom flats and 3 three-bedroom houses, with associated
landscaping and vehicular access.

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Menna Trenholme

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO (C24/0331/41/LL TY'N LON, AFONWEN, 131 -147
PWLLHELI, GWYNEDD, LL53 6TX

Application for 9 additional caravans on the caravan field
LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Rhys Tudur

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C24/0289/03/LL WYNNES ARMS HOTEL, 148-174
FFORDD MANOD, MANOD, BLAENAU FFESTINIOG, GWYNEDD,
LL41 4AR

Conversion of the former Wynnes Arms from a vacant public house to five
residential apartments

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Linda Ann Jones

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C24/0436/11/LL FORMER YSGOL BABANOD 175 -202
COED MAWR, BANGOR, LL57 4TW

Proposed erection of 10 no. affordable dwellings and associated
development

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Gareth A Roberts

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C23/0618/39/LL FFERM CIM, BWLCHTOCYN, 203 -243
GWYNEDD

Full application for the demolition of three existing open market dwellings
and erection of three replacement dwellings (to be used as holiday units),
demolition of existing storage buildings, erection of 4 new build holiday
units, relocation and replacement of existing static caravan (for holiday
purposes) together with associated works and landscaping.

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor John Brynmor Hughes

Link to relevant background documents



https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=34301&language=en
https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=35152&language=en
https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=35128&language=en
https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=35259&language=en
https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=34409&language=en




Agenda Item 4.

PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 June 2024

Present: Councillor Elwyn Edwards (Chair)

Councillors: Delyth Lloyd Griffiths, Louise Hughes, Elin Hywel, Gareth T Jones, Huw Wyn Jones,
Anne Lloyd Jones, Edgar Owen, Gareth Coj Parry, John Pughe, John Pughe Roberts, Gareth
Roberts and Gruffydd Williams

Others invited - Local Member: Councillor Alan Jones Evans

Officers: Gareth Jones (Assistant Head of Planning and the Environment), Miriam Williams (Legal
Services), Rhys Cadwaladr (Senior Planning Officer - Minerals and Waste),
Iwan ap Trefor (Traffic and Projects Service Manager) and Lowri Haf Evans (Democracy Services
Officer).

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillors Cai Larsen and Huw Rowlands. Clir Linda Ann
Jones (Local Member for application 6.1)

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST AND PROTOCOL MATTERS
a) The following member declared that he was a local member in relation to the item noted:
e Councillor Alan Jones Evans (not a member of this Planning Committee) in relation to
item 5 on the agenda (application for an order under the Traffic Management Act).

3. URGENT ITEMS

As a matter of course, it was reported that since the Chair was joining the meeting virtually,
the Legal Officer would announce the results of the voting on the applications.

4.  MINUTES
The Chair accepted the minutes of the previous meeting of this committee, held on 25 May
2024, as a true record.

5. APPLICATION FOR AN ORDER UNDER THE TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ACT
Llangywer Community Ward: Llanuwchllyn and Llangywer
Proposal: Cyngor Gwynedd Order (24 hour Clearway Order) Llangywer 2023
A report was presented by the Traffic and Projects Service Manager detailing the proposal
to introduce a traffic control order on the Class Il Road - B4403 (Llangywer), in response to

complaints and concerns received by the Traffic Unit from National Park Officers and
members of Llangywer Parish Council. Concerns were expressed about the detrimental

Page 7



6.1

impact of inconsiderate parking that had led to traffic congestion, which was an annoyance
of local residents, but also hampered the response time of emergency services. The
Transportation Unit proposed to implement a clearway restriction on the road, and this
proposal was subject to consultation between March and April 2023. During the consultation
period, one objection had been received to the proposal from a member of the public.
Reference was made to the objection that noted that the order took extreme measures to
resolve the problem, together with the Council's response to the recommendations.

It was highlighted that the Local Member had also submitted views on the situation, echoing
the concerns of the National Park's officers and the local community.

It was proposed and seconded to introduce the order.

During the ensuing discussion, the following observations were made by members:
o There were severe problems in the area during the summer months
¢ Road safety must be prioritised
¢ Consideration should be given to installing relevant signs to highlight that the road must
be kept clear for emergency vehicles - in accordance with Government guidelines
o This was a local opportunity to create a parking area that would alleviate the problem

RESOLVED

To approve to submit a clearway plan on the B4403 between Llanuwchllyn and Bala
in its entirety.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Committee considered the following applications for development. Details of the
applications were expanded upon and questions were answered in relation to the plans and
policy aspects.

Application Number C23/0938/41/LL C22/0136/03/AC Manod Quarry, Llan Ffestiniog
LL41 4RF

An application under Section 73 to vary condition 2 on planning permission 5/59/500
(Extension of Slate Quarry and Realignment of Quarry Roads) so as to extend the time for
the winning and working of material to 2048 at Cwt y Bugail Quarry, Cwm Teig|, Llan
Ffestiniog

Attention was drawn to the late observations form which contained observations relating to
heritage and transport.

a) The Senior Planning Officer - Minerals and Waste noted that Cwt y Bugail Quarry was
located on the Manod Mawr ridge and comprised the quarries of
Manod, Graig Ddu and Bwich y Slater. It was reported that the quarry includes a
processing and stocking area located on a plateau (created with tipped slate waste) on
the eastern slopes of the mountain. The processing area includes cutting sheds, stocking
area, fitting sheds, staff car park, office, and welfare facilities.
For clarity, it was added that the quarry processing area, cutting sheds, workshops, staff
car park and other associated infrastructure to the east of the quarry void were not
included within planning permission 5/59/500. However, the related Section 106

Page 8



Agreement was relevant to the whole site and ensured that restoration proposals were
implemented.

It was explained that the accumulated area of the quarry works (included in the planning
application) exceeded 25ha, therefore exceed the threshold of Schedule 1 developments
under The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessments)
Regulations 2017. An Environmental Statement (ES) was submitted as part of an
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) in response to this requirement.

In the context of the principle of the development, it was noted that the current relevant
local planning policies were Strategic Minerals Policy P22 and Policy MWYN 3 in the
Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011 (LDP). Policy PS 22 stated
that the Council would contribute to the permanent demand locally and regionally for the
supply of minerals in accordance with the key objectives of sustainable development. It
was also noted that Planning Policy Wales - Edition 12 (PPW 12) incorporated Welsh
Government planning policies for minerals developments in Minerals Planning Policy
Wales (2001). In accordance with PPW 12, Cyngor Gwynedd, as the Mineral Planning
Authority had a duty to ensure that mineral resources were exploited in a sustainable
way so that they could make an appropriate contribution to the area’s construction
materials requirements. It was added that the application complied with the criteria of
Policy MWYN 3 which permitted development proposals for mineral exploration, mining
or extensions to existing operations to maintain the Plan area’s landbank of aggregates,
or to meet a need for other minerals.

In the context of the landscape's visual amenities, it was noted that the proposed
development would cause direct impacts to the landscape of the application site which
were unavoidable due to the nature of mineral extraction. As part of the supplementary
documents, the applicant had provided a Landscape and Visual Appraisal (LVIA) which
considered the sensitivity of surrounding landscape designations, residential areas and
recreational receptors. Natural Resources Wales (NRW) had assessed the documents and
had provided an analysis of the visual impacts, and argued that extending operations at
the site would affect the tranquillity and character of the nearby Eryri National Park; the
permitted concept restoration for the area covered by buildings/sheds/stocking areas
was relatively vague other than removal of the structures and profiling of the land/slate
tip that would leave an obtrusive landform.

In response, it was noted that the application was not for a new mineral development,
but rather for physical extensions and / or alterations to the working area. However, it
was acknowledged that planning permission 5/59/500 was relatively lax in terms of
restrictions on operations that could have a significant impact on tranquillity (i.e., noise,
air quality, operational hours) and the buildings/workshops/sawing sheds, staff facilities
and car parking were not covered by this permission but under numerous separate
historic permissions.

It was considered that there was an opportunity here to assess the visual impact of the
current planning policy, by means of an appropriate condition that could reduce the visual
impact of the site following cessation of the works. This would overcome NRW’s main
concerns and ensure compliance with the policies.

In the context of Hydrology and hydrogeology, it was noted that the excavation work
would continue in a similar manner as was currently undertaken. Run-off from the quarry

Page 9



was directed into the quarry void and subsequently into the Manod Quarry voids which
acted as attenuation ponds for suspended solids. Water from processing operations was
recycled with any foul water from the works and fed through a filter press prior to being
pumped into the Manod Quarry. Off-site run off was limited to seepage from the ponds
that overflow into LIyn Ministry (located West of the quarry processing buildings) with any
overflow feeding the Afon Teigl. The quarry currently practices appropriate measures to
mitigate from accidental discharges that will be retained. It was reported that NRW had
reviewed the information submitted and confirmed that they had no concerns about
hydrology with extending the working lifespan of the quarry subject to compliance with
the continued use of pollution prevention measures and good practice guidelines.

It was therefore considered that the proposed development would have no adverse
impact on hydrological features and flood risk and complied with the requirements of
Strategic Policy PS 19 and Policy AMG 3, AMG 5, PCYFF 2, PCYFF 3, PCYFF 6 and
MWYN 3 of the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011 - 2026.

In the context of ecological and biodiversity matters it was noted that the Local Authority's
biodiversity officer had raised concerns about an area in the northernmost part of the
site's boundary that was in the approved area for mineral extraction but had yet to
excavated/quarried. It was explained that the area was approximately 0.5ha in size and
consisted of upland grassland, heath and bog, rock outcrops and small pockets of peat
and was area of high biodiversity value. Despite the loss of this land, the biodiversity
officer recommended that mitigation was provided within the restoration scheme.

In the context of archaeology and cultural heritage, it was noted that concerns were
raised by CADW during the initial consultation period about the adequacy of information
presented in relation to cultural heritage as contained in chapter 9 of the Environmental
Statement (ES). These concerns were specifically in relation to the effects of quarrying
operations (blasting/vibration) on non-designated historical features within the quarry
relating to the storage of nationally important artworks during the Second World War. It
was explained that Manod Quarry had been selected as a suitable location
for a secret and specialist art storage facility, and that the environmental statement
considered that the storage facilty was of high value in terms
of evidential, historical and communal value, although there was only a moderate
evidential value in the remains of the built physical remains (a deterioration in the
condition of the facility since the MoD’s relinquishment of the facility - the generators,
lights, picture hanging rack all removed with little plant equipment left in situ and what
remained of the structures in a poor and deteriorating state. The instability of the cavern
roofs also limited safe physical access to the site).

The report by GWP Consultants, on potential vibration damage from blasting,
concluded that current blasting methods should modified once works were within 60m
of vulnerable parts of the mines. It was added that CADW, having received additional
information, had now concluded that quarrying operations could be maintained without
damaging the art storage facility. CADW had confirmed that there was no objection to
the proposal subject to the inclusion of relevant conditions on the planning permission.
Conditions would include restrictions on blasting activities and a requirement for a
programme to record the buildings and the dissemination of findings.

In the context of the economy, it was noted that prolonging mineral extraction operations

at the quarry would directly and indirectly ensure the retention of the existing workforce
and other related jobs/employment (such as haulage, plant and engineering). It was

Page 10



added that the company made a direct and substantial contribution to the local economy
and direct/indirect employment as a result of the quarry's operations. Moreover, retaining
local workers had positive effects on culture, and more specifically, on the status of the
Welsh language in the area. Therefore, it was considered that the proposal made a
positive contribution to the area's economy in accordance with Strategic Policy PS 13 of
the Joint LDP and TAN 23.

b) Taking advantage of the right to speak, the applicant made the following observations;

e The planning application facilitated the continuation of Cwt y Bugail / Manod
Quarry, and the continued production of slate in the quarry until 2048.

e |t the application was approved, the extended lifespan granted for the quarry
would provide a firm foundation for the Company to make decisions on future
capital expenditure at Cwt y Bugail that would reduce waste, increase the number
of slates produced per tonne of excavated rock, to increase annual sales in
response to the demand, and expand the choice and introduce new and
innovative products.

¢ It would also secure 34 skilled jobs at the quarry until 2048.

¢ The Company was grateful to Gwynedd and CADW officers for the opportunity
to collaborate to resolve issues relating to the use of the caverns near the quarry
that were used by the National Gallery during the Second World War.

e An action plan had been agreed that would allow the quarry to continue in
operation in accordance with the proposal to ensure that the work would not have
an impact on the remains, and that a full record of those remains would be made
public.

¢ The Company was very aware of the value of the quarry in relation to its history
and importance in the community, and was trying to secure a bright future for the
site in addition to its rich past.

e The development would be a significant step in reaching this aim.

It was proposed and seconded to approve the application

In response to an observation that the application had been registered in 2022, a
number of observations from the consultation dated from 2022 and whether more
recent matters had arisen but had not been given attention, it was noted that CADW's
observations had taken time to resolve, and as a result, a further consultation period
had been held.

RESOLVED:

To delegate powers to the Assistant Head of the Environment Department to
approve the application, with conditions relating to the following:

e The work to come to an end on 31/12/2048, restore the site by 31/12/2049.

e Permitted activities and compliance with the submitted drawing / details /
plans / information.

e Mark the boundary of the site and mineral extraction zones and tipping
areas.

e Revoke GPDO Part 19 & 21 rights for fixed plant or machinery, buildings
and structures and mineral waste.

e 15,000 tonnes per annum export limit.

Page 11



Exported material restricted to existing public highway.

Tipping operations to be directed towards final landform.

Updated tipping capacity.

Control of noise limitations.

Restrict blasting 07:00 to 20:00 Monday to Saturday.

No blasting on Sundays, bank holidays or public holidays

Peak particle velocity restricted to 50mm/s for 95% of overburden blasts
over a three-month period and not exceed 60mm/s at any time.

Peak particle velocity must be measured at the closest point to the blast
site within the shaded area shown in Drawing Reference WCYBG2312
Drawing No.10

Monitoring of blasting operations to record peak particle velocity.

Five yearly review of operations.

Submit the first report within 12 months.

Detailed Restoration Plan.

Phased/progressive restoration works.

5-year aftercare/monitoring.

Scheme of landform remodelling shall be applied to North Pole Quarry
benches and associated faces as indicated on plans for creation of stable
landform and features to match surrounding rock buttresses and scree.
Following cessation of works, clearance of quarry
plant/machinery/materials/equipment and site to be left in clean/tidy
condition, quarry benches prepared, treated and planted with flora of local
provenances, haul roads to be removed.

Restrict access of livestock to restored areas.

No plant or machinery to be operated without appropriate and properly
maintained sound deadening screens, silencers etc.

All vehicles transporting raw material or waste shall be operated in a
manner not to generate excessive noise.

No operations to cause raising of fugitive dust and all areas traversed by
vehicles to be watered down.

Removal of vegetation, structural repair or demolition of buildings and
working of previously stripped/quarried/tipped areas shall be undertaken
outside of nesting season for the protection of nesting birds.

Qualified ecologist

No operations to be undertaken on surface without stripping and storage
of topsoil’s, subsoils and peat.

Topsoils and subsoils to be re-used as soon as possible (In restoration).
Topsoils to be stored in mounds not exceeding 2m in height.

Historic building recording of the art storage facilities and Written Scheme
of Investigation.

Monitoring and eradication plan of non-native/invasive species.

The meeting commenced at 13:00 and concluded at 13:50

CHAIR

Page 12



Agenda Item 5.1

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 1

Application C24/0011/30/AM
Number:

Date Registered: 23/01/2024

Application Outline

Type:

Community: Aberdaron

Ward: Pen draw LIyn

Proposal: Outline application, with some reserved matters

(appearance, landscaping) to create five self-build plots for
affordable housing

Location:
Bodernabwy, Aberdaron, Pwllheli, Gwynedd, LL53 8BH

Summary of the
Recommendation:  To APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 13


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=44935

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1. Description:

1.1 Members are reminded that this application has been discussed previously with a
recommendation for refusal by the officers at the time. The decision was deferred to obtain
further information and to hold a site visit. This is an outline application, with some reserved
matters to create five self-build plots to provide affordable housing..

1.2 For clarity, here are further details regarding the application as submitted:

o Create a vehicular entrance approximately 12m wide with an access road approximately
5m wide into the site with a parking area on part of the site near the entrance.

e Building five detached two-storey houses within individual plots with front and rear
gardens which would include an internal floor area of approximately 94m?2

1.3 This application has been submitted in the form of an outline application and, therefore, not all
details of the development in terms of detailed plans to show the appearance/design and
landscaping have been included as would be the norm with a full application. That is, apart from
the principle of the proposal itself, details of the entrance, siting and scale that permission is
sought for are only included as part of this outline application and permission is not sought for
appearance and landscaping of the proposed development. Should the current application
succeed, these details would be subject to a further application. Nevertheless, as required with
outline applications now, the minimum and maximum height of buildings to be erected on the site
have been recorded.

1.4 In terms of the details that have been submitted as part of the application, the following are noted:

e "The individual houses are intended as two-storey, to avoid the attributes of 'bungalow'
single-storey dwellings, and it is anticipated that the houses will measure between 6.8m
and 7.2m wide (which includes the thickness of the outer walls either side) and between
7.60m and 8.00m long.

e The height to the ridge will be approximately 7.40m above slab level (lower floor). There
should be allowance for some variation in the steepness of the roof, which suggests a
ridge between 7.20m and 7.80m.

o Should applicants wish to seek permission for a single-storey building, that would give a
height of approximately 4.65m, for a traditional roof as above - with a range of around
50cm more or less — but the length of the house would most likely be around 14.40m,
with a range of 50cm more or less".

1.5 The site of the proposed development is currently open agricultural land with surrounding
boundaries in a mix of natural hedgerows, earth banks and post and wire fencing.

1.6 The entire site is outside the current development boundary of the village of Aberdaron and is
therefore in open countryside. Parts of the southern boundary of the proposed site partly touch the
development boundary. The busy B4413 road is situated parallel to the front of the site with a
public footpath running along the western boundary of the land. The site is within the Llyn
AONB and the LIyn and Bardsey Island Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest designations.

1.7 As part of the application, the following information was submitted:

Page 14



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1.8

2.1

2.2

2.3

Planning Statement

Porosity Report

Initial Ecological Assessment

Details (confidential) regarding the financial and residential background of 5
individuals/family

In addition to the original submission and in response to the planning committee's decision to
defer the decision, the following additional information was submitted:

Housing Statement

Housing Needs Survey

Landscape Statement

Plot / Site Valuation

Relevant Policies:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of
Planning Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be made in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations
include National Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being goals within the Act. This
report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development
principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council has sought to
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.

Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-26, adopted 31 July 2017
PS 1: The Welsh Language and Culture

ISA 1: Infrastructure provision

PS 4: Sustainable transport, development and accessibility
TRA 2: Parking standards

TRA 4: Managing transport impacts

PS 5: Sustainable development

PS 6: Alleviating and adapting to the effects of climate change
PCYFF 1: Development Boundaries

PCYFF 2: Development criteria

PCYFF 3: Design and place shaping

PCYFF 4: Design and landscaping

PS 16: Housing Provision

PS 17: Settlement strategy

Page 15



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

TAI 5: Local market housing
TAI 8: An appropriate mix of housing
PS 18: Affordable housing

TAI 16: Exception Sites

PS 19: Conserving and where appropriate enhancing the natural environment

AMG 1: Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty Management Plans

AMG 5: Local biodiversity conservation

PS 20: Preserving and where appropriate enhancing heritage assets

AT 1. Conservation Areas, World Heritage Sites and Registered Historic Landscapes, Parks and

Gardens.

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG):

SPG: Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities

SPG: Housing Mix

SPG: Affordable housing

SPG: Character of the landscape
SPG: Planning obligations

SPG: Building new dwellings in the countryside

2.4 National Policies:
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 — February 2024)

Technical Advice Note (TAN) 2: Planning and Affordable Housing

TAN 5: Planning and nature conservation

TAN 6: Planning for sustainable rural communities
TAN 12: Design

TAN 18: Transportation

TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh Language

TAN 24: The historic environment

Page 16



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

3. Relevant Planning History:
3.1 It appears that there is no relevant Planning history involving this land specifically.

3.2 A pre-application enquiry was submitted for the construction of five houses on a site adjacent to
the main road under reference Y23/0265, not the site that is subject to this current application. It
was noted that there was concern about a new residential development such as this as it would
extend the development pattern of the village into open countryside and therefore would not be
appropriate. It was also noted that local need for such housing must be proven. There was no
opportunity to comment further on any revised proposal.

4, Consultations:

Community/Town Council: No objection to the outline application. If the site is developed, the
County Council will be asked to consider installing paving between
the development and the main road.

Transportation Unit: There are no concerns regarding the scope of the development in
relation to the site. A vehicular road and footway of a suitable width
would be achievable meaning that a safe access would be possible
within the site. However, there is ambiguity as to how non-vehicular
users would access the centre of the community.

Insufficient details have been provided to determine whether a safe
access could be constructed in the proposed location.

We request that a standard condition/note is included with any
permission granted.

Natural Resources Wales: We have concerns regarding the application as submitted. However,
we are satisfied that these concerns can be overcome if the document
set out below is included in the condition relating to approved plans
and documents on the notice of decision: Approved Document:
Richardson, L., October 2023, Land Near Bodernabwy, Preliminary
Ecological Assessment, Cambrian Ecology Ltd.

Protected Species

We note that the ecology report submitted in support of the above
application (Richardson, L., October 2023, Land Near Bodernabwy,
Preliminary Ecological Assessment, Cambrian Ecology Ltd) noted
that although there were no potential bat roosts within the application
boundary, there was a high potential for bats to commute and forage
across the site. Section 9.2.1 of the report provides recommendations
regarding new lighting and that a lighting scheme must be formulated

Page 17



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

to indicate that the recommendations will be delivered. Therefore, we
advise that a lighting scheme is submitted to support any subsequent
Reserved Matters applications relating to this outline application for
five dwellings.

Designated Sites
Special Area of Conservation (SAC)

The development site is approximately 150m from a watercourse,
hydrologically linked to Pen LIyn and Sarnau SAC and West Wales
Marine SAC. We have concerns that harm to the SAC from the
proposed development cannot be ruled out and have identified
pollution as a potential impact on the site's features. This is due to the
location of the application site in relation to the nearby Cyllyfelin
river. To ensure appropriate mitigation measures, we advise that the
document listed below be included in the conditions of the approved
plans and in the notice of decision. Provided that the measures set out
in those documents are implemented as prescribed, we consider that
the proposed development would not adversely affect the Special
Area of Conservation.

As the competent authority under the Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), your authority must, before
deciding to give consent for a project which is likely to have a
significant effect on a Special Area of Conservation, either alone or
in combination with other plans or projects, make an appropriate
assessment of the implications of the project for that site in view of
its conservation objectives. You must, for the purposes of the
assessment, consult NRW and consider any comments we make
within the reasonable period you indicate. In the absence of that
assessment, NRW cannot advise that the proposals would not result
in an adverse effect on the Special Area of Conservation.

Designated Landscape

The development is located within the Llyn Area of Outstanding
Natural Beauty (AONB). We note that there is no information
regarding landscape assessments with the application. If your
Authority considers that the proposal is likely to affect the AONB
then we advise that appropriate landscape assessments are submitted.
We advise you to seek the advice of your Authority's AONB Officer.
If you need further advice, then please re-consult us.

Welsh Water: A public sewerage main crosses the site and no building, structure,
SuDs facilities or timber resources may be erected within the pipe
protection zone.

There is existing capacity to connect a sewer system to the public

Page 18



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

system and it is suggested to include a condition to agree on the
details of a drainage plan for the site.

Public Protection Unit; Not received

Land Drainage Unit: Standard response regarding the need to include a surface water
treatment system or SUDS

Rights of Way Unit: I confirm that footpath 17 in the community of Aberdaron runs
across the western boundary of the application site. It is not currently
possible to walk this path as it is blocked at its southern end near the
property known as Noddfa'r Enfys. There does not appear to have
been any consultation or discussion with the applicant regarding this
prior to the submission of this planning application.

We realise that this is an outline planning application under
consideration and the Service is keen to ensure that the path receives
full consideration in the hope that it can be re-opened to the public. It
is believed that this can be achieved by following one of two steps:

1. Continue with the existing footpath line erecting a boundary fence
to separate the path from the proposed housing estate. The developer
would have the responsibility to provide a fence and gate at the
southern boundary with Noddfa'r Enfys as part of this development.
The path would be required to be at least 2 meters wide from the
bottom of the existing field boundary earth bank (clawdd) to any
proposed estate boundary fence. It would be the responsibility of the
owner of the ‘clawdd' to maintain it thereafter without narrowing the
footpath;

2. Divert the entire footpath to run parallel with the housing estate
road and then adjust plots 1 and 2 to receive the new path route. |
confirm that there is a process under section 257 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) which allows routes to be
diverted/removed where necessary to enable developments to take
place. Granting this planning application would not give permission
to the diversion referred to on the plans submitted with the
application.

Should the planning application be approved, the applicant must
formally submit a separate application to the Council to divert the
path under the above provision, and the normal procedure of
diverting the route (i.e. discussing with the applicant, consulting,
making an Order, advertising an Order) would have to be followed.
The costs of diverting the path will fall squarely on the applicant
(namely the administrative costs, advertising costs, and the cost of

Page 19



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

setting up the new path on the ground). | would recommend that the
applicant has a discussion with us in this Unit before submitting a
request for a diversion to ensure that any prospective diversion is
suitable. To this end I would be grateful if consideration was given
to include the following condition should the Planning Authority
wish to grant planning permission for the development:

1. Prior to commencing any development work, details for the
improvement and/or diversion of public right of way
footpath number 17 in the community of Aberdaron under
section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) must be submitted for approval in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved details will be in
place and operational prior to the occupation of the
development.

It is likely that the path will need to be closed during the
development phase and as such may need to be closed
temporarily. The developer is informed that orders would be
required to close the paths affected by the development under the
Road Transport Management Act 1984 Section 14 as Amended
by the Road Transport (Temporary Restrictions) Act 1991. The
developer is requested to contact us with any request to
temporarily close the paths at least 6-8 weeks prior to the start
date of any development. Should the application be approved it is
recommended that a note be included on any decision to this
effect:

The applicant is advised that Aberdaron Public Footpath No. 17
crosses the application site and it is an offence to obstruct or
divert any right of way unless it is done in accordance with the
appropriate legislation. Prior to commencing any development
permitted hereby the developer is likely to need to submit and
receive approval for the temporary closure of a path for this
footpath under the provisions of Section 14(1) of the Road
Traffic Management Act 1984 (as amended) by Cyngor
Gwynedd namely the Local Highways Authority. Before
undertaking any development work, it is advisable for the
applicant to contact the Public Rights of Way Team of the
Highways Authority namely Cyngor Gwynedd.

AONB Unit: The site in question is on the outskirts of the village of Aberdaron
and in the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). The site is
not within the village Conservation Area.

Guidance on affordable housing developments is given in Policy CP6
of the Management Plan: "Promote new affordable homes to meet
proven local need, as long as schemes, designs and materials are in-

Page 20



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

keeping with the AONB's environment."

The site is currently part of an agricultural field near two recently
built houses. A residential development at this location would be
visible from some public spaces but it does not appear that the
development would intrude on the landscape. Aberdaron public
footpath number 17 runs along the boundary of the site and the path
would need to be protected and given adequate space. The intention
to plant trees is noted and this would benefit screening the
development and contributing to biodiversity. A condition is
suggested to agree an effective landscaping scheme before the start
of the development as well as a lighting scheme to limit lighting to
what is really necessary.

Biodiversity Unit: The ecological report has been completed to a good standard. The
ecologist has provided a draft Green Infrastructure Statement but the
expectation would be for the applicant to provide such a statement
and not an external consultant. However, it is not believed that it
would be reasonable to ask the applicant for additional information at
this time.

NRW in their response have identified the need to carry out a Habitat
Assessment given the size of the development and its location near a
Special Area of Conservation. It would be normal for the applicant to
provide this information to carry out the assessment (in the form of a
report from a qualified ecologist).

Further observations:

The proposal is 750 metres to the north of the Pen LIyn and Sarnau
SAC. The SAC has been designated for marine habitats and species.
The site is for developing housing on the land, the development for 5
houses would not lead to the loss of marine habitats. The
development would not cause noise in the sea that could disturb
marine mammals (dolphins, whales, seals).

The development would not cause changes to coastal processes.

The land more or less falls towards the sea and the nearest
watercourse is 145 metres away from the development site, therefore
it is very unlikely that pollution from the development could reach
the sea.

As the competent authority under the Habitats Regulations, Cyngor
Gwynedd has considered the proposal in relation to the Pen Llyn a'r
Sarnau SAC and the development is unlikely to impact the SAC.

Cambrian Ecology's ecological report states there are no bat roosts on
the site but the site is likely to have bats flying around it. Therefore |
recommend that the cloddiau and hedges are retained and that new

Page 21



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

hedges and cloddiau are created, as suggested in my observations in
an e-mail dated 3 April 2024.

Language Unit: In order for the Unit to be able to offer a fair and balanced view of
the application, we encourage the applicant to use the latest data now
available from the 2021 Census and include a more detailed analysis.
For example, by age groups for the study area. Consideration should
be given to resubmitting the updated statement before submitting the
application to Committee.

Gwynedd Archaeological Although there is general potential for undiscovered archaeological

Service: remains within the local area, there are no clear signs of ancient
occupation at the site and therefore there is no recommendation in
this case.

Housing Strategic Unit: Information about need:

The following indicates the number of applicants who wish to live in
the area:-

6 options on the Tai Teg register for intermediate properties 28
applicants from the common housing waiting list for social property.

Suitability of the Plan: Based on the above information, it appears
that the Plan partly addresses the need in the area.

Schemes are expected to include 100% affordable housing as it is on
exempted land. The application does not elaborate on the sizes of the
dwellings, and so it is difficult to confirm if the development would
address a need in the area. | see no evidence that it is the applicants
who have been approved by Tai Teg who are in line to purchase the
houses.

It is not possible to submit comments on the affordability of the
affordable units as no open market valuation has been submitted. |
would be more than happy to revisit the application once a formal
valuation has been received.

Further observations:

The Supplementary Planning Guidance uses the 3.5 x Median Income
+ 10% of the affordable market price as a formula to identify the
affordability level. If you are not looking to set a discount in this
case 10% of the median property price could be used rather than the
open market price to obtain the affordable price for the area.

The identified figure should be within reach of a local person but a

Page 22



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

discount of approximately 40% would be required to secure this.

Public Consultation: A notice was posted on the site and nearby residents were notified.
The advertisement period has expired and letters / correspondence
were received objecting on the following grounds:

e The proximity of the development to existing housing creates
over-looking and loss of privacy.

e Ribbon development without evidence why it should be
considered as an exception site for housing.

e No reference or consideration for the location of the site
within the AONB.

e The siting and context of listed buildings will be affected by
the development.

e The development would extend the clear and assumed
boundary of the village without any justification.

e There is no evidence of a need for housing whether local to
Aberdaron or other parts of LIyn.

e There is no evidence of financial viability.

e There is no visual impact assessment with the application.

e Although appearance is a reserved matter, the site is clearly
within the open countryside and no design code has been
submitted to support the decision, which is particularly
relevant as these are self-build houses.

e The height of the houses will be detrimental to the special
character of the area's landscape.

e The indicative siting suggests an urban siting that is
inappropriate in terms of policies and design. The siting does
not respect the quality and character of the historic settlement

e No evidence has been submitted regarding other suitable sites

e There is no justification for the loss of agricultural land.

e The proposal to build large, detached houses in the open
countryside without any justified link to the need for local
housing and the Welsh language.

e Historic landscape features would not be protected or
enhanced with the application.

5. Assessment of the relevant planning considerations:
The principle of the development

5.1 Policy PCYFF 1 of the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan (LDP) notes that
the plan itself identifies development boundaries for a range of settlements within the county and
that proposals within development boundaries will be approved in accordance with the
requirements of other relevant policies in the Plan. It also notes "outside the development
boundaries, proposals will be resisted unless they are in accordance with specific policies in this
Plan or national planning policies or that the proposal demonstrates that its location in the
countryside is essential”.

5.2 In this case, the proposal has been submitted as an application for development on an exception
site and therefore consideration is mainly given to policies PS 17 and TAI 16 in such cases.

Page 23



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.3

5.4

55

5.6

5.7

It is seen that Aberdaron village is defined as a rural / coastal village in the LDP with
approximately 95 houses and a few facilities within the current development boundary.
According to the latest information received from the Planning Policy Unit, an indicative supply
level of housing for Aberdaron over the Plan period is 13 units (which includes a 'slippage
allowance' of 10%, meaning that the method of calculating the figure has taken into account
potential unforeseen circumstances that could influence the provision of housing e.g., land
ownership issues, infrastructure constraints etc.). In the period 2011 to 2023, a total of 6 units
have been completed in Aberdaron all at windfall sites. The windfall land bank i.e., sites with
extant planning permission in April 2023 was 0 (zero) units (dismissing the units identified in the
Joint LDP as unlikely to be completed). This means that there is capacity within Aberdaron's
indicative supply for development of this scale.

Policy TAI 5 is relevant to locations within the development boundary but in this case, the
proposal's boundary only partially touches the boundary and therefore must be regarded as an
exception site outside the development boundary and therefore the relevant policy in this case
would be policy TAI 16 which states:

"Where it is demonstrated that there is a proven local need for affordable housing (as defined in
the Glossary of Terms) that cannot reasonably be delivered within a reasonable timescale on a
market site inside the development boundary that includes a requirement for affordable housing,
as an exception, proposals for 100% affordable housing schemes on sites immediately adjacent to
development boundaries that form a reasonable extension to the settlement will be granted.
Proposals must be for a small-scale development, which are proportionate to the size of the
settlement, unless it can be clearly demonstrated that there is a demonstrable requirement for a
larger site, with priority, where it is appropriate, given to suitable previously developed land".

It was noted in the formal response given to the pre-application enquiry that, as a development on
a proposed exception site, evidence in the form of a Housing Statement would be required to
include an assessment of the need of qualified applicants for affordable housing. Information has
been submitted in the form of a questionnaire on the local connection of 5 people/cousins and
since the previous committee, a Housing Statement was submitted along with additional
information such as a valuation of the plots. It is crucial that applicants for affordable housing are
fully assessed for their needs and ‘'aspiration’ is not a sufficient reason for the need for an
affordable house. It is known that the applicants have registered with Tai Teg and in order to be
gualified to be included on this register, they must comply with a series of specific requirements
relating to income levels, inability to afford open market housing and local connections. It is
therefore believed from the information to hand that there is a proven general need and, as isthe
case with such applications, it is believed that it would be reasonable to include a standard
affordable housing condition to be formally discharged as a means for individuals to fully prove a
specific need.

Policy TAI 8 promotes proposals that contribute to improving housing balance and meeting needs
identified in the whole community. It is therefore necessary to consider if the mix of units and
tenure proposed here is suitable to promote a sustainable mixed community. It is therefore
important to consider the contents of the 'Housing Mix' SPG when establishing if what is
proposed here is suitable.

The Housing Mix SPG states that every applicant submitting a planning application for a C3 Use
Class development, that includes 5 or more housing units, will be expected to submit a Holgszi;

e 24



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Statement to support the planning application. A Housing Statement has been submitted since the
decision was made to defer the application at the previous committee meeting.

5.8 The application does not provide information to justify the mix and type of housing provided and
their affordable price nor how the proposal will meet the needs of the local community. For
example, the number of bedrooms in each affordable property should match the needs of the
individual. . Should the application be approved, there would be a need to impose a condition to
agree on the mix to ensure that the dwellings respond directly to the need.

5.9 An independent valuation was submitted of the notional value of a three bedroom 94m2 house on
the open market. 94m2 is in accordance with the size of a two-storey three bedroom house in the
Affordable Housing SPG and is therefore relevant to be considered in the context of the
application. The valuation shows it is possible to set a discount but a discount of approximately
40% would be needed to ensure affordability. Should the application be approved an individual
discount could be applied to every dwelling based on its final design through an application for a
discharge of condition and ultimately, through a 106 agreement. In order to secure control over
the size of the houses and therefore keep their size and price 'affordable’, as is usual, a condition
would be imposed that would prevent permitted development rights, i.e., it would not be possible
to extend any property without first submitting a planning application. Also, since 20 October
2022 the Town and County Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) (Wales) Order 2022 came into
force. This Order has made changes in terms of the use classes of residential units. C3 use class
has now been noted as dwelling houses used as sole or main residence. Two additional use
classes were added, namely C5 and C6. C5 use class is dwelling houses used in a different
manner to a sole or main residence and C6 use class is for short-term lettings no longer than 31
days for each period of occupation. As the proposal has been considered against the housing
policies of the LDP it is considered that it would therefore be appropriate to impose a condition
that the house is restricted to C3 use class only, namely dwellings used as a sole or main
residence.

5.10 The need for evidence is crucial in order to hold a full assessment and is a fundamental requirement
for this type of application and therefore to this end, due to additional information being
submitted and the ability to impose a condition to agree on the provision of affordable housing,
this proposal now complies fully with the requirement of policies TAI 8, TAI 15 and TAI 16 of
the Local Plan in addition to the relevant advice provided within the Supplementary Planning
Guidance and the national directives within Planning Policy Wales and Technical Advice Notes.

Visual amenities

5.11 In this case, as it is an outline application with matters regarding appearance and landscaping
withheld, not all the information is available. However, the minimum size provided suggests that
5 two-storey houses within an open area of this type in the countryside would be extremely
prominent. It is recognised that existing houses nearby are a mixture of two-storey, single-storey,
dormer buildings etc. However, the siting of the proposed houses within an existing open field
would be away from the existing built pattern and would therefore stand out and the impact
would significantly alter the visual appearance of the site. Criterion 1 of policy PCYFF 3 notes
that proposals will only be granted if ...

""...it complements and enhances the character and appearance of the site, the building or
the area in terms of siting, appearance, scale, height, massing and elevation treatment".

5.12  Similarly, paragraph 7.8.3 of the SPG: Affordable Housing notes:
Page 25



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

"The exception site needs to be immediately adjacent to the development boundary and forms a
reasonable extension to the settlement. "Immediately adjacent™ means that the proposed exception site
should be in connection with the development boundary in the site's vicinity. In relation to whether or
not the proposal would be considered as a reasonable extension to the settlement regard will be given
towards whether the proposal is a rounding off of the built form or whether it would form an
unacceptable intrusion into the open countryside. The impact of the proposed site on the landscape will
be an important consideration in judging its suitability".

5.13  The site would be fully visible within the AONB and from places beyond the site due to the nature
of the land elevating from the application site, in particular in a north and north easterly direction.
Members are reminded that the AONB is just as important in terms of conservational value as the
National Park and are designated under the same act with a responsibility on relevant Local
Authorities to take: "take all such action as appears to them expedient for the accomplishment
of the purpose of conserving and enhancing the natural beauty of the area of outstanding
natural beauty or so much of it as is included in their area. ."

5.14 It can be seen from the observations of the AONB Unit, that they do not consider the proposal to
be damaging in terms of its visual impact. They also refer to a relevant policy within the AONB
Management Plan which promotes the provision of affordable housing where it is proven there is
genuine local need. As discussed previously in the report, the need has now been proven and
therefore it is possible to place weight on this as a material consideration when weighing up the
application against other relevant polices, including those that relate to the visual impact.

5.15 As a consequence of the concerns highlighted previously by officers, a Landscape Statement was
submitted which has been noted as a statement to contradict the officers’ claims. Although it does
not contain any formal photographic assessment it does emphasise the AONB Unit and NRW's
observation and suggest that by including an intensive landscaping plan that the visual impact
could be mitigated. Although the document contains relatively ambiguous statements, it is a
material consideration.

5.16 It is reasonable to accept that a landscaping plan of good standard would be able to contribute to
integrate the development but it is unlikely to conceal the entire development. By imposing
conditions, the proposal can comply with the relevant sections of policies PCYFF 3 and 4.

5.17 When looking at the development pattern of Aberdaron it can be seen that it is dispersed and
follows the main road networks into the village and there are some clusters of developed areas
which are denser than others. It is recognised that the houses near the site access are larger and
have a modern design compared to the more traditional dwellings in the centre of the village. As
you travel out of the village towards the site, the character of the settlement is less traditional in
nature. Given this, a new development is less likely to appear alien, although it must be
acknowledged, it would still erode and lead to the loss of open countryside.

5.18  Although this is an outline application, the design and choice of materials and colours can also
help to mitigate the impact of the development by ensuring that it is of a good standard and that it
respects its place in the landscape. Through the process of having to submit an application for
reserved matters and the ability to impose conditions on any planning permission, it would be
possible to secure a development of a good standard that would comply with policies PCYFF 3
and 4.

5.19  Concern remains about the visual impact as the proposed houses would be laid out within an
existing open field away from an existing built pattern and therefore would stand out and change

Page 26



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

the visual appearance of the site and extend the built form further into open countryside.
Nevertheless and having considered the proposal as a whole, it is considered that the need for
affordable housing for local residents outweighs the conflict with relevant visual policies. It is
believed that the visual impact is one that could be accommodated and reduced by agreeing on the
design details and the size of the houses and landscaping and the site's final layout.

5.20  Although the proposal does not fully comply with policy in terms of the visual impact it is not
considered that the application should be refused contrary to policy PS 5, PCYFF 3, PCYFF 4
and TAI 16 in terms of considering the need for affordable housing.

General and residential amenities

5.21  Itis inevitable that there would be an increased impact on the general amenities of the local area
and nearby residents from what is present, as the site is open agricultural land as it stands.

5.22  However, it must be considered that this is an outline application where all the proposal's final
details are currently unknown. For example, agreeing on the details of suitable boundary
treatment and landscaping for the site could provide some protection to the residential amenities
of nearby houses. It is acknowledged that the site plan submitted suggests that the house on plot
5 would be relatively close to the site's boundary with nearby dwellings and concern has been
highlighted about the impact of the development as a whole on the amenities of the residents of
these dwellings in terms of loss of privacy and overlooking. However, appearance is a reserved
matter and so there would be an opportunity to consider the true impact of any proposal when
discussing further details. It is considered possible to design a house (in terms of shape, size,
location of windows, doors etc) that will protect the residential amenities of neighbours'
dwellings and therefore the proposal is not considered entirely unacceptable based on all the
relevant requirements of policy PCYFF 2.

Consideration of the Welsh language

5.23  Criterion (2) of Policy PS 1 states that a Welsh Language Impact Assessment would be required
for a proposed development on an unexpected windfall site for a large-scale housing
development. The fact that this is an exception site outside the development boundary therefore
means it is an unexpected windfall site. Large-scale is defined in Diagram 7 of the Supplementary
Planning Guidance 'Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities' as five
or more units in a Rural/Coastal Village such as Aberdaron.

5.24  The application has been accompanied by a Planning Statement, although it is not in the form of
an impact assessment as referred to in the comment of the Policy Unit. It is also noted that the
Language Unit has stated that information should be included based on the 2021 Census rather
than 2011 as given in the statement as submitted. Normally, this matter would have been referred
to the agent and it would be expected that a competent assessment was prepared. However, in this
case, accepting such an assessment would not make the remainder of the development acceptable
and it would be unfair to expect the applicant to incur additional costs when knowing that this
information would not in itself ensure compliance with all relevant policy requirements.
However, no evidence has been received indicating that the development would be likely to be
detrimental to the language and as the proposal here is for 5 affordable houses, where the
occupation would be restricted to local people only, the proposal is not considered to be strictly
contrary to policy PS 1.

Page 27



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Transport and access matters

5.25 The Transport Unit's response had not been received at the time of writing. However, access
together with details of the estate road and parking spaces are part of the proposal and therefore
consideration will be given to the form and location of these elements in terms of the relevant
requirements of policies TRA 2 and TRA 4. Parking spaces appear to be offered on part of the
site and within the individual plots. In that regard, it is believed that the proposal would be
acceptable in terms of current parking requirements and therefore in accordance with policy TRA
2. The proposed entrance appears standard width for serving a site of this type and is located on a
section of the road, albeit a busy road, which is relatively straight with relatively clear visibility in
both directions. Subject to receiving favourable representations from the Transport Unit, with
appropriate conditions, it is believed that the entrance could also be acceptable and thereby in
accordance with the relevant requirements of policy TRA 4.

Biodiversity matters

5.26  The Biodiversity Unit has confirmed that the ecological report submitted with the application has
been written to a good standard. However, they note the need to submit further information to
ensure that requirements relating to conducting a full assessment of the impact of the proposal on
the designation of the Special Area of Conservation are met. NRW also note in their observations
that Cyngor Gwynedd "As the competent authority under the Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), your authority must, before deciding to give consent for
a project which is likely to have a significant effect on a Special Area of Conservation, either
alone or in combination with other plans or projects, make an appropriate assessment of the
implications of the project for that site in view of its conservation objectives. You must for the
purposes of the assessment consult NRW and have regard to any representations we make within
such reasonable time as you specify. In the absence of that assessment, NRW cannot advise that
the proposals would not result in an adverse effect upon the Special Area of Conservation site. ”

5.27 Additional information was subsequently received and the Biodiversity Unit confirmed due to the
site being 750 metres to the north of Pen LIyn a'r Sarnau SAC, the development for 5 houses will
not cause the loss of marine habitats or cause noise in the sea that could disturb marine mammals
(dolphins, whales, seals)

Neither will it harm coastal processes and it is very unlikely that pollution from the development
could reach the sea.

As the competent authority under the Habitats Regulations, Cyngor Gwynedd has considered the
proposal in relation to the Pen LIyn a’r Sarnau SAC and the development is not likely to have an
impact on the SAC. It is therefore accepted that the proposal is now acceptable and in accordance
with policy PS 19 and AMG 5.

5.28 In accordance with recent legislative changes to Planning Policy Wales (PPW) and the need to
introduce a Green Infrastructure Statement, a statement has been submitted and for the purpose of
satisfying PPW in terms of this particular aspect, it is believed that this has been done in this case.

It is seen that is has been proposed to improve biodiversity by including bat boxes, planting trees
and creating a new natural hedge. It is believed that all of these elements are acceptable and a
means of creating subsequent biodiversity enhancements and that a standard condition would be
included to ensure that these improvements are implemented in accordance with what is noted in
the statement and the ecological assessment. It is believed that the proposal is now acceptable
and therefore in accordance with the relevant requirements of policies PS 19, AMG 5 along with
chapter 6 Planning Policy Wales which relates to green infrastructure and the phased approaig.age

28



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Archaeological Matters

5.29 As can be seen from the comments of the Archaeological Service, although there is a general
potential for undiscovered archaeological remains within the local area, they had no
recommendation in this case such as carrying out exploration of the site. It is therefore believed
that the proposal is acceptable based on this particular element and is in accordance with the
relevant requirements of policy PS 20.

Educational Contribution

5.30  The proposal is to construct 5 houses but the number of bedrooms does not appear to have been
confirmed. Should the proposal be for 5, 3-bedroom houses, from the information in the SPG
'Planning Obligations' it is stated that an additional 2 primary age pupils will result from this
proposal: 5 x 0.4 = 2 pupils

5.31  Asthere is existing capacity within the local primary school, it would not be relevant to consider
an educational contribution in this case for the additional pupils resulting from the proposed
development.

Response to the public consultation

5.32  Itis acknowledged that objections have been received to this proposal and it is considered that all
relevant planning matters have been given appropriate consideration as part of the above
assessment. A decision is made based on a full consideration of all the relevant planning
considerations and all the comments received during the public consultation and that no one was
let down when considering this application.

6. Conclusions:

6.1 The current housing situation in the village of Aberdaron village is well known in terms of how
difficult it is to find a house at an affordable price. The principle of new residential development
that would contribute towards meeting the need locally is therefore fully supported. However, this
does not mean that any proposal submitted is permissible and proposals must comply completely
with the relevant requirements of policies that protect a highly sensitive area such as here from
unacceptable new development.

The matters involving the need for the development and the impact on ecology have been
resolved in full after receiving additional information from the agent. Although the landscape
statement was submitted, the proposal does not fully comply with the policy in terms of the visual
impact but having weighed up the application, it is not considered that the application should be
refused given the need for affordable housing in the area.

6.2 Having considered the above and all the relevant planning matters including local and national
policies and guidance, as well as all the observations received, it is believed that this proposal is
now acceptable in its submitted form.

Page 29



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

7. Recommendation:
7.1 To approve — conditions

Time

In accordance with the plans
Materials

Affordability condition
Highway conditions

NRW condition
Welsh Water Condition
. Reserved Matters condition

©CoNO~WNE

Biodiversity / biodiversity enhancements Condition

10.Withdrawal of PD rights and restrict to C3 residential use only

11.Protect the public footpath.

Page 30



T¢ obed

1:5000

200

Dwyros

Afallen

Bodernabwy |

 Tyhewydd

Cb Haylis

Aberdaron

E ] A DN
N AFlerm 4 o \ N

. N
~~_ . Bodernabwy /o NGNS
N % . NN

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 05/01/2024

\
i
>

| 1:1250

0.5505ha

Tir ger Bodernabwy Aberdaron LL53 8BH p140_.01_(§

52.805876-4.7089773 graddfa / scale @ A3 :
05 SH175270 printwyd / printed :
cychwynwyd / started :

1:5000 /1:1250
12-09-2023
13-04-2023






e¢ abed

deulawr El

47m? x 2 = 94m?
723x6.5m

%N

o

%‘ferm

diwygiadau
a04.11.2023

50m 100m

-
;/ ‘1\ 57 809876 -4.7089773

L

QS SH175270

A

Tir ger Bodernabwy Aberdarcn LL53 8BH  p140_01_ 043

graddfa /scafe @ A3 : | 111250
printwyd / printed : | 04-11-2023
cychwynwyd / srorted = | 13-04-2023

ety thel destanr












Agenda Item 5.2

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 2

Application Number: C24/0083/18/LL
Date Registered: 06/02/2024

Application Type: Full

Community: Llanddeiniolen
Ward: Penisa’r-waun
Proposal: Change of use of care home (C2 Use Class - residential

establishments) to a serviced hostel for holiday use (Unique
Use) as well as ancillary warden living accommodation
(resubmission).

Location: . . .
Cartref Nyrsio Penisa’r-waun, Penisa’r-waun, Caernarfon,

Gwynedd, LL55 3DB

Summary of the
Recommendation:  To APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 37


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=36319
https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=36319

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1. Description:

1.1 That is a full application for a change of use of a former nursing home (C2 Use Class) to be used
as a serviced holiday hostel (Unique Use) together with the provision of living accommodation
for a warden. The site, located on the eastern periphery of the settlement of Penisa'r-waun, and
the nursing home have been dormant since 2018.

1.2 This is a single-storey building and is formed from two main wings that are connected in the
centre by a flat roofed structure. The existing building comprises 30 bedrooms; stores; kitchens;
sitting rooms; boiler room; bathrooms together with administrative/staff rooms.

1.3 The proposal is to convert the building to create as a serviced hostel for visitors, which will also
include the provision of a residential unit within the building for a manager/warden; stores and
drying rooms; a new small lobby for the main entrance to the building (this is the only addition
proposed to be undertaken to the existing building); games room; bath/shower rooms together
with a kitchen and dining room. A Planning Statement (including a Green Infrastructure
Statement) was submitted with the application and this explains the nature of the development.
This includes:

e The hostel would provide 25 bedrooms for holiday accommodation (a total of 60 beds).

Every bedroom would include en-suite facilities, some with private showers.

e The only exterior changes would be the provision of a small, enclosed area near the

entrance to the building.

e The proposal would lead to the employment of one full-time employee as a night warden,

with three or four part-time employees for other various roles.

e Warden living accommodation would be provided within the building, and this

accommaodation would have a separate exterior entrance.

e The building would also provide communal showers, toilets, kitchen, dining areas and

sitting areas for visitors to use during their stay.

¢ No changes would be made to the entrance used to enter and exit the site.

e 42 parking spaces would be provided on the site, making use of the existing car park
serving the property, and extending to the north-west of the site (which previously
served as an informal parking area), to provide an additional parking area.

It is proposed to provide disabled parking spaces on the site, as well as a bicycle storage

area.

1.4 The site is located nearby, but outside the boundary of the Penisa'r-waun Local Village as defined
in the LDP. The property is located within a 500m of the Penisa'r-waun Camp Registered
Monument and within the Dinorwig Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest. Deiniol House
Wildlife Site is located adjacent to the site together with dispersed residential dwellings
surrounding the application site.

15 This is a re-submission of a similar plan (application number C21/1028/18/LL) refused in 2023
for three main reasons:
i.  Lack of information regarding the number of beds, creating concerns regarding harmful
amenity impacts to local residents.
ii. Lack of information regarding the nature and extent of the proposed warden
accommodation.
iii.  Lack of parking provision.

1.6 The Planning Statement accompanying the proposed application confirms the following aspects:
e The maximum number of residents in the facility will be 60.

e The manager's accommodation will be completely separate and subordinate to the visitor
accommaodation (this is shown on the floor plans).
Page 38



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

e The provision of 42 parking spaces on the site (which have been designed to meet the
Welsh Government Parking Standards).
2. Relevant Policies:

2.1  Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of Planning
Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the Development
Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations include National
Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

2.2  The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being goals within the Act. This
report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development
principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council has sought to
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.

2.3 Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Local Development Plan 2011-2026 adopted 31 July 2017: -
PS 1 - The Welsh Language and Culture.
PS 5 — Sustainable Development.
PS 6 — Mitigating the effects of climate change and adapting to them.
PS14 - The visitor economy.
PS 19 - Conserving and where appropriate enhancing the natural environment.
PS 20 - Conserving and where appropriate enhancing the natural environment.
TRA 2 - Parking standards.
TRA 4 - Managing transport impacts.
PCYFF 1 - Development boundaries.
PCYFF 2 - Development Criteria
PCYFF 3 - Design and place shaping.
TWR 2 - Holiday accommodation.
AMG 5 - Local biodiversity conservation.

AT 1 - Conservation Areas, World Heritage Sites and Landscapes, Parks and Registered Historic
Gardens.

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): Tourist Facilities and Accommodation (2021).

SPG: Maintaining and Creating Unique and Sustainable Communities.

Page 39



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

Community/Town Council:

National Policies:

Future Wales: The National Plan 2040

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 - February 2024)

Technical Advice Notes (TAN) 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities.

TAN 11: Noise.
TAN 12: Design.
TAN 13: Tourism.

TAN 18: Transport.

TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh Language.

TAN 23: Economic Development.

TAN 24: The Historic Environment.

Relevant Planning History:

Application C21/1028/18/LL - change of use of care home (C2 Use Class - residential
establishments) to a service hostel for holiday use (Unique Use), as well as ancillary warden
living accommodation - Refused 06/02/23.

Application C09A/0468/18/LL - amend condition 9 on planning permission number
C08A/0007/18/LL to allow the home to accommodate people over 40 years old rather than
restrict the use to elderly care only, approved in 2010.

Application CO8A/0007/18/LL - extend the existing home by creating a 2/3 storey extension,
demolishing the existing kitchen, creating a walkway and additional parking spaces as well as
landscaping and drainage work, approved in 2009.

Consultations:

1.

2.

3.

Object on the following grounds: -

Overdevelopment.

Sewerage problems in the area already.

It would disrupt the amenities of local residents.
The roads are much too narrow for so much traffic.

There are already too many holiday places and is there a
genuine need for such a large site in a small village like

Page 40



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Transportation Unit:

Land Drainage Unit:

Welsh Water:

Public Protection Unit:

CADW:

Public Consultation:

Penisa'r-waun.

No objection

The Council does not have any records that the former home has
been affected by flooding and the latest NRW flood maps suggest
that the building is not under threat.

Observations for the developer

Request a condition to protect the public sewer as well as offer
standard advice.

The original observations note the need to ensure that the septic tank
is able to cope with any potential increase in flows as a result of the
development and ask for the details of any exterior waste storage
area.

Following these observations, a report was received by a competent
specialist noting that there was sufficient capacity in the septic tank
for the development and this was acceptable to the Unit.

In addition, an amended site plan was received showing the location
of the bin/recycling storage area.

No response received

A notice was posted on the site and nearby residents were notified.
The advertising period has expired and correspondence was received
objecting on the following grounds:

e The scale of the proposed development is not appropriate
considering the site, the location and the dwelling in question
and it will not be able to assimilate and fit comfortably in its
environment.

e The facility will not have ‘opening hours' and therefore could
create noise problems and disruption during anti-social hours

e It is likely that there will be harmful amenity impacts to
nearby residential property due to noise from residents and
their cars, which will be of a very different nature to a
residential home for the elderly.

e Concern about the lack of outdoor area for socialising on the
site and the residents will therefore wander to the village and
create problems.

e Harm to the privacy of neighbours.

e There is insufficient information with the application
regarding the exterior appearance of the facility.

e Vehicular movements will not be similar to the previous use
and it is likely that there will be increased traffic on the
narrow road, which is already hazardous for users.

e Concern regarding the lack of parking spaces and thathf}Jils

ge 41



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

can cause problems on the street in the village.

e It would be difficult to control the numbers who would be
able to use the facility - concern that up to 120 people can
stay at the facility at the same time, with over 80 cars

e The facility would be over-reliant on private transport, as
there is a lack of public transport in the area.

e Concern regarding the flow of water from the parking areas.

e Concern that the site is at risk of flooding- the home is
located directly above a drainage pipe, which deals with a
persistent flow of water, all year round.

e There is no appropriate provision for bins / recycling in the
plans.

e The proposal to manage the site with one warden is
insufficient for a facility of its size.

e Penisa'r-waun is a quiet, remote village and the impact of 60
people at the hostel would be harmful to the character of the
village.

e Concern about the harmful impact on the Welsh language
from such a large tourism development within a small Welsh
community.

e Very little benefit to the village deriving from the
development - there is no shop / café which can benefit from
the residents.

e Because of the time elapsed since the site was last used,
many hedges and trees have grown in the areas shown on the
plans that are to be used as a parking area. Extensive work
will need to be done to fell trees and hedges before it is
brought up to standard.

Page 42



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

e Concern regarding the suitability of the sewerage provision
to cope with the increased use.

e Lack of information regarding the environmental impact of
the development.

e The application does not respond appropriately to the refusal
reasons noted on the previous application.

e The information submitted for similar facilities in the area is
not correct - there is much more similar accommodation in
the area, which will lead to an over-development.

e No business plan has been submitted with the application.

e The facility will employ much fewer local staff than the
previous use.

In addition, observations were received which are not material
planning matters for this application:

e Questioned whether the genuine intent is to keep numbers
below 60.

e Questioned the use class of the development.

e Concern regarding the lack of opportunity to provide
observations on the development.

e Concern about the impact on similar businesses in the area.

e Concern about the use of the hostel as a permanent residence.

e Consideration should be given to making alternative use of
the building which is beneficial to the local community or
use the site to build affordable housing.

e That invasive species have established on the site.

e Questioned the land ownership showed on the site plan and
allegations that the application form is incorrect.

5. Assessment of the material planning considerations:
The principle of the development

5.1 A number of local and national policies deal with the principle of providing serviced holiday
accommodation including Policy PCYFF 1; Policy PS 5, Policy PS 14 and Policy TWR 2 of the
LDP together with Supplementary Planning Guidance: Tourist Facilities and Accommodation and
the Technical Advice Notes, "Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities" and "Economic
Development".

5.2 In terms of general policies, Policy PCYFF 1 states that proposals outside development
boundaries will be refused unless they are in accordance with specific policies in the plan or
national planning policies or that the proposal shows that its location in the countryside is
essential. Policy PS 5 encourages giving priority to reusing the previously used land and
buildings and Policy PS 14 of the LDP supports the development of a year-round local tourism
industry.

5.3 In terms of the relevant specific policies, Policy TWR 2 of the LDP aims to facilitate proposals
for serviced holiday accommodation, provided that the proposal complies with a number of
criteria. The relevant criteria in this particular case are: -

Page 43



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

(if) That the proposed development is appropriate in scale considering the site, location and/or

(iv)

settlement in question and that it is in-keeping and fits comfortably into the environment —

Comment

The proposal involves the provision of 25 bed/sleeping rooms within the existing building,
enabling up to 60 residents at a time, as well as bespoke two-bedroom accommaodation for the
site's manager. There is no intention to extend the existing infrastructure (except for a small
porch near the existing main entrance). The proposal, if approved, means that there would be
a provision for up to 62 residents (including the warden accommodation), possibly within the
facility at the same time. However, when considering the seasonal nature of the visitor
industry as well as the variety in the size of groups and individuals' wishes in terms of the
nature of the rooms they choose, it is unlikely that the building would operate at its full
capacity all year round, particularly outside the main visitor season.

When considering this application it is important to look at the planning history of the site
and the nature of the previous legal use as a care home for the elderly (with a maximum of 30
permanent residents). It is noted from the information submitted with planning application
CO08A/0007/18/LL for 26 members of staff to be employed on the site at that time (8 full-time
and 18 part-time), and indeed, planning permission was provided through that application for
a 2/3 storey extension to the building, which would include 40 bedrooms to generate the
demand for 56 staff (19 full-time and 37 part-time).

Considering the high level of staffing necessary to care for the residents of the residential
home for the elderly, as well as the additional attendees at the site, such as the families of the
residents and health services, it is not believed that the development proposed through the
current planning application would increase the density of the site's use in a significant way,
compared to its use in the past.

It is believed, by imposing a condition restricting the facility to a maximum of 60 paying
residents at a time, it can be ensured that there will be no significant change in the density of
the site's use or in the scale of the development compared with the previous use. Whilst
acknowledging that this is a relatively large development for a village of the size of Penisa'r-
waun, it must be accepted that the physical development is already in place and this
application is a matter of changing the nature of the use made of the site, whilst retaining the
scale of the development relatively similar to the previous use.

It is therefore believed that the development, as described in the application, is acceptable in
terms of its scale

That the development is not sited within a primarily residential area, or does not significantly
harm the residential character of an area

Comment

Although the site is located outside the development boundary, a number of residential
dwellings are located around the site, including the property known as Talsarnau, which is
immediately adjacent. Although there are nearby residential dwellings, due to the site's
previous use as a Nursing Home, it must be acknowledged that the character of the area is not
solely residential, its use as a home is a single business where the nature of the coming and

Page 44




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

going is different to a typical residential house. Note that the ability to reopen as a nursing
home continues without the need for further planning permission.

It is noted that the main entrance of the hostel, as well as 19 parking spaces and bin storage
area would be located in the front of the south-east wing which is near the boundary with the
Talsarnau property. Having said this, this location was used as a main entrance to the site
previously, with the main parking area located there and ultimately it is not believed that the
nature of the use in that part of the site will be significantly different to the previous use.

There would be a marked density in the use of the north-west part of the site, with this area
being turned into a formal car park, instead of a casual parking facility, however, there are no
residential properties immediately adjacent to that part of the site, and ultimately, the
development would be a matter of tidying and formalising the previous use, instead of
increasing the size or change the use of that location.

It is acknowledged that the nature of the use by casual visitors, that will come and go more
often, is different to the previous use. Having said this, by ensuring an appropriate procedure
to manage the site, it is not believed that the nature of the new use would inevitably cause
different significant harm to the residential character of the area to the previous use.

It is believed, as is customary for student accommodation in the city of Bangor, that
appropriate control over the site can be ensured by securing a management plan that would
commit the managers to adopt appropriate measures regarding issues such as the management
of noise, transport and visitor conduct, as well as ensure that suitable processes are in place to
engage and deal with complaints. Ultimately, it is believed, from adopting appropriate
management measures, the development can be acceptable under this criterion of policy
TWR 2.

(v)  The development does not lead to an over-concentration of such accommodation.
Comment

It is noted above that one of the reasons given by local residents for objecting to this
application is that an excess of similar holiday accommodation have already been established
within the area. In order to meet the needs of criterion (v), the applicant will need to submit
evidence of the current provision of the type of serviced holiday accommodation in question
(i.e. the hostel) in the Penisar-waun area. Nevertheless, since serviced holiday
accommodation is in question here, there is no requirement to submit a business plan. The
Planning Statement submitted notes that a desk study shows that there are only two other
examples of serviced accommodation in the area; namely "Byncws Jesse James” and
"Gwesty Llysieuol Graianfryn". There is also a number of self-serviced accommodation in
the area, such as Bwthyn Tyddyn Perthi, Lon Dryll Outdoor Centre, and Mel-y-Beran, but
these are not serviced accommodation and therefore they are not a consideration as a part of
the over-provision assessment under the policy. Ultimately, it is not believed that approving
the proposal will involve an excess of the type of uses within the local area, despite the
concerns of objectors regarding this element of the proposal.

Page 45



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Permanent Residence

54 TAN 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities states that only one of the few
circumstances in which a new residential development in the open countryside can be justified is
when accommodation is required to enable a rural enterprise worker (which can include tourism
use), to live at, or close to, his workplace. This proposal provides accommodation for the
manager/warden of the facility and it is accepted that it is an integral part of the serviced holiday
accommodation provision of this type for managers / staff to be available throughout the day and
night, which means that the manager either lives on or in the vicinity of the site. From the
information submitted with this amended application, it is now noted that the only access to the
manager's accommodation would be from the northern elevation of the site through a separate
access to the main hostel, without any access to the broader building. In addition, no facilities
would be shared between the warden accommodation and the hostel. Therefore, the manager's
accommodation would be separate to the main hostel and subservient to the main use of the
building. Bearing in mind the nature of the use proposed, it is believed that there is acceptable
justification for the creation of a permanent residential unit on the site as a home for an essential
worker and that the use of this element can be managed by means of a material planning
condition. It is therefore considered that this part of the proposal meets the requirements of
PCYFF 1 and TAN 6.

Economic Development

5.5 Paragraph 3.2.1 TAN 23: Economic Development notes that the re-use and adaptation of existing
rural buildings has an important role in meeting the needs of rural areas for commercial and
industrial development, and tourism, sport and recreation. It emphasises the need for the building
in question to be suitable for the proposed use and paragraph 3.2.1 notes:

"The re-use and adaptation of existing rural buildings has an important role in meeting the
needs of rural areas for commercial and industrial development, and tourism, sport and
recreation. In recognising this, local planning authorities are expected to adopt a positive
approach to the conversion of rural buildings for business re-use, especially those buildings
that are located within or adjoining farm building complexes, on the basis that:

« they are suitable for the specific use;

« conversion does not lead to dispersal of activity on such scale as to prejudice town and
village vitality;

» their form, bulk and general design are in keeping with their surroundings;

+ imposing conditions on a planning permission overcomes any planning objections, for
example on environmental or traffic grounds, which would otherwise outweigh the advantage
of re-use;

« if the buildings are in the open countryside, they are capable of conversion without major or
complete reconstruction;

« conversion does not result in unacceptable impacts upon the structure, form, character or
setting where the building is of historic and / or architectural interest.”

Page 46



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.6 In considering the above points, it is noted

e that this is a building which has been purposefully designed for residential use by a
substantial number of people,

¢ that this would be a plan that would create new tourism activity without taking away from
the activity in other tourism-dependent areas,

e there would be no significant change in the form and size of the development on the site,
compared with the previous use

e conditions could be imposed on any planning consent to ensure appropriate control of the
facility to safeguard the amenities of neighbours

¢ no substantial construction work would be required

o there would be no significant change to the visual character of the area and no harm would
be caused to local heritage features.

Given the above, it is believed that the proposal is consistent with national policy for economic
development in rural areas.

Conclusion regarding the principle of the plan

5.7 Considering the above assessment, and in the context of the further discussion below, it is
believed, by imposing appropriate conditions, that it can be ensured that the proposal is
acceptable under the requirements of Policies PCYFF 1, PS 14 and TWR 2 of the LDP, as well as
the advice included within the document, SPG: Tourism Facilities and Accommodation, TAN 6:
Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities and TAN 23: Economic Development.

Visual amenities

5.8 The proposal involves installing a flat roof above the main entrance to the building and this will
be the only change to the exterior appearance of the building. Most of the change of use work
will be carried out in the interior and considering the scale and design of the change to the
exterior front elevation of the building, it is not believed that it would have any detrimental
impact on the area's visual amenities or on the setting of a nearby monument or on the
designation of the area as the Dinorwig Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest. It is therefore
deemed that the proposal is acceptable on the grounds of the requirements of Policies PCYFF 3,
PS 19, PS 20 and AT 1 of the LDP.

General and residential amenities

5.9 Policy PCYFF 2 of the LDP states that proposals will be refused where the proposed
development would have an unacceptable adverse impact on the health, safety or amenity of
occupiers of local residencies due to increased activity, disturbance, noise, light pollution or other
forms of pollution or nuisance. Policy TWR 2 together with the SPG: Tourist Facilities and
Accommodation, support the objectives of this policy by stating that any development for holiday
accommodation should protect residential interests together with being a use that would be in-
keeping with the uses of adjoining property (residential property in this case) in terms of noise;
traffic disturbance and lack of privacy for any adjoining/nearby property.

5.10 As referred to above, residential dwellings are located close to the application site and
correspondence has been received from local residents regarding the potential impact of the
proposal on residential amenities, particularly on the grounds of disturbance, noise and traffic. It

Page 47



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

is noted that the site's existing character and its surrounding area has a quiet/tranquil feel and that
the previous use as a residential home for the elderly, as well as the associated daily activities,
were ones that were considered suitable and appropriate for the area's semi-rural character. The
Planning Statement submitted with the application notes, when considering the similarity in the
numbers using the site if it were to be converted into a hostel, and the intention to secure 24-hour
supervision of the facility, that there would be no significant difference in any disturbance
deriving from the use of the proposed holiday accommodation.

5.11  When noting the above, it must be accepted that the nature of hostel-type holiday accommodation
can lead to a substantially different impact to that of a residential home for the elderly, and
without appropriate controls, it can cause noise nuisance, either in the form of the movements of
people and vehicles, or in the form of outdoor gathering and socialising. However, from
accepting the site management plan as noted in 5.3 above and ensuring a restriction on the
numbers using the facility at any given time, it is believed that the amenity impacts can be
controlled in a satisfactory manner by using appropriate planning conditions and then the
development can be acceptable under the requirements of Policy PCYFF 2 and TWR 2 of the
LDP, as well as the advice included within the document SPG: Tourist Facilities and
Accommodation.

Transport and access matters

5.12  The site together with the village is served by a class Il county road with a junction with the
A4244 main road approximately 520m east with passing places here and there. The site has two
entrances together with parking spaces within the site itself. In response to advertising the
application, objections were received from local residents regarding the unsuitability of the road
to cope with additional traffic that would be created by the proposed holiday accommodation.

5.13. In response to the statutory consultation process, the Transportation Unit had no concerns
regarding the suitability of the access and parking arrangements and they did not have a concern
about the impact on highway safety. The plans submitted show compliance with Welsh
Government parking guidance (CSS Cymru, 2014), which recommends that one parking space
would be needed for a commercial vehicle; one parking space for each bedroom and one parking
space for every 3 members of staff.

5.14  When considering the above, despite the objections received regarding this matter, it is not
believed that there are grounds to object the application due to transport considerations and it is
believed that the proposal is acceptable under the requirements of Policy TRA 2 and TRA 4 of
the LDP, as well as the advice included within the document TAN 18: Transport.

Sustainability matters

5.15 Policy PS 5 (Sustainable Developments) supports developments which are consistent with
sustainable development principles, and where appropriate, developments should:

“Reduce the need to travel by private transport and encourage the opportunities for all users to
travel when required as often as possible by means of alternative modes, placing particular
emphasis on walking, cycling and using public transport in accordance with Strategic Policy PS
47,

This is supported by bullet point 4 of PS 14 (The Visitor Economy), which states:

Page 48



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

“Supporting appropriately scaled new tourist provision and initiatives in sustainable locations in
the countryside through the reuse of existing buildings, where appropriate, or as part of farm
diversification, particularly where these would also benefit local communities and support the
local economy and where they are in accordance with sustainable development objectives;”

The LDP policies are consistent with national planning policies in terms of how they deal with
sustainable development principles. This includes paragraph 3.39 Planning Policy Wales (PPW)
(Edition 12, February 2024) and paragraph 3.11 Technical Advice Note 18: Transportation,
which states:

“Development in rural locations should embody sustainability principles, balancing the need to
support the rural economy, whilst maintaining and enhancing the environmental, social and
cultural quality of rural areas. Most developments should be located in places accessible by a
range of travel modes.”

The details submitted with the application note: -

e That an official bus stop is located directly adjacent the application site to the north-west
of the class Il county road.

e The site is within close proximity to several popular tourist attractions in Eryri, which are
linked together with the road network and good public footpaths and cycle paths.

e Although it is acknowledged that the majority of users of the holiday/hostel
accommodation would use a private car to reach the site, there are however various
alternative transport options available once they reach the site, including cycling, public
transport and on foot.

It is noted that the site is located near an established village, not on a site in open countryside, and
that an existing transport network is already in place to serve the site and nearby village. As a
result of the above, it is believed that the proposal is acceptable based on the requirements of
Policy PS5 and PS14 of the LDP as well as compliance with the advice included in the
documents TAN 18, TAN 23 and Planning Policy Wales, 2021.

The Welsh Language

In accordance with the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, it is a duty when making a decision on a
planning application to consider the Welsh language, where it is relevant to that application. This
is reiterated further in para 3.28 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12, 2024), along with
Technical Advice Note 20. The Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 'Maintaining and
Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities' (adopted July 2019), provides further
guidance on how it is expected for Welsh language considerations to be incorporated in each
relevant development.

It is noted that there are some specific types of developments where it will be required for the
proposal to submit a Welsh Language Statement or Report on the Welsh Language Impact
Assessment. The thresholds in terms of when it is expected to submit a Statement/Report have
been highlighted in Policy PS1 of the Joint LDP, along with Diagram 5 of the SPG. The proposal
does not reach the thresholds to submit a Welsh Language Statement or a Report on a Welsh
Language Impact Assessment. However, Appendix 5 of the SPG notes that every housing, retail,
commercial or industrial development where there is no need to submit a Welsh Language Impact
Statement/Assessment should show how consideration has been given to the language.

To this end, the Planning Statement submitted as part of the application states: -

Page 49



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

(i) that residents staying in the hostel will stay there for temporary periods only and
therefore there will be no permanent impact on the Welsh language in the area;

(ii) the manager/warden will be local and will speak Welsh and will respond bilingually
to the residents;

(iii) the attraction would have a Welsh name or a name with a local connection together
with bilingual information to advertise local attractions.

Taking this into account, and by imposing a condition to secure a Welsh name for the site and
priority to the Welsh language on any signage and promotional material, it is believed that the
proposal is acceptable on the grounds of the relevant SPG.

Infrastructure matters

5.22 In their response to the consultation process, the Public Protection Service asked for confirmation
that the existing septic tank has the capacity to serve the development in question. A report was
received from competent experts who confirmed that the tank was in a satisfactory condition for a
capacity of up to 65 persons. This information was acceptable to the Service.

5.23  In addition, observations were received expressing concerns about the potential of surface water
flooding on the site. In response, the Land Drainage Unit noted that there was a history of
flooding in the area due to the lack of capacity in the culvert which runs under the development
site, to cope with the flow of the watercourse during periods of heavy rain, which causes water to
accumulate on the adjacent highway and the site before flowing in the direction of the village.
The Council does not have any records that the former home was affected by such flood incidents
and the latest NRW flood maps suggest that the building is not at threat as the level of the land is
most probably slightly higher than the highway. The site owner is responsible for maintaining the
culvert described in order to ensure that this situation does not get worse over time, e.g. due to
damage or obstruction to the structure.

5.24  ltis not clear from the details submitted what type of surface is intended to be installed to provide
parking spaces, or what the proposal is to manage rainwater falling onto the site. It is essential
that surface water is managed in line with the national standards, so as not to contribute to
existing flooding concerns. Therefore, it is believed essential to impose a condition to ensure that
the parking areas have a permeable surface so as to avoid contributing to flood problems and to
comply with policy PS 6.

Biodiversity Matters

5.25 Chapter 6 of Planning Policy Wales (PPW) deals with green infrastructure, net benefit to
biodiversity, the protection afforded to Sites of Special Scientific Interest and trees and
woodlands. A Green Infrastructure Statement was submitted as part of the Planning Statement
and this notes that all detrimental impacts on the green infrastructure would be avoided as the size
of the development would be restricted by adapting the existing building and using the existing
hard standing areas. It is not intended to carry out any work to the grassed areas or to the
boundaries. All existing boundary plants would be retained and a biodiversity enhancement plan
can be secured by imposing a planning condition.

5.26  When considering this statement in the context of the content of Chapter 6 PPW, it is believed
that there are no biodiversity matters arising which have any material influence on the decision,
therefore, by imposing an appropriate condition to secure biodiversity enhancements, it is
believed that the application meets the requirements of Policy PS 19 of the LDP.

Page 50



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

6. Conclusions:

6.1 Ultimately, it must be borne in mind that the former residential home is a substantial, vacant
building, which has been used for decades for residential purposes. The new proposal would not
cause a significant change in the number of people who would be able to use the site at a given
time, compared to the previous use. In addition, the vehicular access and parking arrangements
are acceptable to the Transportation Unit and it is not believed that highway safety would be
harmed. In the context of local and national policies to promote the re-use of existing sites for the
economic benefit of communities, by imposing appropriate conditions to manage the amenity
impacts of the development, it is believed, on the whole, that this amended proposal has
overcome the concerns outlined with the previous application and that it is now possible to
approve the development.

7. Recommendation: To approve subject to conditions

1. Development to commence within five years

2. Comply with the plans

3. Hostel to be used for holiday purposes only

4, Permanent accommodation to be used by the site manager only

5. A Site Management Plan to be submitted and agreed before the site becomes operational

6. Welsh Water Condition

7. Biodiversity Enhancement Plan to be submitted and approved

8. Any exterior surface installed on the land must be a permeable material

9. Site must be given a Welsh name and the Welsh language to be given priority on signage and on

any promotional material

Page 51



2S abed

354000
Penisarwaun
>
363900 \
e
Mapping contents (c) Crgwn copyright and database rights 2018 Qrdnance Sufvey 100035207
363800

255700

255800

Lleoliad
1:1250

255800

256000

dobson:owen

PENSEIRI = ARCHITECTS
3 Thomas Buildings. Pwilheli LL53 SHH

T:(0) I758 BI4181 = F : (0 I758 BI4388

& ; postBdubsonowen.com

CLIENT : RHYS GRIFFITH
NODIADAU » NOTES

\
/

TEITL PROSIECT  PROJECT TITLE
HOSTEL, PENISARWAUN

2019-12

1:1250
04.2012

DOSBARTHWYD | ISSUED FOR : DRAFT

DYDDI DISGRIFIAD
AD

[A5hga3 (g

Dhosed — 5019-12

Maint ur
[ A3

By GaT
Qirauuen by GD

[TEITL* TITLE

LLEOLIAD / LOCATION

[RHIF CYNLLUN - DRAWING NO.

L1 01

10F 1




Cynllun Diwygiedig ) F&Ejﬂf&ﬂ&ﬁ?ﬂs

Amended Plan S |
postEdobeongwen.com

GLIENT - RHYS GRIFFITH
NODIADAL « NOTES

= 5
e =T e y . S 5 = 3
= JHE] D‘j DI@HI ﬂ-i .
NORTH-EAST ELEVATION o ' ity o o =5
5
| stafelloedd gwely gyda ymelchfa a desg _,;‘g}

adnoddau gweinyddol a staff

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 140502024 ystafelloedd ymolchifcawodydd

03 ceginau a gofod sistedd

04 Stafell gemau a.y.

05 unied preswyl ar oyfer gofahwr/warden

. storfeydd, stafelloedd u, bwylerdy a.)

Fe
:a-f? P Q7 lobi gyda drysau gwydr

storfa beics

£ I BLOCKA : 8 ROOMS 18 BED
parking 0811, BLOCK B : 7 ROOMS 16 BED
BLOCK C : 10 ROOMS 26 BED

% & 17 | 48° 19 20

IECT | PROUICT TTLE

s T g FIPETEL IEVENGTID, PERIBARWAUN
Crished slate/planting T H ol
Ty 1% & +82024-03
A ; : !
& | 2
&3
E.
: sy gt 1200 *
L % | 4
Canc ramt e 2 D34 .
% g DOSBARTHWYD ER | SSUED FOR | CYNLLUNIO
02052024 D Iscaton indaalad

1 B i |. d
., Crushed g&e‘};mnxlng =
s
F2 q“g“ 5 Z;;;IAD - BWRIAD
o1 = eﬁ)}\ £
"D B B B E E | EE 0 0 E . N
= | s - ’ U f U ’_| SOUTH-WEST ELEVATION 8;1021 01

eg abed






R










Agenda Item 5.3

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 3

Application C23/0556/19/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 12/07/2023

Application Full

Type:

Community: Bontnewydd

Ward: Bontnewydd

Proposal: Development of 21 residential units comprising of 6 one-

bedroom flats, 12 two-bedroom flats and 3 three-bedroom
houses, along with associated landscaping and new
vehicular access.

Location:
Land at Cae Stanley, Bontnewydd, LL55 2UH

Summary of the
Recommendation: 1o reruse

Page 58


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=333638

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Description:

This is a full application for the construction of 21 residential units of which 6 are affordable
units, together with the provision of infrastructure, parking spaces and access. The site is an
agricultural green field and is within the development boundary of the village of Bontnewydd. As
part of the initial information submitted with the application, 21 residential units with 11 of the
units (50%) affordable were planned.

Reports and information were resubmitted during the application which confirmed the following:

12 buildings on the site forming 21 residential units (6 affordable units - 30%).

The 21 units will include 18 flats and 3 houses.

There will be 4 one-bedroom flats (2 persons), 8 two-bedroom flats (3 persons) and 3 open
market three-bedroom houses (5 persons) as well as 2 one-bedroom flats (2 persons) and 4
affordable two-bedroom flats (3 persons).

Provision of infrastructure to include removal of existing above ground electricity cables to
underground, flood basin within the site, bin/recycling storage for each house, estate road and
associated footpaths together with parking spaces for users/residents of the site.

Provision of a total of 32 parking spaces. 2 parking spaces for the three-bedroom houses, 1
parking space each for the two-bedroom houses and one-bedroom flats. 8 additional parking
spaces will be provided for visitors.

New access to be created off Lén Caeathro to adopted standards.

Set back the existing parking lay-by along Lén Caeathro and the southern boundary of the
housing estate by 0.5m and create a new footpath from the estate entrance and link it with a new
lay-by for 4 cars 50m to the east from the estate's proposed entrance.

Provision of amenity spaces within the site.

The site is located adjacent to L6n Caeathro and the Llwyn Beuno housing estate is located
opposite the proposed site. Currently, the site is an area of agricultural grazing land and the
agricultural land extends further eastwards where the "Gypsy Wood" Visitor and Play Centre is
located approximately 350 metres away. The whole site measures approximately 1 acre. The river
Beuno runs along the northern boundary with a corridor of mature trees growing along the river
bank and the site boundary. The land levels slope gradually from Lén Caeathro down to the river
Beuno.

The site is located within the Bontnewydd development boundary as included in the Anglesey
and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan, 2017 (LDP), with the site designated for 10
dwelling units within the plan. In order to support the application, the following documents were
submitted - Supporting Planning Statement, Design and Access Statement, Transport Statement,
Arboricultural Method Statement, Arboriculture Impact Assessment, Habitats Regulation
Assessment (HRA), Initial Ecological Report, Porosity Report, Drainage Strategy Statement,
Flooding Risk Assessment, Welsh Language Impact Statement, Housing Statement.

It was confirmed that the applicant has undertaken a pre-application consultation in accordance
with Article 1 of the Town and Country Planning Act (Development Control Procedure) (Wales)
(Amendment) 2016, as the proposal is a development that is defined as major. A Pre-application
Consultation Report (PAC) has been included with the application to reflect this consultation.
Although the development is one that is described as a major development, there is no need for an
Environmental Impact Assessment in relation to this development as it does not reach the
thresholds noted in Schedule 2, Regulation 2 (1) (infrastructure projects - (b) Urban development
projects) of the Act i.e. it does not involve erecting more than 150 houses and the site does not
measure more than 5ha.

Page 59



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

2.1

2.2

2.3

Relevant Policies:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of
Planning Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations
include National Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being goals within the Act. This
report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development
principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council has sought to
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.

Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-2026 (LDP) adopted 31 July
2017: -

PCYFF 1 - development boundaries

PCYFF 2 — development criteria

PCYFF 3 - design and place shaping

PCYFF 4 - design and landscaping

PCYFF 5 - carbon management

PCYFF 6 - water conservation

PS17 - settlement strategy

TAI 3 - housing in service villages

TAI 8 - an appropriate mix of housing

PS 16: Housing provision

TAI 15 threshold of affordable housing and their distribution
ISA 1 - infrastructure provision

ISA 5 - provision of open spaces in new housing developments
PS 1 - the Welsh language and culture

PS 4 - sustainable transport, development and accessibility

PS 5 — sustainable development

PS 19 - conserving and where appropriate enhancing the natural environment

TRA 2 - parking standards

Page 60



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

TRA 4 - managing transport impacts

AMG 5 - local biodiversity conservation

Gwynedd Design Guidance (2003)

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): Housing Mix

SPG: Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities
SPG: Planning Obligations

SPG: Affordable Housing

SPG: Housing Developments and Educational Provision

SPG: Open Spaces in New Housing Developments

2.4 National Policies:
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 - February 2024)

Letter from the Welsh Government's Minister for Climate Change, dated 11 October 2023
announcing an update to chapter 6 of Planning Policy Wales with immediate effect.

TAN 12: Design

TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh Language

3. Relevant Planning History:

3.1 This site has no relevant planning history.

4. Consultations:
Transportation I do not have an objection to the development; however, we will request the
Unit: following conditions:

e The access shall be laid out and constructed strictly in accordance with the
plan SCP/220728/D03 Rev. A contained within the Transport Statement.
e The access shall be constructed with visibility splays 2.4 metres by 43
metres on either side. Within the line of the visibility splays nothing more
than 1 metre above the level of the adjoining highways shall be allowed.
e The estate road(s) shall be kerbed and the carriageway and footways
finally surfaced and lit before the last dwelling on the estate is occupied or
within 2 years of the commencement of the work on the site or such any
other period as may be agreed in writing with the Local Plannin
p y be ag g g P age 61



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Authority, whichever is the sooner.

e The estate road and footways shall be surfaced to basecourse standard
before any dwellings which it serves are occupied.

e The car parking accommodation shall be completed in full accordance
with the details as submitted before the dwelling(s) is/are occupied.

Natural Resources  24/4/24 Observations
Wales:

Thank you for consulting with us on the additional information regarding
application C23/0556/19/LL. We have no additional observations to make and our
original response dated 08/08/2023 (see attachment for convenience) remains
relevant.

8/8/23 Observations

Thank you for consulting with Natural Resources Wales regarding the above,
received by us on 14/07/2023.

We have concerns regarding the application as submitted because insufficient
information has been provided to support the proposal. To overcome these
concerns, further consideration is required regarding foul drainage. We also advise
you should seek further information from the applicant regarding flood risk.
Further details are provided below.

We also advise that based on the information submitted to date, conditions
regarding protected sites should be attached to any planning permission granted.
We also advise that the report identified below (protected species section) should
be included in the condition identifying approved plans and documents. Without
the inclusion of these conditions and documents we would object to this planning
application.

Protected Sites

Foul Drainage

We note that the application site is within the catchment of the Afon Gwyrfai and
Llyn Cwellyn Special Area of Conservation (SAC). As you are aware, on 21
January 2021, we published an evidence package outlining phosphorus levels for
all river SACs across Wales. In accordance with our Planning Advice (July 2022),
under the Habitats Regulations, Local Authorities must consider the phosphorus
impact of proposed developments on water quality within river catchment areas of
SACs. Therefore, we advise you to consider whether the proposals, as submitted,
would increase the volume of foul drainage that is released from the site in
planning terms.

This application for the erection of 21 dwellings proposes connection of foul water
to the mains sewer. As such, we refer you to our Planning Advice and advise you
to seek further information from the applicant as identified in the section titled
‘What does this mean for development proposals involving connection to public
waste water treatment works’. We also note the submission of a Shadow Habitat
Regulations Assessment with the application.

Page 62



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Your Authority will need to take the above into account in your determination of
whether the development is likely to have a significant effect on the SAC. Should
you determine that an Appropriate Assessment is required, the Applicant will then
need to submit whatever evidence they deem appropriate (seeking advice from
consultants as may be necessary) to demonstrate no adverse effect on site
integrity. You should then consult us on your Appropriate Assessment under
Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as
amended).

Ultimately, the suitability of foul drainage arrangements for the proposed
development is a matter for your Authority to determine.

Pollution Prevention

The development site is located adjacent to a watercourse (Afon Beuno), which is
hydrologically connected to the Afon Gwyrfai and Llyn Cwellyn Site of Special
Scientific Interest (SSSI), which is part of the Afon Gwyrfai and LIyn Cwellyn
Special Area of Conservation (SAC). Our response to the statutory pre-application
consultation identified pollution as a potential pathway to the protected sites. The
use of standard pollution prevention guidelines was advised. To secure appropriate
mitigation measures, we advise that the following conditions set out below should
be attached to any planning permission for this development. Provided the
development is carried out in accordance with those conditions, we do not
consider that it will adversely affect the integrity of the SAC.

Condition 1: Protected Sites: Construction Environmental Management Plan No
development, including site clearance, shall commence until a site wide
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The CEMP should include:

» Construction methods: details of materials, how waste generated will be
managed

« General Site Management: details of the construction programme including
timetable, details of site clearance; Details of site construction drainage,
containments areas, appropriately sized buffer zones between storage areas (of
spoil, oils, fuels, concrete mixing and washing areas) and any watercourse or
surface drain.

* Details of a 15m buffer zone where practicable, to be maintained between the
development and Afon Beuno watercourse to ensure risk of disturbance is
minimised. * Biodiversity Management: details of tree and hedgerow protection;
invasive species

management; species and habitats protection, avoidance and mitigation measures
+ Soil Management: details of topsoil strip, storage and amelioration for re-use

» CEMP Masterplan: details of the extent and phasing of development; location of
landscape and environmental resources; design proposals and objectives for
integration and mitigation measures

* Control of Nuisances: details of restrictions to be applied during construction
including timing, duration and frequency of works; details of measures to
minimise noise and vibration from piling activities, for example acoustic barriers;
details of dust control measures; measures to control light spill and the
conservation of dark skies.

* Resource Management: details of fuel and chemical storage and containment;
details

of waste generation and its management; details of water consumption, wastewater

and energy use
Page 63



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

* Pollution Prevention: demonstrate how relevant Guidelines for Pollution
Prevention and best practice will be implemented, including details of emergency
spill procedures and incident response plan.

» Details of the persons and bodies responsible for activities associated with the
CEMP and emergency contact details

« Landscape/ecological clerk of works to ensure construction compliance with
approved plans and environmental regulations.

The CEMP shall be implemented as approved during the site preparation and
construction phases of the development.

Justification: A CEMP should be submitted to ensure necessary management
measures are agreed and implemented for the protection of the environment during
construction.

Mobile Features

We note the Arboricultural Impact Assessment submitted in support of the
application (Enfys Ecology, January 2023, Land Adj. Cae Stanley, Bontnewydd;
Arboricultural Assessment) recommends 4 category U trees for removal (as
referenced in section 5.3). Drawing number D.RTA.89.01-A within the AIA
illustrates these trees to be within the river corridor and not within the
development site boundary.

Mobile features of the Afon Gwyrfai SSSI/SAC including otters must be able to
continue to use the river corridor with minimal disturbance. We therefore advise
that trees along the river corridor should be maintained and not cleared as a result
of development. We advise the following condition should be attached to any
planning permission for this development:

Condition 2: Protected Sites: Landscape Scheme

No development shall commence until a Landscape Scheme has been submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The Landscape Scheme should
include:

e Details of existing habitats/trees and hedgerows on the site to be retained
and measures for their protection, remedial work and management

e Details of the extent, distribution and type of new planting * Details of
contingency measures should any trees or plants die, be removed or
become seriously damaged within 5 years of planting

The Landscape Scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

Justification: A Landscape Scheme should be submitted to ensure necessary
landscape and environmental management measures are agreed prior to
commencement and implemented to ensure the site’s landscape and environmental
features are adequately managed long-term. As the competent authority under the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), your
authority must, before deciding to give consent for a project which is likely to
have a significant effect on a SAC/SPA/Ramsar site, either alone or in
combination with other plans or projects, make an appropriate assessment of the
implications of the project for that site in view of its conservation objectives. You
must for the purposes of the assessment consult NRW and have regard to any

Page 64



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

representations we make within such reasonable time as you specify. In the
absence of that assessment, NRW cannot advise that the proposals would not
result in an adverse effect upon the SAC/SPA/Ramsar site.

Protected Species We note that the Preliminary Ecological Assessment (PEA)
Report submitted in support of the above application (Cambrian Ecology, 14
February 2023, Preliminary Ecological

Assessment, Land at Cae Stanley, Bontnewydd, Caernarfon, Proposed Residential
Development) states in section 5.2 ‘The protected species survey was negative,
with no field signs or direct sightings of any protected species recorded’.
However, it does highlight the following: 5.2.2 ‘The surrounding area contains
optimal foraging habitat for bats and the treeline and riparian corridor present at
the north of the site provides excellent habitat connectivity within the surrounding
area. As such is it deemed very likely that this treeline supports commuting bats at
the appropriate time of the year’ 5.2.5 ‘The proximal Afon Beuno and the nearby
Afon Gwyrfai are both highly likely to support otters at some point along their
courses. As such, it is deemed possible that otters may cross the proposed
development site when moving between water courses.’

In view of the above observations, the PEA recommends a precautionary
approach. NRW would advise the use of reasonable avoidance measures as
outlined in section 9. We advise the PEA is included as an approved document in
the condition identifying approved plans and documents.

Flood Risk

The planning application proposes a highly vulnerable development. The
application site is within Zone A of the Development Advice Map (DAM)
contained in TAN15 (2004). However, our Flood Map for Planning (FMfP)
identifies the application site to be partially within Zone 2 and 3 rivers.

An ordinary watercourse (Afon Beuno) flows along the northern boundary of this
application site. NRW provided advice on flood risk during the statutory pre-
application consultation

(dated 04/04/2023). However, since that time we have been made aware that the
Lead Local Flood Authority (Cyngor Gwynedd) are in the final stages of
completing a site-specific flood modelling exercise on Afon Beuno. The LLFA are
responsible for managing flood risk from ordinary watercourses and the exercise is
to inform possible flood alleviation measures for the ordinary watercourse
following the flooding experienced in the village during 2015.

A proportion of the application site is shown to be at flood risk from Afon Beuno.
However, it is noted and accepted that the dwellings, gardens, car parking and
estate roads appear to be elevated above the estimated flood levels. The submitted
Flood Consequence Assessment (Egniol, June 2023) is based on readily available
information and has not been informed by site specific hydraulic modelling; as
such no figures for freeboard have been quoted for the 1% (1 in 100) annual
exceedance probability flood event (plus allowance for climate change).

It is noted that the only element of the proposal within the flood zone is that of the
‘flood basin’ as shown on the drawings, we assume this to be the attenuation basin
associated with the surface water drainage arrangements. This will be inundated
by flooding and any flood borne debris may compromise the effectiveness of the
attenuation basin and outflow control devices. We would therefore advise that the
views of your colleagues acting in their capacity as the Lead Local Flood

Page 65



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Welsh Water:

Authority/SuDS Approval Body are sought.

However, our advice is that outputs from the LLFA modelling work should be
used to better inform the FCA/development and ensure that the development
proposed is acceptable and that it will not increase the risk to third parties. It is
therefore suggested that the FCA should be revised once the modelling work has
been finalised.

We reiterate that the authors should approach Cyngor Gwynedd acting in their
capacity as the LLFA to discuss the flood risk from this ordinary watercourse and
review the FCA. As such we would advise that we have concerns with the
proposal at this moment in time.

As it is a matter for your Authority to determine whether the risks and
consequences of flooding can be managed in accordance with TAN 15, we
recommend you consider consulting other professional advisers on matters such as
emergency plans, procedures and measures to address structural damage that may
result from flooding. Please note, we do not normally comment on the adequacy of
flood emergency response plans and procedures accompanying development
proposals, as we do not carry out these roles during a flood. Our involvement
during a flood emergency would be limited to delivering flood warnings to
occupants/users.

Land Contamination

We have reviewed the submitted document ‘Engineering Desk Study — Site at
Bontnewydd, Caernarfon. Soils and Structures, Project number: 20206, 5 July
2023’ and have no objection to the development with regards to land
contamination but provide the following advice. The treatment and disposal of
contaminated soils and groundwater is regulated by waste legislation and requires
an environmental permit. Excavated materials that are recovered via a treatment
operation can be re-used on-site under the CL:AIRE Definition of Waste:
Development Industry Code of Practice. This voluntary Code of Practice provides
a framework for determining whether or not excavated material arising from site
during remediation and/or land development works are waste. Developers should
ensure that all contaminated materials are adequately characterised both
chemically and physically, and that the permitting status of any proposed on-site
operations are clear. If in doubt, Natural Resources Wales should be contacted for
advice at an early

stage to avoid any delays. In addition to the planning conditions, Environmental
Permits from NRW may be required (during construction and operation) and we
recommend early consultation with the relevant permitting teams to ensure all
permits are in place prior to commencement of development.

We refer to your planning consultation relating to the above site, and we can
provide the following comments in respect to the proposed development.

In respect of the aforementioned planning application, we can confirm Welsh
Water have been previously informed of the proposed development and consulted,
as a ‘Specialist Consultee’, in accordance with Schedule 1C Article 2D of the
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Wales)

Page 66



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

(Amendment) Order 2016.

We note that our consultation response has been acknowledged within the
accompanying ‘Statement of Community Involvement’, prepared by Kingscrown
Group, which highlights that foul water flows can be accommodated at a specified
location within the public sewerage system, whereas surface water flows are
subject to Schedule 3 of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010. With respect
to latter, we acknowledge receipt of a ‘Proposed Surface Water Drainage Layout
Plan’ (Drawing No. ECL.9516.D.05.003 Rev. B) which appears to indicate
proposals to dispose surface water flows to the local watercourse and, in principle,
we offer no objection.

We can confirm capacity exists within the public sewerage network in order to
receive the domestic foul only flows from the proposed development site. The site
lies within the catchment of Llanfaglan WwTW which has a phosphate permit.
The WwTW is currently compliant with the existing phosphorous consent limit of
Img/l, and we can confirm there is capacity at the WwTW to accommodate foul
only flows from the proposed development. This matter will need to be
considered further by the local planning authority.

Notwithstanding this, if you are minded to grant planning consent for the above
development, we would request that the following Condition and Advisory Notes
are included within the consent to ensure no detriment to existing residents or the
environment and to Welsh Water's assets:

Condition:

Only foul water from the development site shall be allowed to discharge to the
public sewerage system and this discharge shall be made to manhole reference
numbers SH48602109 or SH48602108 as indicated on the extract of the Sewerage
Network Plan attached to this decision notice.

Housing  22/5/2024 Observations

Strategic _
Unit: In response to the Amended Housing Statement:

The Housing Statement notes the proposal to erect 21 units as a mixture of open market housing and
affordable housing (point 2.1).

They provide an analysis of the units (point 2.3), but only highlight 17 units. | would like to know the
size and type of the remaining 4 units.

The application does not specify which units would be affordable nor does it specify the number of
units that will be affordable. Neither does the application specify if these will be units to buy or rent.

Point 3.3 refers to the Local Housing Market Report by Countrywide, but | cannot see this report being
shared. The report states that 3500 applicants have registered in the last 6 months, but does not mention
which register they are referring to, nor what they have registered for. This number (3500) is
significantly higher than the data coming from the Housing Options Register and Tai Teg register and,
therefore, | question its validity.

Page 67



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Point 3.6 states that the majority of Bontnewydd households consist of 1 or 2 people, but does not state
if these individuals already live in 1 or 2 bedroom houses. The report does not state that the individuals
are under-occupying either, and therefore it would be difficult to agree with their conclusion that 1 and
2 bedroom units are in high demand in the area (open market housing).

Point 3.7 announces numbers on the Housing Options Register, which apply to the development of
social units. | see no reference in the application to the development of social units. The report notes
that data was received from the Housing Strategic Unit, but the Strategic Unit also shared affordable
(intermediate) housing need data from the Tai Teg register, which is shared below.

Here is the information given to the Developer, which indicates that there is no need for 1 bedroom

units:
Number of | Need asa % rent purchase
bedrooms
1 bed 0% 0% 0%
2 beds 28% 16% 13%
3 beds 60% 24% 36%
4+ beds 11% 5% 7%

From a more detailed analysis, it appears that the specific demand for flats is very low and not in line
with what is proposed to be developed

Fflat Ty Byngalo
Stafell
gwely 2|13 (4)11] 2 3 |4 23 |4
Rhentu o|1|ofjo|l14 ]| 204 oflolo
Prynu olo|lofjo|l 11|32 |8 olo]o
1/3/2024 Observations

1| Information about need:

The following indicates the number of applicants who
wish to live in the area:-

84 options on the Tai Teg register for intermediate
properties

Data source:

Tai Teg

Observations:

** The figures
cauld be | o

~ N~

rage oo




PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

287 applicants from the Common Housing Register

Cyngor Gwynedd’s

duplicated **

Number of social bedrooms

(Housing Options Team)

Number of

bedrooms Need as a %
1 bed 28%

2 beds 41%

3 beds 23%

4 beds 6%

5 beds 2%

Cyngor Gwynedd’s
Common Housing
Register

waiting list for social property Common Housing
Register
2| Information on the type of need: Data source:
The following shows the number of bedrooms that
the applicants wish to have:
Number of intermediate bedrooms (owned or
part-owned)
Number of Tai Teg
bedrooms Need as a %
1 bed 0% ** The figures
2 beds 30% could be
duplicated **
3 beds 61%
4+ beds 10% )
| question the

accuracy  of
data on need

within the
Planning
Statement
(para 6.32 -
6.24) and the
Housing
Statement
(para 3.7),
which are now
over a year
old, nor do |
consider  that

individuals can
register a need
for1,2,3o0r4
bedrooms, and
therefore  be
counted twice.
The figures are
not unique and

Page 69




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

therefore
cannot be
accumulated.

3| Suitability of the Plan:

Based on the above information it appears that the | It is expected that plans include 30%
Plan:- of affordable housing.

Partially satisfies

the need in the area

4/4/2023 Observations

The housing need data as of March 2023 is as follows (please be advised that numbers can duplicate
between datasets):

Number of applicants on the Housing Register for Social Housing: 298

Number of beds Need as a %
1 bed 27%

2 beds 40%

3 beds 23%

4 beds 8%

5 beds 1%

Number of applicants on the Tai Teg Register for Intermediate Housing: 84

Number of

bedrooms Need as a %
1 bed 0%

2 beds 32%

3 beds 58%

4+ beds 10%

Page 70



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

While we welcome the prospect of quality affordable housing, it is not clear if they are intended to be
Social or Intermediate units. If they are intended to be social units, | would ask whether or not you have
held any talks with a Registered Social Landlord?

The DAS Vision Statement states that the development will be a mix of market and affordable for sale
or rent. We value the importance of getting the right mix of units in a development and so | would ask
what mix of market / affordable units is proposed, and whether you have considered including some 3
bed units, as there also seems to be a healthy demand. The proposal does not seem to include any
financial / unit cost for the properties. When available, this would assist us to identify an affordable
price for the units.

I should also note that your Housing Statement references data for Bethesda (3.1 and 3.2) rather than
Bontnewydd. While this may be a typing error, | would urge you to verify the correct information has
been incorporated.

During 2021, 67% of households in Bontnewydd were deemed to be priced out of the market.

Language and
Scrutiny Unit,
Democracy and
Language Services

1/5/2024 Observations

In order for the Unit to provide a fair and balanced view of the application, we
encourage the applicant to use the latest data now available from the 2021 Census,

and include a more detailed analysis, for example, by age groups for the study area.
Consideration should be given to resubmitting the updated assessment before
submitting the application to Committee. The Assessment conclusion cannot be
justified without current evidence.

6/9/2023 Observations

In order for the Unit to provide a fair and balanced view of the application, we
encourage the applicant to use the latest data now available from the 2021 Census,
and include a more detailed analysis, for example, by age groups for the study area.
Consideration should be given to resubmitting the updated assessment before
submitting the application to committee.

A great deal of emphasis is given in the document on the "need" for units in the
local area as justification. Although the residents would come from the surrounding
area, the development still leads to the adding to the housing stock, and therefore to
an increase in population in the ward. There is also no guarantee that residents
would come from the Bontnewydd area only. That does not seem to be considered
in the statement. Recognising that the developer has no control or responsibility for
the indirect and subsequent impact, it would have been expected to see a reference
to the cumulative impact and potential side effects.

It would also be good to consider the cumulative impact of this development, and
particularly the potential impact on local services and the school, as a result of other
recent developments —that have either been granted and have been developed or are
underway — in the surrounding area (Bontnewydd, Caeathro, Dinas). There is a
possibility of a significant increase in the population of the area in a short period of

Page 71



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

time, which could have an impact on demographics and the Welsh language. There
should be evidence that the developer has communicated with the Council's
Education Department to discuss potential side effects on Ysgol Bontnewydd as a
result of reorganisation plans.

Gwynedd Thank you for consulting us on the above application. Having reviewed the area of

Archaeological proposed works with reference to the regional Historic Environment Record

Planning Service: (HER), I have determined that there is a potential for archaeological impact and
would like to draw you attention to the comments below.

The proposed development is for the erection of 21 residential units on land
adjacent to Cae Stanley, a dwelling located on the north-eastern extent of
Bontnewydd. The land comprises undeveloped grassland, with historic mapping
showing both earlier field systems as well as structures on the southern boundary,
itself noted as Cae Stanley.

Bontnewydd and the surrounding landscape has been subject to a variety of
archaeological investigation over recent years, including the connecting
Caernarfon by-pass, which identified a plethora of previously unidentified
archaeological remains. The village itself has medieval origins on and around afon
Gwyrfai, which is typical for most settlements providing access to water and
materials. Whilst the core expansion of the village took place in the post medieval
period, there is likely medieval origins. Several proposed Roman roads run
through the centre of the village, along with peripheral prehistoric remains
throughout the locale.

Lidar data for the site suggests a possible mound on the western part of the field,
however it is difficult to be certain. Street-side imagery confirms the topography
of the field to be variable, and whilst the earthworks could relate to natural
geology, the feature is not dissimilar from prehistoric sites of similar size and
shape.

Regardless, if the authority is minded to grant permission, the proposed
development falls within a landscape of moderate archaeological potential, with
known medieval and post medieval activity in the locale. Despite the relatively
limited scope of the proposals, the sub-surface soil profiles at the site are
unknown, and similar mitigation in the locality has proved that archaeology can
exist at varying depths. As such a programme of mitigation should be undertaken
to ensure no archaeological deposits are unduly lost or destroyed without
appropriate measures.

Water and With reference to the above site this unit is in the process of building a detailed
Environment Unit:  flood model for this area as part of a flood risk management plan for Bontnewydd.
The model will show a more detailed flood outline for the area of the development
and also consider the impact of having a barrier at the mouth of the nearby culvert

Page 72



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

(i.e. lower side of Lén Caeathro) on the Beuno and its floodplain. We are in
discussion with NRW about the results of the model but hope to have it completed
within the next few weeks. Our feeling is that flood risk to the site may be higher
than is suggested in the FCA submitted and given this, would it be reasonable to
wait until the model is ready until comments are made on this application?

As our NRW colleagues would normally comment on flooding issues in zone
C1/C2 or Z2/Z3 | have copied them into this message.

Biodiversity Unit: ~ 27/09/23 Observations

| visited the site today and found Himalayan balsam growing along the edges of
the field and Japanese knotweed on the river boundary (see photographs below).
The field is a grassland habitat of high biodiversity importance and qualifies as a
meadow habitat listed by the Welsh Government under section 7 of the
Environment Act (Wales) 2016 as a habitat of biodiversity importance. The
grassland contains botanical species: birds-foot trefoil, sorrel, common bentgrass,
Sheep’s fescue, knapweed, red clover, yarrow, cats-ear, ribwort plantain,
Imperforate St John’s-wort, chickory, perrenial rye-grass, white clover, meadow
buttercup, common vetch, lesser trefoil and creeping soft grass.

The ecological survey was undertaken in February at a time of year when many
plants are dormant especially non-native invasive species such as Himalayan
balsam and Japanese knotweed and difficult to identify and birds and animals are
also dormant. Ecology report says that there are patches of bramble and
blackthorn.

* Reptile survey required

The document to inform the Habitats Regulations process (SHRA) has been
produced to a good standard. However | have some queries.

Possible impacts

+ Certain impact would be the loss of 3010 square meters (3 hectares) of meadow
habitat which is important to Welsh biodiversity.

» Bats and lighting, this can be mitigated through sensitive external lighting.
Details and lighting maps required before determination.

» Potential harm to reptiles & loss of reptile habitat — reptile surveys required and
mitigation strategy required before determination.

» Futher ecological surveys for non-native invasive plant species, updated
botanical & habitat survey.

» Pollution to Afon Beuno and subsequently Afon Gwyrfai during construction —

Page 73



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

pollution prevention plan and CEMP required before determination.

« Eutrophication of Afon Gwyrfai SAC, required further confirmation from Dwr
Cymru & NRW

» Fragmentation of the river corridor — green infrastructure

Ecological & Biodiversity Concerns:

1. Loss of a significant area of section 7 habitat (meadow) — significant
biodiversity impact.

2. Development by river. Rivers are important ecological corridors and should be
enchanced for nature and wildlife. Developments & constructions with
hardstandings near rivers compromise the functionality of the river corridor. |
recommend that the development layout plans be amend to ensure that the future
of the river corridor is not fragmented.

3. Grassland at the site appears to be semi-improved but the survey was carried out
in the winter, when many plants are still dormant and difficult to identify. Further
surveys required.

4. The River (Afon Beuno) is a tributary of Afon Gwyrfai designated as an SAC.
The applicant must provide a Construction Environmental Plan and Pollution
Prevention Plan before the application to determine that the building of the
proposal will not cause pollution.

5. The houses would connect to the public sewer for Llanfaglan WTW which
discharges into the Afon Gwyrfai. Sewage contains phosphate and nitrates which
will cause nutrient enrichment of habitats, this can be damaging especially for
habitats such as rivers, lakes and bogs. Household sewage is treated at The
Llanfaglan Waste Water Treatment Works to remove the majority of these
nutrients and chemicals. The Llanfaglan WTW is licensed by NRW to discharge
into the River Gwyrfai at 1mg/litre, but it is expected that NRW will soon be
reducing the phosphate limit of the licence to 0.7mg/litre. DWr Cymru need to
confirm that they have the capacity to take and process the sewage from this
development.

In summary, | object to this proposal due to the impact it would have on
biodiversity due to the loss of a meadow and compromising the river corridor
(green infrastructure). | also require further surveys & information.

Trees Department  Arboricultural report: this has been completed to a good standard, however an
arboricultural method statement (AMS) is required (as advised in the report) to
demonstrate how the tree protection measures will be implemented during
development, particularly in areas where RPA incursion is proposed. A site
arboriculturist is required to be appointed to oversee development and ensure the
AMS is followed.

Page 74



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Tree amenity wise, despite losses of Cat U. / C. trees, the overall arboricultural
value of the site should be retained and possibly improved if all of the proposed
tree planting is successful. It may be expedient to protect retained trees and trees
which will be planted for mitigation via TPO to ensure their longevity following
development works.

Tree biodiversity wise, the woodland along the north and west of the development
boundary is of high environmental value, acting as a corridor for wildlife and
supporting the riverbank. This will ultimately be degraded when dead standing
trees are removed and activity within the vicinity increases as a result of the
development. The future use of this development is also likely cause disturbance
(light, noise, litter) and potentially result in further tree removal due to nuisance
issues (proximity to property). Again, securing the longevity of trees via TPO
should albeit this potential degradation providing it is expedient to do so

Public A notice was posted in the press and on the site (x2) and nearby residents were
Consultation: informed. Observations have been received stating the following:

e While there is a need for housing, there is no need for this number of flats.
We would be more supportive if there was more family housing in the
development. As for the new information that has been submitted with the
application | believe there is room to properly challenge this.

e Having considered the new information received, Bontnewydd
Community Council remains of the view that the mix of units is
unsuitable for a rural village such as Bontnewydd.

e We are of the view that there are too many one-bedroom units as part of
the development, and that the various units have been compressed very
close together.

e We have concerns about potential flooding at the site as a result of the
river nearby.

e Concerns regarding excessive traffic and nearby road parking with more
houses proposed are exacerbating the situation.

5. Assessment of the material planning considerations:
The principle of the development

5.1 The site is located within the Bontnewydd development boundary (identified as a Service
Village) as noted in the Joint Local Development Plan and the site is allocated specifically for
housing in the Plan (T60 - Land adjacent to Pont Glan Beuno). Based on this, the principle of
developing the site for residential units is considered against Policy PCYFF 1 and Policy TAI 3 of
the LDP.

5.2 Criterion 3 of Policy PCYFF 2 states that proposals should make the most efficient use of land,
including achieving densities of a minimum of 30 housing units per hectare for residential
developments. Policy TAI 3 states that an estimated 10 units will be provided on this site. The
plan is to deliver 21 new units. Based on this figure, it is considered that the proposal to provide
this amount would be substantially higher than what is noted in the policy.

Page 75



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

53 The indicative level of housing for Bontnewydd over the Plan period, as noted in Appendix 5 of
the Joint Local Development Plan, is 40 units (including a 10% 'slippage allowance', which
means that the method of calculating the figure has taken into account potential unforeseen
circumstances which could influence the provision of housing, e.g. land ownership matters,
infrastructure restrictions, etc.). During the period between 2011 and 2023, a total of 32 units
have been completed in Bontnewydd. The windfall land bank, i.e., sites with extant planning
permission on sites not designated for housing, in April 2023, was 1 unit.

54 The other designation for housing in the plan, namely the Glanrafon Estate in Bontnewydd (T59),
has been completed and the figures have been included in the above information. Since the site
subject to this application is an allocation (T60) in the Plan, the number of units estimated on the
site (i.e. 10 units - in Policy TAI 3) falls under the 'housing allocations without consent'. In
considering all of the above information jointly, please note that this additional provision of 11
units exceeds the estimate figure noted in the Plan, which means a housing provision in
Bontnewydd that is higher than the figure conveyed in the Policy.

55 In such circumstances, consideration will be given to the units that have been completed thus far
within the Villages and Clusters tier. Policy PS 17 in the Plan states that 25% of housing growth
will be located within Villages, Clusters and Open Countryside. A survey of the situation in
relation to provision within all the Villages, Clusters and Open Countryside in April 2022
indicates that 1,565 units from the total of 1,953 units have been completed, and 592 are in the
land bank (and are likely to be completed).

5.6 Currently therefore, as the settlement will see its expected growth level based on this proposal
together with the units already completed during the Plan's lifespan and what is in the current
land bank, justification will be needed with the application outlining how the proposal would
address the needs of the local community. This could be done by: - (i) submitting any marketing
research they have undertaken i.e. showing there is a need for this type of development in the
area; (ii) that the proposal meets a recognised need for affordable housing; (iii) that the proposal
provides for specialist housing needs e.g. units for the elderly; (iv) the units in the land bank are
unlikely to be developed in the lifespan of the Plan.

5.7 In response to this requirement, the applicant submitted a Housing Statement containing the
following information:-

e There is a high demand for one- and two-bedroom houses in Bontnewydd.

o 309 applicants are waiting for one-bedroom and two-bedroom intermediate and affordable
housing for rent.

e 136 applicants are on the waiting list for three-bedroom intermediate and affordable housing for
rent.

o Demand for houses of four-bedrooms or more is very low in Bontnewydd.

e Demand is 602% more for 1&2 bedroom units than what it is for 4 bedrooms while demand for 1
& 2 bedroom housing is 134% greater than that for 3 bedroom housing.

e 3 out of the 21 (or 25%) houses on the site are 3 bedroom houses.

o Following recent changes to the benefits system, tenants are now being penalised as a result of an
empty bedroom tax. As a result, tenants are looking to move into smaller homes.

e This will then enable under-occupied housing to be released for families who need 3/4 or more
bedrooms in Gwynedd.

e The one- and two-bedroom flats and houses that are part of this application will attract
individuals/families affected by the "empty bedroom tax".

5.8 In response to the above information, the Local Planning Authority notes the following:

Page 76



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

¢ Not enough information has been provided for the need for one- and two-bedroom flats.

e There is no specific evidence from local estate agents about any waiting lists for this type of open
market units in the area.

e It must therefore be considered whether the evidence submitted by the applicant for a general
need for one- and two-bedroom units is sufficient to justify granting permission for 11 additional
units in Bontnewydd, which would mean increasing the figure conveyed in the Policy.

5.9 In response to the above observations, additional information was submitted by the applicant
stating:

e A local market housing report by "Countrywide" states there is high demand for flats and housing
for rental and sale properties.

e 3500 applicants on the waiting list within the County with 11% being first-time buyers.

e Shortcomings within the Planning system to free up more land for Construction within the last 12
months are increasing the demand for Building more houses.

e High demand for rented housing with 9% of housing stock on the current market representing
tenure and similar properties.

e Census data continues to show three-bedroom dwelling houses are the most prominent type of
housing in Bontnewydd.

o Gwynedd Housing Strategy April 2024 notes 219 people on the register. 198 people show the
need for 1/2 bedrooms.

5.10 The key issue here is that the proposal, cumulatively with the current land bank and land
designations for housing developments in Bontnewydd, involves a level of development that
would be above the indicative demand for residential units during the LDP period. Therefore, the
Local Planning Authority must be convinced that this intention would help to meet the needs of
the local community (see paragraph 5.6 above).

5.11  Itis noted that information was received from local estate agents and the applicant himself and a
reference to the current situation is expected and how it would affect the need mentioned by the
estate agents and the applicant, i.e. (i) The statements state that 3500 applicants have registered
for housing in the last 6 months and that several of the applicants are first-time buyers. Therefore,
there is a need for one- and two-bedroom flats. It is also noted that only 9% of houses on the
market today are available for long-term rent. Despite this, there are weaknesses in the validity of
the data presented here, as there is no reference to which register is being referred to, nor for
what, nor the number of bedrooms these applicants have registered for. The Local Planning
Authority questions the figure of 3500 as this figure is significantly higher than the data coming
from the Council's Housing Options Register and Tai Teg register and is therefore not a fair
reflection of the current situation (ii) the applicant refers to information off the Housing Options
register which is relevant to the development of social units. There is no reference in the
application or within any plan that social units are being developed as part of the proposal. It is
also noted that no valid information has been submitted to prove the need for affordable units
with information from the Housing Strategic Unit showing there is no need for one- and two-
bedroom affordable (intermediate) flats within the village of Bontnewydd; (iii) the applicant
states that specific housing is needed for 1 or 2 persons, with Bontnewydd households including
similar properties within the village. There is no evidence to show if these individuals already live
in one- or two-bedroom houses and whether there is under-occupation which, therefore, makes it
difficult to agree with the conclusion that there is a demand for one- and two-bedroom units in
this area; (iv) analysis of the current land bank shows that developments within the lifespan of

Page 77



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

the plan include the Glanrafon housing estate for 26 houses occupied by the local community for
open market housing and affordable housing.

5.12  Taking into account the above assessment, the Local Planning Authority has not been
undoubtedly convinced that the applicant has justified the provision of 11 additional residential
units within the plan and that there is a real need for 18 units for one- and two-bedroom flats,
therefore, it is not believed that the proposal meets the needs of the local community in
accordance with Policy TAI 8. To this end, it is believed that the proposal is contrary to the
requirements of Policies PS 17 and TAI 1 of the LDP.

Affordable Housing Matters

5.13  As part of the initial information submitted as part of the application, a Housing Statement was
submitted by the applicant along with a Planning Statement. This information only stated:

e The proposal to provide 11 affordable units (which is more than 50% of units on the whole site)

e There was little information about partnerships with a Social Housing Landlord, only a reference
mentioning there will be a partnership at some point in the future and that a grant from the Welsh
Government and Cyngor Gwynedd would help fund the project.

e There was lack of information and assurance in the information submitted in the form of: 1. There
was no information on the type, tenure and location of affordable housing provision 2. There was
no mention of links with any Social Housing Landlord 3. Lack of information about the costs or
rent levels of affordable units; 4. Lack of information about the timing of construction of the
affordable homes.

5.14  There has been regular dialogue with the developer during the application and in response to the
above information the Local Planning Authority noted the following:

e Confirmation was received in an e-mail from the developer on 28/3/24 confirming that no
partnership with any local Housing Association had been established.

e There were inconsistencies in the information provided in the assessments that have been
submitted, due to the total number of units on location.

e Itis not entirely clear what the exact division is between the affordable and open market units. It
is therefore difficult to assess if the proposal meets relevant needs e.g. are the affordable units all
of the same type or is there a mix of social, intermediate and open market?

e No comments on the affordability of the units have been submitted as no open market valuation
has been submitted.

5.15 In response to the references made by the Planning Authority when mentioning the inconsistent
information, statements were received in an e-mail from the applicant stating that the original
plan was to provide 100% affordable housing on the site. But over time, the number has dropped
to 50% affordable housing (11 units) and by the time the latest revised information was received,
it is intended to provide 30% affordable housing on site (6 units in total in the form of 2 one-
bedroom flats and 4 two-bedroom flats).

5.16  As the developer has confirmed that 6 affordable units will be constructed on the site, this would
comply with the requirements of Policy TAI 15 of the LDP regarding the thresholds of affordable
housing and their distribution.

5.17  Following discussions as part of the application planning process, revised information was
submitted rectifying the information initially obtained as part of the application. Hovig\éeae

/8



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

deficiencies remain part of the application as the applicant has not provided an open market
valuation for the site nor for affordability at intermediate level. Therefore, based on a lack of
information, it is difficult for officers of the Council's Housing unit to assess the real affordability
of the residential units for the site. However, should this application be approved, considering the
type and size of affordable units that can be provided on site, it would be possible to agree on a
discount for the affordable housing by means of a planning condition.

Housing Mix

5.18 In order to promote sustainable mixed communities, Policy TAI 8 states that proposals will need
to show that they improve the balance of housing and will meet the needs noted for the entire
community. For example, proposals would have to provide an element of affordable housing;
contribute to compensating for the lack of balance in local housing markets; ensure the correct
mix of the types of tenures of housing to meet existing community needs and make provisions for
specific housing needs.

5.19 Inthis case, and as reiterated in the above assessment, the Local Planning Authority has not been
undoubtedly convinced that this current proposal meets the need for this type of small units in the
form of one- and two-bedroom flats. The Housing Strategic Unit is not convinced that adequate
information has been provided as part of the application and proved that there is a need for one-
bedroom units, and insufficient evidence has been received confirming why an increase in these
numbers of flats in Bontnewydd is necessary. Such a proposal, if granted, could create an
imbalance in the type and mix of small units within the village. To this end, therefore, it is
believed that the proposal would be contrary to criterion 2, 3, 4 and 5 of Policy TAI 8 of the LDP.

Visual amenities

5.20  The area is mainly a residential area with a mix of houses in terms of form, age, construction and
design. The existing construction within the site catchment area consists of individual and
terraced housing with the structure of Ysgol Bontnewydd not far from the site together with a
listed structure in the form of Siloam Chapel located approximately 300m south of the site.

5.21  The site is prominent in this part of the streetscape located on a green field on the side of L6n
Caeathro with the "Gypsy Wood" visitor and play centre just east of the site along with
Bontnewydd football pitches located approximately 350m to the east. The main building
materials that are common to the surrounding area are dwellings of clean red brickwork, natural
slate, smooth and rough render and pebble-dash along with a number of dwellings in the form of
terraced houses in the centre of the village constructed of local stone. The design principles of the
proposed building are set out as follows: -

a) Scale - the site is prominently situated on the side of the class Il county road between
Bontnewydd and Caeathro. The land descends gradually to afon Beuno which consists of a
corridor of mature trees growing along the banks of the river and the northern boundaries of the
site. As noted above, the land has been designated for 10 units within the LDP and it is intended
to build 12 new buildings on the site which will be a mixture of 3 individual houses and 18
residential flats. The height of the proposed two-storey buildings will be similar in nature and feel
to the residential buildings seen within an adjacent housing estate, namely the Llwyn Beuno
Estate and also within the village itself. The scale of the buildings in terms of size is considered
acceptable.

Page 79



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

b) Design - the design concept is to create a residential development that has a modern feel to it
with finishes of various contemporary materials and the design reflects the dwellings within the
village. The brick and rendered finish will create a smooth appearance that is sympathetic to the
vernacular feel of the village itself.

The dwellings will feature varieties of gable ends with a few porches on the front of the dwellings
to add character and variety to the appearances. As part of the discussions with the application,
some concern was raised regarding movement within and across the site along with the
accessibility of the site for wheelchair-users. Note the different levels across the site and no
disabled parking spaces have been designated. An enquiry was also made about the treatment and
cross-section levels of the northern boundary abutting the river with the retaining wall extending
along the northern boundary. This information was not received but it is considered that a
condition may be imposed to agree on the levels and treatment of the northern boundary should
the application be granted.

c) Layout — the site is situated within a village context with the site evident on the side of the road
when travelling from Bontnewydd to Caeathro. The site is set on a specific site near the village
roundabout with good road links to Caernarfon to the north and then to Porthmadog and Pwllheli
to the south. The row of front houses will be clearly set from the road where the slope to the river
leading to the houses within the estate would be less prominent.

Ch) Landscaping - it is intended to undertake landscaping work around the building and on the
edges of the site which includes soft landscaping (plants and trees) and hard landscaping (paths
and walls) and the purpose of landscaping is to create private amenity spaces for prospective
residents and contribute towards the quality of the development. There will also be a flood basin
located in the western corner of the site. It is noted from the consultation with the Trees Unit that
there is concern regarding the corridor of trees along the boundary of the site and the banks of the
nearby afon Beuno. The Trees officer notes that a more detailed examination is needed of the
impact of the development on these trees with the risk of loss of vegetation and the flora and
fauna which are important for the wildlife of the area. The officer notes that an assessment to
protect the trees in the long-term would be required to assess the value of the trees to preserve and
protect this corridor of trees for the future.

5.22 It is acknowledged that there are concerns about the design and lack of information about the
levels and treatment of the northern boundary and, should other elements of this application have
been acceptable, further dialogues would have been held to resolve these concerns or planning
conditions on any approved application would have been imposed to resolve these concerns
before commencing any work on the site. With significant concerns regarding issues relating to
housing figure considerations, affordability and mix of housing, the LPA did not ask for further
details regarding design until other issues from the application were resolved.

General and residential amenities

5.23  As referred to above, residential dwellings are located to the south and north of the application
site. A number of objections were received as a result of the public consultation process. Mainly,
and from an amenities perspective, the concerns relate to transport matters, flooding and housing
mix. The element of housing considerations and flooding matters is discussed in another part of
this report but, based on the impact of traffic movements, loss of parking spaces and overall
impact on the amenities of nearby residents as a result of this development, the following is

noted: Page 30



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

e While the proposed development would see an increase in the number of vehicles using Lon
Caeathro from this estate, the biggest increase is anticipated during busy hours in the morning and
during the afternoon. The travel assessment completed by the consultant assumes there will be 10
two-way trips during the peak hours of the morning with 8 two-way trips during the busiest hours
of the afternoon resulting from the proposed residential development (i.e. occasionally during the
day). As the frequency of traffic coming and going from the site is so low, it is not believed that
granting this application would produce a substantial or significant increase in the intensity of
transport (and associated noise disturbance) that will use Lén Caeathro.

e Asitis intended to build a housing estate on an existing field then it is inevitable that there will
be some inconvenience and disruption to local residents while construction is underway. It would
however be possible to impose a condition on the permission to limit the hours of construction
work and to submit and agree on a construction method statement.

5.24  In light of the above it is not considered that the proposal would have a material adverse effect on
the amenities of the local neighbourhood and the proposal is considered acceptable in terms of
criterion 7 of policy PCYFF 2 of the LDP.

Transport and access matters

5.25 A Transport Statement was submitted with the application, which concluded that transport levels
that may derive from the development would be acceptable on the grounds of road safety along
with the safety of road users. It is intended to create a new access on the southern part of the site
with a new additional lay-by for 4 cars located approximately 50m to the east which will include
a footpath linking the site to the new lay-by. The existing lay-by will be set back 0.5m from the
existing road to improve visibility from the access of the Cae Stanley site. With this stretch of
road now at 20mph along with the changes to the lay-by to the west of the site access, it is
considered that there are no concerns in terms of the visibility of the access to this housing estate.
It is also intended to create 32 parking spaces which include 4 visitor spaces within the site.

5.26  In response to the statutory consultation process, the Transportation Unit has no objection to the
application based on road safety and accessibility of the site, subject to the inclusion of relevant
conditions/notes. To this end, therefore, it is believed that the proposal complies with the
requirements of Policies TRA 2 and TRA 4 of the LDP.

Drainage and Flooding Issues

5.27  Following the statutory notification period an objection was received on the basis that the Flood
Map for Planning showed that the site was partly within Zones 2 and 3 rivers.
Following the process of submitting a pre-application enquiry, the applicant received advice on
flood risks for this site, but in the meantime, Cyngor Gwynedd is in the final stages of completing
site-specific flood modelling exercises on Afon Beuno to inform potential flood mitigation
measures following a flooding event in the village during 2015.

5.28  The applicant has submitted a Porosity Report along with a Flood Risk Assessment with this
application which explains the system of disposing surface and foul water from the application
site. As required on estate applications of similar residential housing, it is expected to submit a
water conservation statement. This document was not received.

Page 81



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.29  The reports received state that the surface water disposal system can be designed to comply with
the requirements of a Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS) with the foul water disposed of by
connecting to the existing sewerage network.

In accordance with the current statutory requirements, surface water run-off from the site will be
limited to the speed of existing greenfield surface water and the majority of the existing drainage
system will be renewed with a new drainage system. The Drainage Statement states that there will
be a reduction in surface water run-off from the site as well as the inclusion of water attenuation
areas and surface water storage within the site itself, together with use of the flood basin in the
western corner of the site. This basin will also act as a basin in mitigating the risk of flooding
from the nearby afon Beuno.

530 NRW and the Water and Environment Unit were consulted on the flooding matter. NRW
confirmed that the flood basin, which also acts as a surface water slowing basin, increases the risk
of flooding on the site. During periods of heavy rainfall in times of flooding, any flood-borne
debris can compromise the effectiveness of the slowing basin and the external flow control
devices. As referred to above, the Land Drainage Department is in the process of constructing a
detailed flood model for this particular area, and it is considered that the existing data submitted
as part of the Flood Statement to this application is not up-to-date with assumptions. It is
considered that flooding to the site may be significantly higher than what is suggested in the
information submitted as part of the application. When considering responses from Natural
Resources Wales and the Council's Drainage Unit, it is considered that the developer will have to
submit a flood management plan containing data from the flood model referred to above.
Therefore, it is considered that the information is premature and the revised report will have to
include the correct data from the flood model before determining the application.

5.31 Taking into account the above assessment, without the current flood information included in the
flood report that has been received as part of the application, it is not believed that flooding and
site drainage matters can be effectively managed. The proposal is, therefore, considered to be
contrary to the requirements of Policies ISAL, PS2, PCYFF6 and PS5 of the LDP together with
the requirements of NCT15.

Biodiversity and Trees Issues

5.32 A Preliminary Ecology Report and Trees Assessment were submitted which confirm that the
comprehensive composition of the site is of negligible ecological value and species importance.
In response to the statutory consultation process the Biodiversity Unit states that further study
relating to protected species and the impact of light on these habitats is needed along with reptile
reports before any decision is made. There was also concern from the trees officer regarding the
loss of a corridor of trees along the northern boundary of the site as part of the development. It
was noted that this area of trees plays an important role in maintaining local wildlife habitats and
special species. It was recommended to submit revised site plans indicating the role of the river
and green corridor along the northern boundary integrated as part of the development and these
details would be necessary before a final decision was made on the application.

5.33  On 7 February 2024, the Welsh Government published an update to Chapter 6 of Planning Policy
Wales (PPW), which deals with green infrastructure, net worth to biodiversity, the protection
afforded to Sites of Special Scientific Interest and trees and woodlands. Although it is considered
that such a statement was not required as part of the initial information to the application, it is
required with applications since the announcement by the Welsh Government to submit such
statements. Although the council reminded the developer about the information, no statement has
been submitted. To this end, on the basis of a lack of information relating to the protected species

Page 82



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

and wildlife of the site together with the fact that there is no Green Infrastructure Statement which
explains how the proposal addresses ensuring net benefit for Biodiversity and the protection of
Trees and Woodlands of the site, it is considered that the proposal is contrary to the requirements
of Policy AMG 5, PS19 of LDP and the new requirements of Chapter 6 of version 12 of Planning
Policy Wales (October 2023).

5.34  In accordance with the Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, the Council is required to
undertake a Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) and Appropriate Assessment. Under the
provisions of the regulations, the Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to consult with
Natural Resources Wales when it undertakes an appropriate assessment for a new plan or project,
and is required to consider any representations made by NRW to show that this particular
proposal, together with the cumulative and joint impact of permitting other developments within
the area, would not undermine the designation of the SAC and SSSI.

5.35  The applicant has provided a Shadow Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA) which concludes
that the SAC will not be affected. No full assessment has been undertaken by the Council's
Biodiversity Unit, but initial comments (based on lack of information) have identified a potential
adverse impact this development may have on the integrity of the Afon Gwyrfai and Llyn
Cwellyn Special Area of Conservation (SAC). Without receiving this further information, it is not
possible to conclude that there would be no significant impact on the Special Area of
Conservation.

5.36 It is also noted that Natural Resources Wales has made representations regarding other protected
species and raised the concern of a potential impact of pollution risks to the water environment
that would arise from the proposed development.
The foul water of this development would flow to the Llanfaglan sewerage system with a permit
to discharge into afon Gwyrfai which has been designated as a Special Area of Conservation.

5.37  Since 2021, phosphorus levels in Welsh rivers have been being strictly monitored, with afon
Gwyrfai being one of them.
For some time now there has been uncertainty regarding the capacity of Llanfaglan sewerage
treatment plant to accept and process more foul water from housing developments such as the one
in question on this site. However, following a second consultation with Welsh Water at the end of
April 2024, confirmation was received that the Llanfaglan Sewerage system has the capacity to
accept foul water from this development.

5.38  Although the confirmation was received from Welsh Water regarding foul water drainage,
without the further information responding to the comments relating to protected species by
NRW and the Biodiversity Unit, Ecological concerns remain with this development and therefore
the proposal is contrary to Policies PS 19 and AMG 5 of the LDP.

The Welsh Language

5.39 A Welsh Language Impact Assessment was submitted with the application in accordance with the
requirements of Policy PS1 of the LDP, along with advice included in the SPG: Maintaining and
Creating Unique and Sustainable Communities document. In response to the statutory
consultation process, in order for them to undertake a fair and balanced analysis of the
application, the language unit has stated that it will be necessary to include up-to-date information
from the 2021 Census to assess the impact of the development on different age groups With‘iﬂ g@ e 83



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

study. In addition to this, as there is no robust evidence in proving the need for the number of
additional housing and the housing mix proposed as part of this proposal, no evidence has been
submitted to prove the certainty that this development will have a positive impact on the
language. To this end, without this up-to-date information, it is not possible to reach a firm
conclusion and based on the lack of information, it is considered that the proposal is contrary to
Policy PS 1 of the LDP.

Heritage Assets

5.40 Inresponse to the statutory consultation process, representations were received from the
Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service stating that a condition would have to be included
before work commences on the site to submit a programme of Archaeological work and to be
agreed by the Local Planning Authority within any planning permission, along with the need to
submit details of a programme of archaeological recording within 6 months of completing the
fieldwork. Based on this, the proposal is considered acceptable based on the requirements of
Policies PS 20 and AT 1 of the LDP.

Educational matters

5.41  The relevant policy within the context of educational contributions for residential developments is
Policy ISA 1 of the LDP together with the SPG: Housing Developments and Educational
Provision. In response to the statutory consultation, the Education Department has provided new
figures with a statement stating that a new school is being built in Bontnewydd with capacity for
210 pupils and 30 in the nursery school. It has also been confirmed that adequate capacity is
available at the secondary school of Ysgol Syr Hugh Owen for this development. Therefore, it is
believed that no educational contribution will be needed should this application be approved.
Therefore, it is believed that the proposal complies with the requirements of Policy ISA 1 of the
LDP as well as the relevant SPG requirements.

Open space matters

5.42  According to Policy ISA 5 of the LDP, proposals for 10 or more houses in areas where existing
open spaces cannot meet the needs of the proposed housing development are expected to offer
suitable provision of open spaces in line with Field in Trust (FIT) benchmark standards of 24ha
per 1,000 of the population.

The proposal is for 21 residential units and to this end consideration will need to be given to the
need for open spaces as part of the development if there is no adequate provision close to the site.

5.43  Current information shows that there is a lack of play areas for children (with and without
equipment) within 1.2km of the application site. Policy ISA 5 and the supplementary planning
guidance for open spaces emphasise that the provision of play/open spaces should initially be
"within the site”. If on-site provision is not possible, a developer is able to offer a financial
contribution when this is justified. Therefore, based on costs for open space provision for children
and in accordance with FIT requirements the amount of a financial contribution would be:

e Informal Play Areas for Children = £1733.94
e Play Areas with Equipment for Children = £2630.43

Page 84



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.44 1t is understood by the applicant that he would be willing to contribute to improve existing
provision within the community if the application was granted but that alone is insufficient to
meet the needs of policy ISA 5 as the policy initially requires on-site provision.
Based on the assessment that is part of this report, the need for 21 units has not been proven, with
this high figure resulting in a high density of housing that exceeds what is noted in the LDP. As a
result, there is no space on site to provide a play area. Without obtaining evidence about the need
for the number of houses and the development density and without receiving justification
otherwise, it is not possible to meet the needs of policy ISA 5. The proposal as it stands, is
therefore considered to be contrary to policy ISA 5 of the LDP together with the relevant SPG.

6. Conclusions:

6.1 Having considered the above assessment, it is considered that the proposal to develop 21
residential units in the form of 18 flats and 3 dwellings on this site would not be acceptable in
principle. Based on a lack of evidence it is unclear if there is a real need in Bontnewydd for small
one- and two-bedroom units. Although the Council recognises that the site has been designated
for 10 residential units, based on a lack of information in proving the need for an additional 11
units and the mix of housing, it is believed that granting this application would lead to an
imbalance in this type of residential accommodation provision in the village and that it would not
respond positively to housing needs that have been identified in Bontnewydd itself. It is also
considered, with the insufficient and inconsistent information that has been submitted as part of
this application, that there are significant concerns in terms of flooding and biodiversity matters
in the local area and that no full consideration has been given to the impact of the development on
the Welsh language and open spaces within the site. In assessing the application, full
consideration was given to the observations received in response to the consultation period and to
the response received from statutory consultees.

6.2 Based on the above assessment, the proposal is considered to be contrary to local and national
policies and although the applicant has stated that developing the site would help to move
Gwynedd residents to smaller houses in Bontnewydd and who have suffered from the one bed
tax, which would be a material consideration of such a scale that it would outweigh any policy
concerns/conflicts, the Local Planning Authority does not agree with this opinion given the
content of the above assessment. Therefore, to this end it is considered that the proposal is not
acceptable based on the reasons for refusal below.

7. Recommendation:

7.1 To delegate powers to the Senior Planning Manager to refuse the application based on the
following reasons:

1. The proposal is contrary to the requirements of Policies PS 17, TAI 1 and TAI 8 of the Gwynedd
and Anglesey Joint Local Development Plan (2017) as it is considered that the applicant has not
submitted sufficient evidence with the application to convince the Local Planning Authority that
there is a need for additional one- and two-bedroom flats in Bontnewydd considering that this
proposal exceeds the indicative figure noted in the Plan and would create an imbalance in the type
and mix of small units within the village and no evidence has been received that the proposal
would respond positively to the needs of the local community.

2. No evidence was received about the need for the number of houses and up-to-date information
within the Welsh Language Assessment to be able to assess if the proposal meets the

Page 85



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

requirements of criterion 1c of Policy PS1 of the Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Local
Development Plan which requires a Welsh language statement indicating how proposed
developments would protect, promote and strengthen the Welsh language. On this basis, the
Local Planning Authority is not convinced that the proposal would not have a negative impact on
the Welsh language in the plan area.

The site lies within an area at risk of surface water flooding and as sufficient information was not
submitted with the Flood Consequence Assessment, including a Water Conservation Statement
which would have considered the safe development of the site and demonstrated that the
proposed development would not displace surface water towards other properties, it is not
believed that the proposal is acceptable based on flood risk and that it is, consequently, contrary
to criterion 8 of policy PS 5, criterion 7 of policy PCYFF 2, criterion 6 of policy PCYFF 3,
criterion 4 of policy PS 6, policy PCYFF 6 together with the instruction provided in paragraph
11.1 of Technical Advice Note 15.

Insufficient information has been submitted as part of the application for assessing the impact of
the proposal on the Special Area of Conservation, protected species and wildlife of the site. No
Green Infrastructure Statement was submitted either and, therefore, the proposal is contrary to the
requirements of policies PS19 and AMG 5 of the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local
Development Plan (2011-2026) which protect species and wildlife along with the requirements
within Chapter 6, Version 12 of Planning Policy Wales.

The proposal is contrary to policy ISA 5 and the SPG for open spaces as there is no justification
for the lack of provision of open spaces within the development while also considering the lack of
evidence of the need for the number of houses and the high development density.

Page 86



41.8m

Brymer
Terrace

Fron Elen 0

v

Shelter

Beuno Terrace

Cae Spencer

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN PROPERTIES

Cae-Stanley

BRAWING TITLE

SITE LOCATION PLAN

SCALE OATE | DRawN | ceEcem
11250@A3 12/07/22 NG SV

Recycling Centre 1 1 |
7 bl PRELIMINARY
OB Na DRAWING No REVISICN
T | | Cc1104 03 A

AINSLEY
AGIA 8

ARCHITECTS
THE QLD FOLICE STATION, ~5 GLYHNE WAY, MAWARDEN, CHS 315
Tel;

- [ | I I 1 etk
Ordiance Survey, (3) %pwn Copyrght 2022, All rights reserved. Lizence number 100022432 ~ D E R B Y N i
ﬂ [a] Adran Cynikunic 1210772023 PRINTEE: 16/01/2023 14:5358 A3




Cynllun Diwygiedig
Amended Plan

N AFONBEUNQ

Lt A ,\,‘/
Prepesas Gelui: Alsnsition

+ i 100y HICE Siovage Volme 43 Sam
Dimensions: d0sam « 5 Zm deph.

Discharge ras relricted i 5 s v veriax fonw contrer
"o be Poiypipe Cirls Polystom” atiznusiion calls ot

Praposed diagl
FEI Afon Buseno (ko be agreed) -
L Ll =
- g Eanaa
oy &
g ianas

Sila oufal chamber o 5 {
Iristalisc utside: of Afon Buena |

a"?’l‘f‘
e
\“l‘?"
s
&a%

fioodpiain. Non-retum vaive fo Jeiss BNy
T AR o
— Sita vane fow corvol sz . o !
=y i B Setotn o BRGA = -
r coslciud 8 e SN e I

=
S
5
2

Leeasad |
Apasay A
cokas] RENEEERLREY i
ety Feelesrvith o
Feray: 8 ensasna s [N
EYER - S =
i e SMEPRIN o ) !
Cre £48873 RIS Peemenble Paving |

= GO0 deeg siage layer
Flos resiriclisd via arifics piats

KEY

- Brogased
m - Proposed Pecmeable Block Paving
%///% - Propased Rainganden
oA

- Proposed Calluiar Allenaation Tank

ofc © - Oriflee Fiow Coatoler

£ O - Catchplis
NOTES
1. Surlstn water storags o b provided Heoughoul e 18 85
follows:
Pameable paving thraughout zile. 46.5 cum
Surtace water alienalion tank 438 cum

Tha Pérmesbis Pining is ks hae o BI0mm deep sisape e
awer with the outfal flows restricledtvia orifice piate faw
cariral devices

A The propesed Suds esliar etlenuaticn tank has baen
desigried for the 1 in 100yr stoem ewenl {+40% allowancs for
imale change}, Tha storage volume required for the doslgn
o 43507, Thes Situsaons of the alleatstion tank s
shown is a5 lollows: 408gm x 1.2m depln

4, Surtace water discharge fram site o Afon Bueno to be
ressiriched 16 5 /s via 8 vortex fiow oaririar chamber.

Faingadene IhoLgnoUl sita a1a ie arovide iddilional 5 .
siorage, as wel 85 eahancing st Giodiversity, srvidng an
amanty to ihe resdents and prosiding aediiional polution
sontral. Raingendens ave 1o serve the sies fctpaths as
shawn,

6. Floof and private hardsianting surfacs waler rui-oft s 1o be -
dscnarged and stored within Permealie Paving prior to
dacharging In Ihe sile suface waler netwark. 1 b

88 abed

-

DERBYN

Adran Cynllunio 27.08.2023

S EGHIOL CONSULTING LIITED.

|8 | Revisad drainage inyaut pian | PN DS 0S| 270023

I Sait LLFA tomamenis

| A | Revised drsinage iayout plan | PN DH OH | 286523

Hes it it layonat chianges.

Rew Modcaton By Cok Agp| Uele

egniol

Egniol Gonsulting Limvied
15t Flocr, & Canon Harnett Court,
Wiotvertan, Milton Keynes
MKAZ SN
Tesephane: 01248 355696
Eman: infofegnol com

KINGSCROWN LAND &
COMMERCIAL LTD

Ve Draage Lt Flar g

ian

BONTNEWYDD
RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT

PROPOSED SURFACE
WATER DRAINAGE LAYOUT
PLAN

TEBCADE

23

™ PRELIMINARY | yam

s aiar s
ECL.9516.D0.05.003 B

EAD i Rt



Standard trees

1

speces commen name: sa | Type uantiny

o e calty | B50gm | Sndard | 2

{ohn Downie Ornamnatal crah apoln 80 em | Sandard 3

o e sl 5
Bruriss padas B cherry Standord | 3]
i m | Sanae | ]

Fot e sndbeight

A 5

P

sy

e

s

s

[ .

s e QL AG o ]

| bt 1o wiasg oo i
t s
e Comman mame form wnd gt | PO
Corylus avalana | Hamm L ba ot SO | 2
peer campssire Ay mapte. LeZbare reonHADS0Em | 3/m2
| Cormus sanguinea | Dogw EeZban o a0 s0Em | iz
st wigare | Wi pivs Lo ey A0SO Em | 13
baie Liibe afnz.
Amenity hedgerow: -

Bin store:

Metal ball top fencing
1o top of retaining wall

3m wide. gate for
maintengnce eccess

Maius "D’ and amenity shrub/

Native speries planting

2 x Sorbus aucuperia 'AS"

and amenity shrub/
Damp meadmgrass perennial planting
mixture

and wildflewer mixz Shade tolerant grass.

and wildflower mixture

perennial planting

DERBYN

Adren Cynlluria 12072023

Stock proof fence y
.

to wildflower are;

\NF»elcl access gate

—-= Bin store

2 Malus 'I0* and amenity shrub/
perennial planting

=~ Native shrub planting

1.2 m palisade fence

— - =~ Amenity shrub/perennial planting

native species planting

Seedirg mixtures (Emorsgate Seed mives or similar approved)

e

et e |43 b

Spdis o st L | s | Tt
g K e e RN RE
LT L H —

shrib planting
Bin stare
Prunus padus tree and 5 i : I~ b T f - =
| Amenity grass seedir
Amenity shrub/ Amenity Y L]
perennial planting”  edEErOW
Prunus By’ and ;
amenity shrub/ Palisade fence to
perennial planting garden boundaries
2xA intongides ‘PG’
:r\ﬂr:;init\qn:‘zq:sm Bin stores: Bin store
Prunus podus tree and
rative species planting
Metal ball top fencing
to top of stone wall Metal bali top fence to replace
existing chain link and concrete
Grass verge with post fence to stone wall

smaler oty i

ey s

wildfiower mixture.

Existing sycamore

to be removed
2% Prunis By and
amenity shruby
perennial planting

Prunus pedus tree
and amenity shrub/
perennial planting

Amenity shrub/

Grass verge with

‘perennial planti \
. wildflower mixture

B.v 3 8685 15 W w e

St aponcha Dt Suvey Masie s ait S s v ol e e
b Mr St 98 ) Counh pasr gt SEeooR L peoce 49, S0

bagurhad { Ews
Proposed hard surface finishes

Bitumen Macadam
adoptable highway and footpaths

—  Permeable block paving
_ car park turning spaces/shared spaces.

Permeable herringbone block paving
car parking spaces

Prapaaed black paving
pesle-stnan areas around building curtilage

Crushed slate
access for building maintenance etc.
Proposed fences
1.8 m high timber hit and miss fence and trellis
{around bin storage areas)

1.5 m high, 1 m wide lockable timber gate

1,2/1.5m high timber palisade fence {garden
boundaries).

—

0.9 m high metal ball top fence (black pawder
coated finish - wall parapet)

1.2 m high, 1 m wide lackable metal ball top fence
(black powder coated finish)

0.45 m high metal knee rail

{black powcer costed finish)

- 1.2 m high timber post and wire stock-proof fence

- Native species shrubl planting
- Amenity shrub and perernial planting
- Species rich grassland

| Amenity grassland
lawn areas

Existing features

_{-;)J Trees and shrubs to be retainsd

B ae Msinkeance doue ste TR
2] MG | revined fmpout to match echitects drawivg | WhE 1

w iy comsufann e HhE 1%

o i e o commment BHE 16

s i ) ol
e Cleve:

KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

L pragect / Pregect rame,

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
BONTNEWYDD

Tt iz { Derwing 1!

Landscape Proposals

g Presaa by

SRML

nmmmrmﬂmmmmm

& Laing Ltd

© Ri
Based upon Ainsley Gemmon Architects drawing CIWOB-C External Works Plan

Srad e AL e T AhE
1:200 @ A1 Jan 2023 -

et

a7 /01 o= o4




DERBYN

Aaran Cyrburio 12ST0EY

\NEW GATE
ACCES

NEW FOOTPATH

EXISTING LAYBY

EXISTING TREE|
 REMOVED

NEW SITE ENTRA

Om

—

UNIT KEY
HOUSETYPE | DESCRIPTION | PLOT Na. | SIZEm? | AMOUNT
]} w18 WALKUP FLATS | 111, 13-14, 1617 53 ‘5
@ EeT | WACUPFLATS | 12,34,56.8:10,1848,301 | g5 | 12
‘j 5P3B | MOUSES | T.815 | ee | 3
— TOTAL UNITS: n

Approx pusjﬁon of Afon
Beuno (not surveyed)

4m 8m 12m 6m

VISUAL 5CALE 1:200 @ Al

OVERAEAD
POWERLINE TAKEN
'UNDERGROUND

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD

for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

L oawssns

'INDICATIVE MASTERPLAN

C1104 004 G

AINSLEY

GOMMON

ARCHITECTS
e 1 BCE AT, 1 LT AR 35
TR 9 | oA | ot ik
i s U e s s

e e e
o et 18 Al



DERBYN

tran Cynlhania 1 207,023

" NEW GATE
ACCESS

e
\R N ES NEW FOdrPATH
i EXISTING LAYBY -

Re—
PRB@SED LAYBY SET BACK
500mmINCREASING VI§IB!LITY

"'I‘ ~ AND FOOTP EXTENDED

ARPUND PARKI SPACES

1

f

OVERHEAD

VISUAL SCALE 1:200 @ A1

HOUSE TYPE

UNIT KEY

| e

P28
5PIB

TOTAL UNITS

Approx position of Afon
Beuno (not surveyed)

POWERLINE TAKEN
UNDERGROUND -

DESCRIPTION
WALK UP FLATS
WALK UP FLATS.
HOUSES

PLOT No,

11-12,13-14, 1617

1:2, 34, 56, 5-10, 18-19, 20-21

7B.15

AMOUNT

SIZEm?
53 &
&5 12
a4 1

2

e
A ek 083 AT A TS AT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

GROUND FLOOR PLANS

M hlﬁwlvﬂﬂ! N}‘!ﬂ? =] W
o PREI.IMINARY

f—

C1104 005

AGIA

Bty

T T
Al

G
AINSLEY

Ancnnicis

AT QRDE02E 1606 3



‘.’\r-'

ol

/ SITE BOUNDARY
|
I
|
[
|
|
|
|
I
I

D

|
ELEVATION ALONG MAIN ROAD

SCALE: 1:200

SITE BOUNDARY
|/_

e
1V

A
S

{ l L\Illl' =i
o

ELEVATION ALONG ACCESS ROAD FACING EAST

SCALE: 1:200

i
B IR

SITE BOUNDARY

ELEVATION ALONG ACCESS ROAD FACING NORTH
SCALE: 1:200

SITE BOUNDARY — [~
'\{\)
!

SITE BOUNDARY \l

SITE BOUNDARY —\.‘I

i
(VAN st

r’/\j
o
A

DERBYN

Adean Cynilunio 12/07/2023

£ STEPSREMOVED FADM PLOT 08/06/23 TA
7 GARDEN; GATE ADDEDTO

ATTENUATION BASIN;

LANDSCAPE DESIGN

UPDATED

LAYDUTUPDATED; SP38 25/05/23 TA
HOUSES ADDED; No 3725

FLATS INCREASED; FAONT

a

LAYBY UPDATED
€ CHANGES FOLLOWING 14/01/23 10
LANDSCAPE PLAN
(ADDITIONAL ELEVATION
[ADDED AND CANOPY TRELLES
ADDED

CHANGES TO HOUSE
ELEVATIONS

16/01/23 | 10

»

|oe/o1/23 | 10

BROVECT
SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

SITE ELEVATIONS

SCALE BATE | DRAWN | CHECKED
1: 00842 21710 | o | w

DRAWING

STATUS PRELIMINARY

108 Ko DRAWING No REVISION

C1104 006 E

AINSLEY

GOMMON

ARCHITECTS
n

PRINTED: 09/06/2023 16:07:50 A2



/7 Approx position of Afon

Beuno (not surveyed)

OVERAEAD ,
~— POWERLINE TAKEN
UNDERGROUND

! o
NEW FOOTPATH - .7 S (W
— EX|5TING\ LAYBY — i el
| & sl
PROPOSED LAYBY SET BACK i S ;/VML .
= SODmm“lNCREASING VISIBILITY i Exagtg REE. .
‘ | [ ANDFOOTPATH EXTENDED ( T
e 9 j AROUND PARKING SPACES b .L
= ' i \ AN SITE AT BONTNEWYDD

? | N Ca i
s, i P CA =——a L
=y WCE s T ——— h for KINGSCROWN
. / PROPERTIES

G

SITE PLAN - LEVELS

|
e | . N N conedogmid B |5
= "‘:.:,"" PRELIMINARY
g / [T
i T C1104 007 D
AINSLEY

| I | ] | .
o o i, s, g

1 | SITE - GROUND FLOOR - LEVELS L | B comst
VISUAL SCALE 1:200 @ AL mmw:w»;mwm;.@ﬂ

SCALE: 1:200
B ——

= _ - -/ AG|A st



’“NEW GATE -
ACCESS. uuccr®

EXTPATH

o & NEW FO

Tt EXISTiNGJ LAYBY —

PROPOSED LAYBY SET QACK
SDOm\iNCREASING Vi%IBILITY
T AN ) FOOT! EXTENDED

.
Q
Q

(‘D {
01
gy

IJBIBPAIFKF . SPACES

NEW SITE ENTRANCE.

SITE - EXTERNAL WORKS PLAN om _4m  8m

SCALE: 1:200

WISUAL SCALE 1:200 @ Al

Approx position of Afon
Beuno (not surveyed)

POWERLINE TAKEN
_UNDERGROUND

N

BOUNDARY TREATMENTS
1.2m HIGH HIT & MISS FENCIRG
WITH BO0mm TRELLIS T BIN STORE
0.5m BALL TOP METAL FENCING
1.2m STOCK PROOF FENCING

VARIABLE HEIGHT RETAINING WALL

L.8m HIGH HIT & MISS FENCING

PROPOSED TREE

. EXISTING TREE

EXTERNAL FINSHE:

ROAD AND PAVEMENT FINISH TO
ENGINEERS SPECIFICATION

NON LI CONCRETE PAVING SLAR
PATHS & PATIOS WITHIN CURTILAGE,
YARD GULLEY TO BE PROVIDED T0 REAR
BATH / PATIO

PERMEASLE PAVING FOR SHARED
SURFACE

PERMEABLE PAVING FOR PARKING
AREAS

PLANTED AREAS INCLUDING HEDGES

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

0 o

EXTERNAL WORKS PLAN

s Gaw | b | oeoen
1-m9n| W o | s
o

ans PRELIMINARY

anwe . A

C1104 009 D

Al NSLEY

OMMON

AHCH”ECH

AOHUEL T T s v, TR, 70 20

e WO bt e | e e
s s

i A e
o s 628 Al



Om 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m
1 Y s | !

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A3

PLOT - 13-14

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 1

SCALEI 1 i 100 SCALE: 1 o 100 A |PLOT ND. CHANGED AND 16/01/23| 10

CANOPY TRELLIS ADDED

|ﬂw| DESCRIFTION | DATE | &Y ‘

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT ©OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES
70 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO!
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECFICATION.
D0 NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK T0 FIGURED
DIMENSIONS ONLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

2P1B FLAT - ELEVATIONS

SCALE | DATE ‘ DRAWN | CHECKED
1:100 @A3l 03f01/23 TA 5V
7\ DRAWING
ey STATUS PRELIMINARY
108 No DRAWING No  REVISION
C1104 030 B

Fj6 abed

AINSLEY
A GOMMON

A ARCHITECTS
sans

bisaiey Gareren Archrtects Lt Wegatared in o

PRINTED: 22/05/2023 14:05:03 A3

REAR ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100




96 abed
N

Hi

TR
L L
T

Om 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

FRONT ELEVATION (HANDED)

SCALE: 1:100

REAR ELEVATION (HANDED)

SCALE: 1:100

ol

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A3

PLOT-11-12

B [PLOT NUMBERS UPDATED 22/05/23 | TA
A |CANOPY TRELLIS ADDED 16/01/23 | TA

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

2P1B FLAT - EVEVATIONS
RENDER ON BRICK MID

(HANDED)

SCALE DATE | DRAWN | CHECKED
1:100 @Azl 03/01/23 | i | sv

DRAWING

STATUS PRELIMINARY

0B NG DRAWINGNo  REVISION

Cl104 032 B

AINSLEY
A GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

AG

THE GLD POLICE STATION, 15 G

- 100 | msmrgagar e

isainy Goremer drehiects Lis

o a147
PRINTED: 22/05/2023 14:22:38 A3




B
L Area Schedule (GIA) 2P1B
=

[ L Level | Area
[01- FIRST FLOOR 54.9m |
|00- GROUND FLOOR  [B4.9m? |
LIVING ROOM KITCHEN
LIVING ROOM KITCHEN 133m g8m’

e e K ‘: PLOT - 11-12
. -~
mid /]

@ 5= = @ L
1
T |
— T BATHROOM HALL I AC 1l ~ "BATHROOM HALL
\ P - 4|1m’ =\ 9.5m? : : 14m? {: 5 e BA 1m? L 48 m
I
i I
~ " ~
1 ® - | \ I____T: s |
— = ———m =
H L ———— 4
| 1] ‘

‘f===\ AC

11im?

B |PLOT NUMBERS UPDATED 22/05/23 | TA

— —— — — :4 A |CANOPY TRELLIS ADDED 16/01/23 | TA
d ]

I |F([\’| DESCRIPTION | DATE | Br|

THIS DRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES

—

T BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FCR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECFICATION.

BEDROOM 1 BEDROOM 1 DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK TO FIGLRED

10.9 m? 152 DIMENSIDNS ONLY
—— PROJECT
» n | SITE AT BONTNEWYDD

g for KINGSCROWN
sT PROPERTIES

15m?

DRAWING TITLE
F§‘§1 &EIE& 2P1B FLAT - GROUND

2] i B FLOOR AND FIRST FLOCR
| MID (HANDED)
: SCALE DATE | DRAWN | CHECKED
| m 1:50 @»\al 03/01/23 | A | sv
Lsdoer ol sl eethis dp SNl Mo sl et o - DRAWING
STATUS. PRELIMINARY
GROUND FLOOR FIRST FLOOR e
SCALE: 1:50 SCALE: 1:50 AINSLEY
AG| A s
ARCHITECTS

+ T [ THE OLD POLICE STATIDH, 15 GLYKNE WAY, HAWASDEN, CHS N5

05 s s A L e e

Om 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m
|

isaley Gerssen kichitects Lid. Regatared in Ecgland & W abes
Prgisterd Clfice: 1 Price Sirset, Hurlisn Ly sira, S herbead CH;

VISUAL SCALE 1:50 @ A3

PRINTED: 22/05/2023 14:18:17

Lpﬂﬁed



abed

8

B 3 B
l Area Schedule (GIA)
[[ :I:[ Level | Area

[01- FIRST FLOOR [54.8 m? |
|00-GROUNDFLOOR  [54.9 |

T\

S

o5 LIVING ROOM Fa 1P
KITCHEN i KITCHEN LIVING ROOM

6.8 m? 133 m?
L 7 PLOT - 16-17

I ~ /.
==

Adran Cynllunio 12/07/2023

—l =

-1 ST @ T @
\| T ©
I ac 1 BATHROOM: — — — -
([ Il HALL oA / BATHROO /
ot i ssm' | HALL aim M
1 -~ -

T @ P

e L 3
w— ST = E
1 23m? | AC | ‘
m==="T 11m?
e — — — \
ur PV é ‘ A |FlOTNUMBERS UPDATED |22fﬂ5p’23|TA‘
1 REV| DESCRIPTION DATE B

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES

TO BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE

|-
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDAMNCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
0O NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK TO FIGURED
e
BEDROOM
109 m? f— PROJECT
i . ] o SITE AT BONTNEWYDD

for KINGSCROWN
HA H:[ ST
23m? 15m?
1 I§ _\/ I
B B
|
|
|
|
|

PROPERTIES
DRAWING TITLE
e églgﬁ 2P1B FLAT - GROUND
) B FLOOR AND FIRST FLOOR
PLANS - REAR WINDOW

SCALE ‘ DATE ‘ DRAWN ‘CHECKED
1:50 @A3 08/12/22 1o sV

GROUND FLOOR FIRST FLOOR e

SCALE: 1:50 SCALE: 1:50
AG

Om 1m 2m 3m 4m Sm
[T | } [ [ | [ T ek 5910wl e

VISUAL SCALE 150 @ A3 PRINTED: 22/05/2023 13:01:33 A3

AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

SEE




@ abed

FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

REAR ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

Om 2m
|

6m  8m  10m

ERENENEE;

SIDE ELEVATION 1

SCALE: 1:100

------

LE 1:100 @ A3

SIDE ELEVATION 2

SCALE: 1:100

PLOT -1-2

DERBYN

Adran Cynllunio 120772023

B |ELEVATION UPDATED 25/05/23| TA

A |BEDROOM 1 WINDOWS 11/01/23| TA
MOVED

|RE\'| DESCRIPTION | DATE | BY ‘

THIS DRAWING I5 THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMAMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES
0 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO MOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK T0 FIGURED
DIMENSIDNS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

3P2B FLAT - ELEVATIONS

SCALE | DATE ‘ DRAWN | CHECKED
1:100 @A3l 09/12/22 o sv

DRAWING

STATUS PRELIMINARY

108 No DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1104 035 B

AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS




oq‘reﬁed

|
I

FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

REAR ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

Om 2m

6m 8m 10m

=

E1:100 @ A3

SIDE ELEVATION 1

SCALE: 1:100

SIDE ELEVATION 2

SCALE: 1:100

PLOT - 20-21

[2EREYN]

C |ELEVATION UPDATED 25/05/23 | TA

B |PLOT NUMBERS UPDATED 22/05/23 | TA

A |SET OF WINDOWS REMOVED [11/01/23 (TA
ON BEDROOM 2

|F([\’| DESCRIPTION | DATE | Br|

THIS DRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES
70 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK TO FIGLRED
DIMENSIDNS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

3P2B FLAT - ELEVATIONS

SIDE WINDOWS

SCALE DATE | DRAWN | CHECKED
1:100 @Aal 04/01/23 | o | sv

DRAWING

STATUS. PRELIMINARY

108 No DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1104 036 C

AINSLEY

GOMMON

ARCHITECTS
PRINTED: 25/05/2023 15:35:24 A3



=]

ﬂ

e — — |

Area Schedule (GIA)

il Il —

BEDROOM 1 BEDROOM 2 01-FIRSTFLOOR |65.3 m?

—

BED:ECIS.ZM 2 134 m? 9.6 m* 00 - GROUND 67.7 m?

FLOOR

i
/L B I N

= Ny ot

KITCHEN |
LIVING,"D NING

0
=

i d |l ] SITEAT BONTNEWYDD

e STORE PR for KINGSCROWN
A e famt ok PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE
= o éEEE} FEEJI 3P2B FLAT - GROUND
FLOOR AND FIRST FLOOR
hdd PLANS

BEDROOM 1
13.4m?

xXo

|/
=

KITCHEN
9.1m

BATHROOM
44 m

HALL
11.0m*

A [BEDROOM 1 WINDOWS | 11/01/ [TA
MOVED 23

Rw| BESCRITION | DATE | ar ‘

e . s, e el Sl g g e
RN B
I I

\h’" I

i } i H 15 :: m?llﬁ‘” R

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS, CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS DN SITE. ANY
DISCREPANCIES TO BE MOTIFIED T0 THE ARCHITECT.

/L

LIVING/DINING
115 m? —1

[

ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR
[ GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO BE A5 STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
[

DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.

& TN TR

T

felols
[
I
I

' " ————

T

47 m SCALE |
1:50 @A3! 30/10/18

DATE | DRAWN |CHECKED
RW oP

DRAWING

STATUS PRELIMINARY

B JOB No DRAWING No REVISION

C1104 017 A

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN AG/| A common

ARCHITECTS

Q o) SCALE 1:50 SCALE 1:50 ,?Tm””lm : i2m , F’m -|4 L iSm CHTIRIS R

E VISUAL SCALE 1 :50 @ A3 PRINTED: 11/01/2023 16:50:14 A3
o




] m — |

Area Scheduls (GIA)

:m Level | Area

= T 1
BEDROOM 1 01- FIRST FLOOR  |65.3 m*

134 m 00 - GROUND 67.7 m?
BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 2 FLOOR

]

L
3 AC

9.2m?

BEDROOM 1
134m?

PLOT - 20-21

— ]

xo
b ]

DERBYN

Adran Cynliunio 12/07/2023

KITCHEN
9.1m

BATHROOM
44m?

BATHROOM
HALL s3im?
H: 11.0m
B |PLOT NUMBERS 22/05/ |TA
CHANGED 23
L A |SET OF WINDOWS 11/01/ [TA

REMOVED ON BEDROOM | 23
ﬁ Eq H
i 2ek |REV| DESCRIPTION | DATE | E‘f|

[ THIS DRAWING 5 THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. ANY

Il DISCREPANCIES TO BE NOTIFIED TO THE ARCHITECT.
ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR

1 GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

[

A

LIVING/DINING
11.5m?

LIVING/DINING
116m?

|
| |
|
g i N =
- oyt [ SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
- |1 sToRe | Il for KINGSCROWN
Lom _ | PROPERTIES
| X — |

1], DRAWING TITLE
mﬁ £ = o élggi ;I_-‘E% 3P2B FLAT - GROUND
FLOOR AND FIRST FLOOR
PLANS SIDE WINDOWS

DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION,

SCALE | DATE ‘ DRAWN | CHECKED
1:50 @A3! 04/01/23 10 sV

DRAWING

STATUS PRELIMINARY

Qa
i ;. .;n
/
T T
||
g E |l
Ch—a T |
||

E 108 No DRAWING Mo REVISION

C1104 018 B

- GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN AG| /B Gommion

ARCHITECTS

(8 SCALE 1 i 50 SCALE 1 9 50 THE OLD POUICE STATION. 15 GLYNNE WAY. HAWARDEN, CHS 315

T Q1244 K37 120 | walin g hitosla .ok | worm g arsblacts .k

ey G Archotects L. Enaland & Waies o AP
E ! ; Ratisarad Offce: 1 Prie S, e, B e ERA 0
PRINTED: 22/05/2023 14:28:59 A 3




SCTEeﬁed

FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

REAR ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

Om 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

H

LE 1:100 @ A3

PLOT -5-6

2

SIDE ELEVATION 1

SCALE: 1:100

A |ELEVATION UPDATED 25/05/23 | TA

|rew| DESCRIPTION | DATE | BY ‘

THIS BRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES
0 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO'
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK T0 FIGURED
DIMENSIDNS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

3P2B FLAT - ELEVATIONS
(HANDED) - PLOT 5-6

SCALE | DATE ‘ DRAWN | CHECKED
1:100 @43 21722122 1 10 sv

DRAWING

STATUS PRELIMINARY

108 No DRAWING No  REVISION

C1104 037 A

SIDE ELEVATION 2

SCALE: 1:100

AINSLEY

GOMMON

ARCHITECTS
PRINTED: 25/05/2023 15:34:09 A3




f ?E'Eﬁ 'f%%’ " ?EIEi Q‘E‘%ﬁ i Area Schecule (GIA) 3P28 —‘

[[[ [[[ Level | Area
— —) [01-FIRSTFLOOR  [653m* |
|00 - GROUND FLOOR [67.7m* |
BEDROOM 1

BEDROOM 1
134m? 134 m?
BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 2
] p—————98m? —] ————— 96m’ PLOT - 5-6
J\ | ]
D DERBYN

pu

{“I’T

ENH
xo
M
e

] ™ 1

B )
BAT;I:‘ "c‘!o HALL :II
—
@ i
18 2 W,
I | LIVING/DINING

KITCHEN

9.2m?

KITCHEN

:[[ S-lml

|F([\’| DESCRIPTION mr[ | Ev

B BATHROO! HALL
44m? 75m*
! ! o4,

==

THIS DRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES
70 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO'
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK T0 FIGURED
DIMENSIONS DNLY.

NUF

|_____. i

| IR

| I I sttofe I I |
\
\

1 115 m?

I faedt 10
L

i

|
|
LIVING/DINING ol 116 m?
|
|

TR

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

3 DRAWING TITLE
L 2. I_ Eg=-;lﬂ ‘!=:|=* @ |!E!'| %’E% [T 3P2B FLAT - GROUND
A FLOOR AND FIRST FLOOR
i PLANS (HANDED) - PLOT 5-6

SCALE | DATE ‘ DRAWN |CH£CKED
1:50 @A3' 05/01/23 0o sV

DRAWING

— 5 s PRELIMINARY

E JOBNo DRAWING No REVISION

C1104 020

— GROUND FLOOR (HANDED) 01 - FIRST FLOOR (HANDED) AG| A comon

Om 3m 4m 5m ARCHITECTS
g SCALE: 1:50 SCALE: 1:50 DDDDD! : ! o i | ks il

() "
A; VISUAL SCALE 1:50 @ A3 PRINTED: 06/01/2023 17:19:06 A3

o
=~

Aisaley Garsscn Auchitects Lid. Regatared in Ecgland & W ale Ho



—

m 2Zm 4m

6m  8m  10m

|

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A3

PLOT -

FRONT ELEVATION (HANDED) SIDE ELEVATION 1 (HANDED)
SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100

REAR ELEVATION (HANDED)

SCALE: 1:100

%01‘ abed

9-10

Adran Cynllunio 12/07/2023

B |PLOT NUMBERS UPDATED 22/05/23 | TA
A |BRICK LEVEL RAISED 12/01/23| 10

|F([\’| DESCRIPTION | DATE | Br|

THIS DRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES
70 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK TO FIGLRED
DIMENSIDNS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

3P2B FLAT - ELEVATIONS
RENDER ON BRICK
(HANDED) - PLOT 11-12

SCALE DATE | DRAWN | CHECKED
1:100 @Aal 05/01/23 | o | sv

DRAWING

STATUS. PRELIMINARY

108 No DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1104 038 B
AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

‘THE GLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNNE WA, HAWASDEN, CHS 3HS
Tl Q1248 517 100 | ke Baparihibrets . | wowagarehicts .

isaley Gersscen kichitects Lic. Repatared in Ecglane & Wabe o, 81371
i

-
PRINTED: 22/05/2023 14:24:41 A3




ﬁ?EE? S — I —] — |

Area Schedule (GIA) 3P2B
[H: m: Level | Area
— — [01-FIRSTFLOOR _ [653m* |

BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 1 |00 - GROUND FLOOR |67.7 m* }

9.6m* 1Bam?

BEDROOM 1
BEDROOM 2 134m?

\, i [ JF % o
/, i | K DERBY
ﬂ T L e il

KITCHEN
[:j“ 92m?
HALL
@ 10m =
" A |PLOT NUMBERS UPDATED 22/05/23 | TA
LIVINGIDINING 2o —/ |R[\’| DESCRIPTION | DATE | BY ‘

PLOT -9-10

7

BATHROOM

44m*

[ ]
I
.

KITCHEN

- 9.1m? |
j BATHROOM

53m?

11.8m*

T THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK AL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES

I TO BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTLRE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO

| BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECFICATION.

|

L

S iy

LIVING /D INING DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK T0 FIGURED
DIMENSIDNS DNLY.

11.6m?

_____ PROJECT

,,,,, ey SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
R A 19m? PROPERTIES

3 I DRAWING TITLE
= i 2l [t ;EEA t%%l— 3P2B FLAT-GROUND FLOOR
1 ; AND FIRST FLOOR PLANS
v / (HANDED) - PLOT11-12
HALL

a7 mt SCALE | DATE ‘ DRAWN |CH£CKED
1:50 @A3! 21/121/22 0o sV

DRAWING

& STATUS PRELIMINARY

JOB No DRAWING No REVISION

C1104 019 A

AINSLEY
AG|A s
4m 5m

\

ARCHITECTS

GROUND FLOOR (HANDED) 01 - FIRST FLOOR (H{-\NDE_P)

0Om 3m

—GSCALE: 1:50 SCALE: 1:50 TACR N R e —

4%%;7 VISUAL SCALE 1:50 @ A3
=
o
(@)

THE OLD POLICE STATIDH, 15 GLYNNE WAT, HAWASDEN, CHS 3NS5
Tl Q124837 100 | walasBapar chineta. .k | woaor agarehirsta.ca.ub




L(TFeﬁEd

FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

T

il
ﬂ;

i

Om 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

o

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A3

PLOT - 16-17

A |PLOT NUMBERS UPDATED 22/05/23 | TA

|F([\|'| DESCRIPTION | DATE | Br|

THIS DRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES
70 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK TO FIGLRED
DIMENSIDNS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

2P1B FLAT - ELEVATIONS -

= REAR WINDOW

REAR ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

SCALE DATE | DRAWN | CHECKED
1:100 @Aal 12/01/23 | o | sv

DRAWING

STATUS. PRELIMINARY

108 No DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1104 039 A
AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

‘THE GLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNNE WA, HAWASDEN, CHS 3HS
Tl Q1248 517 100 | ke Baparihibrets . | wowagarehicts .

isaley Gerssen kichitects Lid. Regatared in Ecgland & W abes
i

5
-
PRINTED: 22/05/2023 14:07:30 A3




LIVING ROOM A
Y KITCHEN 133 m? i KITCHEN LIVING ROOM

6.8 m 7 6.8m? 133m?

_ - Lj\ ]

#E%Férgb

BEDROOM 1

I: 152 m*

@]] ' @
BATHROOM:= — — | _
HALL i et N / Ll gATHROOM ™
A /‘ | ~ L /’ i %
| ﬁﬂ[ agm ﬂ@g
7
78 —uj y
L
] < ‘ | |

HI ST

15m?

—"’_}
BEDROOM
I 109m*

‘E

p——y

FIRST FLOOR

SCALE: 1:50

GROUND FLOOR
SCALE: 1:50

Om im 2m

-

Area Schedule (GIA)
Level | Area
01- FIRST FLOOR 54.9 m*
00 - GROUND FLOOR 54.9 m?
PLOT - 13-14

Adran Cynllunio 12/07/2023

& |PLOT NUMBERS UPDATED 22/05/23| TA
A |PLOT NO. CHANGED AND 16/01/23| 10
CANOPY TRELLIS ADDED
|R[\’| DESCRIPTION | DATE | BY ‘

THIS BRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES
0 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO'
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK T0 FIGURED
DIMENSIDNS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

2P1B FLAT - GROUND

FLOOR AND FIRST FLOOR

PLANS

SCALE | DATE ‘ DRAWN | CHECKED
1:50 @43l 03/01/23 | TA sv

DRAWING

STATUS PRELIMINARY

108 No DRAWING No  REVISION

C1104 010 B

AG

AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

0 Y

[ THEOUD POLICE STATKO. 15 CLARE WAT, LORLEDE, L s

Tl QU248 517 100 | walasPaparchineta. .k | wosoagarehirste

VISUAL SCALE 1:50 @ A3

8qTeﬁed

sl G ot L. epaterd n Exlar € .

1
Retuberi Gifice: | Pricn Sirovt Haman Sauare. Ex hembead CHAT 410
PRINTED: 22/05/2023 13.00:59 A 3




60T 9bed

FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

8 A O

BACK ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE: 1:100

Om 2m 4m 6m

8m

10m

5 s I

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ Al

|r¢w| DESCRIPTION | DATE BY

THIS BRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES
0 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO'
BE A4S STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK T0 FIGURED
DIMENSIDNS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

5P3B SIDE ENTRY HOUSE
ELEVATIONS - PLOT 7

SCALE | DATE ‘ DRAWN | CHECKED
1:100 @A3 22/05/23 | TA sv

DRAWING

STATUS PRELIMINARY

108 No DRAWING No  REVISION

C1104 041

AINSLEY
GOMMON

AG ARCHITECTS
Tok: 01248557 100

‘THE GLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNSE WAY, HAWASDEN, CHS 3HS
- TO0 |l Bagarcheiects .k | ww agareh et ca.uk

isaley Gerssen Architects Lid. Regatered in Evgland &
i

st
o
PRINTED: 25/05/2023 16:03:03 A 3




DERBYN

Adran Cynilunio 12/07/2023

LOUNGE
2n3m?

T |
A, ROOF PLAN
BEDROOM1 | , % SCALE: 1:200
T

LﬂND'ING A |LAYOUT UPDATED: GIAAND  |22.05.23 | TA
Bim LABELS ADDED

‘nn‘ DESCRIPTION | DATE ‘ BY |

THIS BRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF AIMSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES

TO BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
‘SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN T0
BE A5 STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
I— 00 NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK TO FIGURED
DIMENSIONS ONLY.

ﬂ
N
D 1

HALL
54m = -

o
S S S S . 0

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

KITCHEN/DINING f
\ 11.8m?

\

DRAWING TITLE

BEDROOM 3 BEDROOM 2 5P3B SIDE ENTRY HOUSE
]ﬂ o tagm! PLANS (HANDED) - PLOT 7

SCALE | DATE ‘ DRAWN ‘ CHECKED
As @A3! 28/04/23 TA sv
[ndicated

DRAWING

o ° o STATUS PRELIMINARY

/|
7

o
i

JOBND DRAWING No REVISION

C1104 023 A

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN

AREA SCHEDULE (GIA) AINSLEY
SCALE: 1:50 SCALE: 1:50 AG‘A SN

Level Area
GROUND FLOOR 48.0 m?

FIRST FLOOR 46.6 m?
94.6 m?

OTT abed



11T obed

FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

BACK ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

Om 2m 4m Bm 8m

1 Y s I [

10m

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ Al

|F([\|'| DESCRIPTION | DATE

EY‘

THIS DRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES
70 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO'
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK T0 FIGURED
DIMENSIONS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

5P3B SIDE ENTRY
ELEVATIONS - PLOT 8

SCALE | DATE ‘ DRAWN | CHECKED
1:100 @43 22/05/23 | Ta sv

DRAWING

STATUS PRELIMINARY

108 No DRAWING No  REVISION

C1104 042

AINSLEY
A GOMMON

A ARCHITECTS

‘THE GLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNSE WAY, HAWASDEN, CHS 3HS
Tl Q1248 37 100 | walasPapar chineta .k | monor agarehirsta.caub

Aisaley Garsscen Auchitects Lid. Regatared in Ecgland & .l
"

o5
o
PRINTED: 25/05/2023 15:43:48 A3




1T 9bed

i
;'Ef

O |
EL\ [ ]
1]
o i
KITCHEN/DINING"

11.8m j;//_'

&l

LOUNGE
213m?
I =
s \\
J'/ A
|
1 |
\ /
A s
~ -
e —

o

GROUND FLOOR PLAN
SCALE 1:50

p—

o °

o

LANDING
81m®

] [Ny
:m BEDR)O]NH

e BEDROOM 2
|:| H 127 m? ]
a [

5

N7 :
N

(-] —

: 4“:(:2 @ BEDSE‘?}M A L7
e 5 :
| L 72
e : JK\
;| ® j J : f/ \\
o—————————o ! i *
[+]
FIRST FLOOR PLAN AREA SCHEDULE (GIA)
SCALE 1 5 50 Name Area
GROUND FLOOR 48.0 m?
FIRST FLOOR 46.6 m?
ACTUAL 94.6 m?

ROOF PLAN
SCALE 1:200

A |LAYOUT UPDATED; GIAAND [ 220523 | TA
LABELS ADDED

[res[ oescprion [oo o]

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT CF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES
T0 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN T3
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECFICATION.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK T0 FIGURED
DIMENSIONS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

5P3B SIDE ENTRY HOUSE
PLANS - PLOT 8

SCALE DATE ‘ DRAWN |CHECKED

As @Ail 18/04/23 TA 5V

oRATIG

STATUS PRELIMINARY

108 No DRAWING No  REVISION
C1104 024 A

AINSLEY
AG A SaMMON
ARCHITECTS

PRINTED: 08/06/2023 03:03:31



FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

cTT abed
B

SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

Om 2m 4m bm 8m

10m

S A s B | [

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ Al

—

Adran Cynllunio 12/07/2023

‘n[v| DESCRIPTION ‘ DATE ‘ BY

THIS DRAWING 5 THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHFTECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES
TO BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWM ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
D0 NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK TO FIGURED
DIMENSIONS ONLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

5SP3B SIDE ENTRY HOUSE
ELEVATIONS - PLOT 15

SCALE | DATE | DRAWN ‘ CHECKED
L1100 @a3l 2205023 | 1A sv

DRAWING

STATUS PRELIMINARY

J0B NG DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1104 043

AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

DN, 13 GLYHNE WAY, HAWARDEN, CHS 3N5
Pagr et ot | o agirshRects sk

|||||

Lid. Begatarnd in Ecglard & wabes Ho. 417388

i o
PRINTED: 25/05/2023 16:03:30 A 3




—

VI”[‘SﬁEd

Adran CynBunio 12/07/2023

LOUNGE

213m?

I

o

GROUND FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: 1:50

9 Q
|! =“=: =1 .
PN ;
| A\ Ed
B -
2 B\ BEDROOM 1 : ,"/ \\\
| 11.6m L/_____\_
I
I H HI
= Rk B
: \\ N
LN
LANDING
8.1m

~.7 3
N ]

T /u = H]:

BEDROOM 3 BEDROOM 2
6.5m! 127m
%E!# %EE#

2 o
FIRST FLOOR PLAN AREA SCHEDULE (GIA)
SCALE: 1:50 Level Area

’ ' GROUND FLOOR 48.0 m?
FIRST FLOOR 46.6 m?

94.6 m?

ROOF PLAN
SCALE: 1:200

A |LAYOUT UPDATED: GIA AND 220523 |TA
LABELS ADDED

|F([\’| DESCRIPTION | DATE | Br|

THIS DRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES
70 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK TO FIGLRED
DIMENSIDNS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

5P3B SIDE ENTRY HOUSE
PLANS (HANDED) - PLOT 15

SCALE | DATE | DRAWN | CHECKED
as @43l 230423 | A sv

indicated

DRAWING

STATUS. PRELIMINARY

108 No DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1104 025 A

AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

o mnnn e mr HAWASI
Tel: 01342 537 100 | wlasBapa

HS 3




em

FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

REAR ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

%’[T abed

T 100
3
'_l.
o
2 |

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A3

PLOT -3-4

Adran Cynliunio 12/07/2023

|F([I|'| DESCRIFTION | DATE BY

THIS DRAWING I5 THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES
70 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTLRE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN T8
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
D0 NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK TO FIGLRED
DIMENSIONS ONLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

3P2B FLAT - MID
ELEVATIONS

SCALE @A]l DATE | DRAWN |CHECKED

1:100! 2305723 | T sv
DRAWING
STATUS PRELIMINARY
108 No DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1104 044

AINSLEY
NI
ARCHITECTS

THE LD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNNE WAT, HAWASDEN, CH5 3NE
Tl 01248 57 100 | s Baparchiecis o | wowagas chiects. o

ioaley Careren Archtects Lid Rogatarsd in Evgland & W s W 5147328

PRINTED: 25/05/2023 15:40:09 A3




FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

LTI

REAR ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

T
jab)

Q
i
(0))

Om 2m 4m

6m  8m  10m

H

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A3

%ﬂ %:
SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

18-19

|r¢w| DESCRIPTION | DATE

SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO'
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK T0 FIGURED
DIMENSIDNS DNLY.

BY

THIS BRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES
0 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

3P2B FLAT - SEMI
ELEVATIONS

SCALE @A3| DATE ‘ DRAWN |CHECKED

1:100! 230523 | Ta sv
DRAWING
STATUS PRELIMINARY
108 No DRAWING No  REVISION
C1104 045

AINSLEY
A GOMMON

AG ARCHITECTS
Tok: 01248557 100

‘THE GLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNSE WAY, HAWASDEN, CHS 3HS
- TO0 |l Bagarcheiects .k | ww agareh et ca.uk

isaley Gersscn Aichitects Lic. Regatared in Exgland B .
i

e
o
PRINTED: 25/05/2023 15:40:23 A3




TT obed

m Im 2m 3m 4m 5m

o

E

VISUAL SCALE 1:50 @ A3

B
— PLOT -3-4
— Area Schedule (GIA)
Level | Area

RATHROOM KITEHEN [00-GROUNDFLOOR __ [62.1m |

’ ’ |01 - FIRST FLOOR 67.2 m? |

BEDROOM 1 " ,
118 m?

M HALL —
82m?
il 1l
t————
L. — i =
I L
AC = Ll —
] | 1
06m ; th iy |rew| DESCRIPTION | DATE | ] ‘
118 THIS BRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
T " ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES

A
1
1|
1|
(Rl
s
|_II

0 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO'

BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO MOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK TO FIGURED
DIMENSIONS ONLY.
y
HVING ROOM
'
17.3 m PROJECT

= SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
BEDROQM 2 for KINGSCROWN
sam PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

3P2B FLAT - MID GROUND

‘ i e ——] FLOOR PLAN

Le [
o
—t
e

I B
| |
| | SCALE @Azl DATE ‘DRAWN |CHECKED
l ‘ 1:50) 2305023 | A v
L _______________ J DRAWING

STATUS PRELIMINARY

G Ro U N D FI_OO R PLAN g;rin04 SR;;WG No REVISION
SCALE: 1:50 AG A AINSLEY
GOMMON

THE OLD POLICE STATIDH, 15 GLYNNE WAT, HAWASDEN, CHS 3NS5
Tl Q124837 100 | walasBapar chineta. .k | woaor agarehirsta.ca.ub

isaley Gersren Architects Lid. Regatared in Ecgland B W alea Ho. 4187380

Retubero Gifice: | Pricn Sirovt, Haman Sauare. £ hembead CHAT 410
PRINTED: 25/05/2023 15:38:30 A 3



qrfeﬁed

DERBYN

Adran Gynllunio 12/07/2023

o

2m 3m 4m 5m

|

8 8
o E g
|
@ [
} /N
BATHROOM K
sam KITCHEN
67 m?

BEDROOM 1

131m?

STORE

0.6m?

LI

BEDROOM 2

9.0m?

1L ]
HALL :
11im?

LIVING ROOM

173 m?

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1:50

VISUAL SCALE 1:50 @ A3

PLOT-3-4

Area Schedule (GIA)

Level [ Area

00 - GROUND FLOOR 62.1m?
01 - FIRST FLOOR 67.2m*

THIS DRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES
70 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN T0

Rev| DEscRIPTION | DATE BY

BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK TO FIGURED
DIMENSIONS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

3P2B FLAT - MID FIRST
FLOOR PLAN

SCALE @A]l DATE | DRAWN |CHECKED

1:50' 23/05/23 TA sV
DRAWING
STATUS PRELIMINARY
108 No DRAWING No  REVISION
C1104 027

AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

Tl 01248 557 100 | s Baparchiecis caik

dina
g

PRINTED: 25/05/2023 15:39:00



GItraﬁecﬂ

3m 4m 5m

B B
| \—g O | ,%\ S
} (2 5 Z
Lt BT 7
BATHROOM KITCHEN
48m? 6.7 m*

BEDROOM 1

118m?

- L

B2m?

7

AC

7

L

L

N

BEDROOM 2

81m?

VING ROOM

T

173 m?

e

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1:50

VISUAL SCALE 1:50 @ A3

PLOT - 18-19

Area Schedule (GIA)

Level [ Area

00 - GROUND FLOOR 62.1m?
01 - FIRST FLOOR 67.2m*

THIS DRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES
70 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN T0

Rev| DEscRIPTION | DATE BY

BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK TO FIGURED
DIMENSIONS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

3P2B FLAT - SEMI GROUND
FLOOR PLAN

SCALE @A]l DATE | DRAWN |CHECKED

1:50' 23/05/23 TA SV
DRAWING
STATUS PRELIMINARY
108 No DRAWING No  REVISION
C1104 028

AINSLEY
AG|A 85
ARCHITECTS

THE 0L POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNNE WAT, HAWASDEN, C45 35
Tl 01248 557 100 | walesBa ecsn.co.

dina

e

PRINTED: 25/05/2023 15:39:16 A3




oq{ﬂaﬁed

DERBY

Adran Cynilu

025

Om 1m 2m 3m
|

H

VISUAL SCALE 1:50 @ A3

—

BEDROOM 1

13.1m?

#§+ =~
o o

BATHROOM
44m?

STORE

06m'

-

BEDROOM 2
9.0m*

I ]
HALL ;
11m

KITCHEN

6.7 m?

LIVING ROOM

173 m?

STORE

14m?

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1:50

PLOT - 18-19

Area Schedule (GIA)

Level | Area

[00-GROUND FLOOR  [62.1m* |
|01 - FIRST FLOOR 67.2 m? |

THIS BRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES
0 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO'
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK T0 FIGURED
DIMENSIDNS DNLY.

IREV| DESCRIPTION | DATE BY ‘

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

3P2B FLAT -SEMI FIRST
FLOOR PLAN

SCALE @A3| DATE ‘ DRAWN |CHECKED

1:500 1370523 | 1A sv
DRAWING
STATUS PRELIMINARY
108 No DRAWING No  REVISION
C1104 029

AINSLEY
A GOMMON

AG ARCHITECTS

THE OLD POLICE STATIDH, 15 GLYNNE WAT, HAWASDEN, CHS 3NS5
Tl Q1248 517 100 | walasBaparihnets . rctncau

isaley Gersren Architects Lid. Regatared in Ecgland B W alea Ho. 4187380

Retubero Gifice: | Pricn Sirovt, Haman Sauare. £ hembead CHAT 410
PRINTED: 25/05/2023 15:39:31 A 3



N

C STEPS REMOVED FROM PLOT7 09/06/23 TA
GARDEN; GATE ADDED TO
|ATTENUATION BASIN;
LANDSCAPE DESIGN UPDATED

B |LAYOUT UPDATED; 5P38 25/05/23| TA
HOUSES ADDED; No 3P28
FLATS INCREASED; FRONT
LAYBY UPDATED

A |CHANGES FOLLOWING 24/01/23| 10
LANDSCAPE PLAN

|RE\'| DESCRIPTION | DATE | BY ‘

THIS DRAWING I5 THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMAMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES
0 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO MOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK T0 FIGURED
DIMENSIDNS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

PROPOSED 3D VIEW -
FROM THE SOUTH WEST

SCALE DATE | DRAWN | CHECKED
@aal 09/01/23 ‘ o | sv

DRAWING

STATUS PRELIMINARY

108 No DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1104 050 €
AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

THE GAD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYRSE WAY, HAWARDEN, CHS INS
Tl QU248 517 100 | wadas Bigar ehbscia. .t | mosor apdrehitestn ca. ik

eatey Gornrer Architicta Lid. Ropasecsd i Evelare B W ahes b 418798
i o

PRINTED: 0%/06/2023 16:10:17 A 3




ZqﬁﬁEd

3D VIEW 2 - FROM THE NORTH WEST

Adran Cynilunio 12/007/2023

C STEPS REMOVED FROM PLOT7 09/06/23 TA
GARDEN; GATE ADDED TO
|ATTENUATION BASIN;
LANDSCAPE DESIGN UPDATED

B |LAYOUT UPDATED; 5P3B 25/05/23| TA
HOUSES ADDED; Mo 3P2E
FLATS INCREASED; FRONT
LAYBY UPDATED

A |CHANGES FOLLOWING 24/01/23| 10
LANDSCAPE PLAN

|RE\'| DESCRIPTION | DATE | BY ‘

THIS DRAWING I5 THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMAMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES
0 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO MOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK T0 FIGURED
DIMENSIDNS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

PROPOSED 3D VIEW -
FROM THE NORTH WEST

SCALE DATE | DRAWN | CHECKED
@Aal 03/01/23 ‘ o | sv

DRAWING

STATUS PRELIMINARY

108 No DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1104 051 €
AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

‘THE GLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYRAE WAY, HAWARDEN, CHS 3HS
Tai: re— -




—

DERBYN

Advan Cyritunio 120712023

SQTeﬁed

3D VIEW 3 - FROM THE NORTH EAST

€ STEPS REMOVED FROM PLOT7 09/06/23 TA
GARDEN; GATE ADDED T0'
|ATTENUATION BASIN;
LANDSCAPE DESIGN UPDATED

B |LAYOUT UPDATED; 5P38 25/05/23 | TA
HOUSES ADDED; No 3P2B
FLATS INCREASED; FRONT
LAYBY UPDATED

A |CHANGES FOLLOWING 24/01/23| 10
LANDSCAPE PLAN

|RE\'| DESCRIPTION | DAFE | sv|

THIS DRAWING IS THE CORYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES
70 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT, ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN T0
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK T0 FIGURED
DIMENSIDNS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

PROPOSED 3D VIEW -
FROM THE NORTH EAST

SCALE DATE | DRAWN |CHECKED

@A5| 09/01/23 le] sV

DRAWING

STATUS PRELIMINARY

108N DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1104 052 €
AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

‘THE GLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYRHE WAY, HAWARDEN, CHS 3NS
Tl 01344 517 100 | s

i Archi o B B ke Wi
i e
PRINTED: 02/06/2023 16:11:10 A 3




3D VIEW 4 - FROM THE SOUTH EAST

-
QD

i
~

C STEPS REMOVED FROM PLOT7 09/06/23 TA
GARDEN; GATE ADDED TO
|ATTENUATION BASIN;
LANDSCAPE DESIGN UPDATED

B |LAYOUT UPDATED; 5P3B 25/05/23| TA
HOUSES ADDED; Mo 3P2E
FLATS INCREASED; FRONT
LAYBY UPDATED

A |CHANGES FOLLOWING 24/01/23| 10
LANDSCAPE PLAN

|RE\'| DESCRIPTION | DATE | BY ‘

THIS DRAWING I5 THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMAMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES
0 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
DO MOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. WORK T0 FIGURED
DIMENSIDNS DNLY.

PROJECT

SITE AT BONTNEWYDD
for KINGSCROWN
PROPERTIES

DRAWING TITLE

PROPOSED 3D VIEW -
FROM THE SOUTH EAST

SCALE DATE | DRAWN | CHECKED
@Aal 09/01/23 ‘ o | sv

DRAWING

STATUS PRELIMINARY

108 No DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1104 053 €
AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

PRINTED: 0%/06/2023 16:11:33



Page 125



Page 126









Page 129



Page 130



Agenda Item 5.4

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

Number: 4
Application C24/0331/41/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 29/04/2024

Application Full

Type:

Community: Llanystumdwy

Ward: Llanystumdwy

Proposal: Application for nine additional caravans in the caravan
field

L ocation: Ty'n Lon, Afonwen, Pwllheli, Gwynedd, LL53 6TX

Summary of the
Recommendation:  To APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 131


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=22410

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

1 Description:

1.1 The application is to install nine additional caravans on the current touring caravan site. It is
intended to install four touring caravan pitches near the western boundary of the site and five
touring caravan pitches would be located centrally on the site. There is current permission to
install 19 touring caravans on the site and the proposal would increase this to 28 touring caravans.
One parking space would be provided for each caravan on the site and it is intended to create a
gravel track within the site.

1.2 This is a rural site situated parallel to the A497 class 1 highway, between the Afon Wen
roundabout and Pandy junction that leads to Chwilog. There are mature trees along the existing
field boundaries. There are scattered houses and farms in the vicinity. The field in question has
been identified as a Local Wildlife Site.

1.3 The application is submitted to the Planning Committee as the application site is greater than 0.5
hectare. The Local Member has also made a request to call in the application to a Committee.

2. Relevant Policies:

2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of
Planning Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations
include National Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan. Although the Anglesey and
Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan (LDP) pre-dates the latest version of Planning Policy
Wales (PPW), it is considered that the policies that are relevant to this application in the Joint
LDP remain consistent with PPW.

2.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the seven well-being goals within the Act.
This report has been prepared in consideration of the Council's duty and the "sustainable
development principle"”, as set out in the 2015 Act. In drawing up the recommendation below, the
Council has sought to ensure that the needs of the present day are met without endangering the
ability of future generations to also meet their needs.

2.3 The Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-2026 adopted on 31 July
2017

PS 1. The Welsh Language and Culture

PS 4: Sustainable transport, development and accessibility

TRA 2: Parking standards

TRA 4: Managing transport impacts

PS 5: Sustainable Development

PCYFF 1: Development boundaries

PCYFF 2: Development criteria

PCYFF 3: Design and place shaping

PCYFF 4: Design and landscaping

PS 14: The Visitor Economy

TWR 5: Touring caravan, camping and temporary alternative camping accommodation
PS 19: Conserve and where appropriate enhance the natural environment
AMG 6: Protecting Sites of Regional or Local Significance

Supplementary Planning Guidance: Tourist Facilities and Accommodation (March 2021)

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable
Communities

Page 132



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

2.4 National Policies:

Future Wales: The National Plan 2040

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 - February 2024)
Technical Advice Note: 12 Design: June (2016)
Technical Advice Note: 18 Transport: March (2007)

3 Relevant Planning History:

C21/1038/41/LL - Establishing a touring caravan site (19 units) with a toilet block and associated works -
Refused 2 March 2023. The proposal was granted on Appeal on 21 November 2023.

4, Consultations:

Community/Town
Council:

Transportation:

Welsh Water:

Object as it creates over-tourism in the area. We have
concerns that there is no definition of 'over-concentration’ in
the planning rules. We are also concerned that the current
planning application does not comply, which is that a
‘clawdd’ is hiding them.

Not received.

We refer to your planning consultation relating to the above
site, and we can provide the following comments in respect
to the proposed development.

SEWERAGE

Since the proposal intends utilising an alternative to mains
drainage, we would advise that the applicant seek advice
from Natural Resources Wales and or the Local Authority
Building Control Department / Approved Building Inspector
as both are responsible to regulate alternative methods of
drainage. However, should circumstances change and a
connection to the public sewerage system/public sewerage
treatment works is preferred we must be re-consulted on this
application.

Advisory Note

The applicant is also advised that some public sewers and
lateral drains may not be recorded on our maps of public
sewers because they were originally privately owned and
were transferred into public ownership by nature of the Water
Industry (Schemes for Adoption of Private Sewers)
Regulations 2011. The presence of such assets may affect the
proposal. In order to assist us in dealing with the proposal the
applicant may contact Dwr Cymru Welsh Water. Under the
Water Industry Act 1991 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water has rights
of access to its apparatus at all times.

WATER SUPPLY

We anticipate this development will require the installation of
a new single water connection to serve the new premise.
Capacity is available in the water supply system to
accommodate the development. The applicant will need to
apply to Dwr Cymru Welsh Water for a connection to the
potable water supply system under Section 45 of the Water

Page 133



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

Water and
Environment Unit
YGC:

Biodiversity Unit:

Caravan Licensing
Enforcement Unit:

Industry Act 1991. The applicant's attention is drawn to our
new water connection application guidance notes available
on our website.

Our response is based on the information provided by your
application. Should the proposal alter during the course of the
application process we kindly request that we are re-
consulted and reserve the right to make new representation.

The unit has no observations to offer on this application in
terms of land drainage, local flooding risk or coastal erosion.

Not received.

This memo gives an update following a Licensing Inspection
for the T9’n Lon site on 04-06-24.

The development will be subject to the Legislation stated
below relating to Health and Safety, Fire Safety and Public
Health provision as follows:

1. The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974
2. The Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960

3. Model Standards 1989 - Static Caravan - Warden
Occupancy

The development must fully comply with licence conditions.

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/trwyddedcarafanau

A static caravan has been located near the shed that is
possibly used for the site warden's occupancy. A site licence
would be required for this activity but a planning permission
is required before the applicant can make an application for a
warden caravan licence.

4. Model Standards 1983 - Touring Caravans / Tents
The development must fully comply with licence conditions.

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/trwyddedcarafanau

5. Emergency Vehicles - Model Standards 1983

The main entrance in and out of the site has not been created
in accordance with the 1:500 1801/03 site plan dated 09-12-
2002. Kerbs have been created to restrict access in this area.

Page 134


http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/trwyddedcarafanau
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/trwyddedcarafanau
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/trwyddedcarafanau
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/trwyddedcarafanau

PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

Fire and Rescue
Service:

Public Protection
Unit:

The main gate to the site where the Ty’n LoOn site signs are
displayed was locked with a padlock during the 04-06-24 site
visit and does not comply with the licence conditions if an
emergency occurred on the site where emergency / doctor
vehicles etc. needed access in such an emergency.
Emergency vehicles need appropriate access, within 90
metres of any unit on the site on every occasion in
accordance with the licence conditions.

6. Toilet, cleaning, showers, washroom facilities for the
disabled

Disabled facilities have not been provided in accordance with
the 1:50 1801/04 plan dated 09-12-2002. Access to the toilet
blocks at the back of the building is contrary to the plan
which leads to the slope path to the toilets where the disabled
facilities should have been created. The entrance to the
facilities should be created at the front of the building facing
the main road. It is a requirement to provide the following,
including a disabled facilities room:

Women Men
Toilet 2 2
Washing 2 2
Shower 2 2
Disabled Toilet Wash Shower
Provision Basin

7. An application for a Site Licence following a permitted
planning application. We wish for this information to be
reported on the planning permission should the application be
permitted: 'Following any planning application permitted in
relation to a caravan or camping site under the 1960 and 1936
Acts, the applicant would be required to make an application
for a site licence and present a 1:500 scale detailed plan of
the site to the Licensing Service. To discuss further, you can
contact the Licensing Enforcement Officer, Pollution Control
and Licensing Service, Cyngor Gwynedd on 01766 771000
or trwyddedu@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

The Fire Authority has no observations regarding the access
for fire vehicles and a water supply.

Not received.

Page 135



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

Public Consultation: A notice was posted on the site and neighbouring
residents/nearby properties were informed. An objection was
received on the grounds of:

e The plan does not show the location of the nine
additional caravans.

e Impact on neighbouring property as the caravans are
seen through the hedges of nearby property.

e  Trees falling from Bryn Tirion Forest.

e Matters relating to the lack of compliance with the
planning permission on matters such as the location of
the caravans, badgers’ licence, children's play area,
access to the site, planting that had not been done, static
caravans on the land.

e Concern that there is only electric connection near each
pitch and that water and sewerage have not been
connected.

5. Assessment of the material planning considerations:
The Principle of the Development

5.1 As this is a site for touring caravans, the application must be considered under Policy TWR 5 of
the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan (LDP) that sets out a series of criteria
to approve such developments. Policy TWR 5 declares that proposals for touring caravan sites,
camping sites or alternative temporary camping accommaodation, extensions to current sites or
additional plots are permitted if they can comply with the criteria included in the Policy.

5.2 Criterion 1 in policy TWR 5 states that any touring caravan developments should be of a high
guality in terms of design, layout and appearance, and well screened by existing landscape
features and / or where the units can be readily assimilated into the landscape in a way which
does not significantly harm the visual quality of the landscape.

5.3 The proposal involves increasing the number of touring caravans on the current site. The site is
located on a level field with mature trees along the boundaries and is therefore hidden from public
places. The site is not within the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) or a Special
Landscape Area and it is not believed that increasing the number of units would cause significant
harm to the quality of the landscape. The proposal has been designed to meet the licensing
requirements in terms of space between units and no concerns were raised about the density of the
units in relation to the size of the site. It is therefore not considered that the proposal would be an
over-development of the site and it is considered that there is sufficient space to locate nine
additional units on the current touring caravan site.

5.4 The second criteria of Policy TWR 5 requires the avoidance of excessive areas of hard standing.
The application shows an intention to create a gravel track to facilitate vehicular movements
within the site. It is considered that a gravel track can easily assimilate into the landscape. It is not
considered that the proposal creates an over-concentration of hard standings and that what is
offered is suitable and acceptable in terms of the relevant criteria.

5.5 The third criterion requires assurance that the site would only accommodate touring units - this
can be controlled with a suitable planning condition.
Page 136



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

5.6.  The fourth criterion requires assurance that any ancillary facilities should be located in an existing
building, or should this not be possible, that any new facility is commensurate to the scale of the
development. A toilets / shower blocks was permitted as part of the C21/1038/41/LL application
and an additional building would not be required as part of the current application. The proposal
therefore satisfies criterion 4 of TWR 5 as well as policy PCYFF 3 of the LDP.

5.7 Under the fifth criterion, the policy requires the site to be located close to the main roads network
and that adequate access can be provided without significantly harming landscape characteristics
and features - highway matters are discussed below.

5.8 The sixth criterion requires assurance that occupancy is restricted to holiday use only - this can be
secured with a suitable planning condition.

5.9 The seventh, and the last of the criteria, requires assurance that the site is used for touring
purposes only and that the units are removed from the site during periods when not in use - again,
this is a matter of imposing a suitable planning condition.

5.10  Overall therefore, it is believed that the proposal meets the requirements of the criteria set by
Policy TWR 5 and the policy requirements of PCYFF 3 in the LDP.

5.11  On application C21/1038/41/LL, concerns were raised by Members about the cumulative impact
in terms of the site's proximity to other static caravan sites such as Hafan y Mér and Ocean
Heights, and the Afon Wen touring site opposite and Swn y Moér behind. Although there are
several static and touring sites in the vicinity, the area in question was not considered to be an
example of a location that is under extreme pressure in terms of such tourism developments.
Unlike Policy TWR 3, which concerns touring caravan and chalet sites and permanent alternative
camping accommodation, the cumulative impact in the criteria of policy TWR 5 is not a
consideration as touring use is temporary with less impact than static structures. However, the
criteria themselves responded to the cumulative impact in the sense that sites in obtrusive places
that are not close to the main roads network should not be permitted. Even during the winter
months, it is considered that the site is well screened by the existing landscape features. In
paragraph 6.3.81 of the policy it states that caravans should not be permitted in open countryside
or in Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty. The site is located away from an open coastal location
and there is no landscape designation in the vicinity. The Afon Wen Farm touring site opposite is
comparatively well hidden, and although it may share the same visual context from the county
highway, due to the nature of the vegetation it is not considered that the development would
appear excessive or harmful to the landscape at this site. The matter of cumulative impact was
also considered and disregarded by the Inspector as part of the appeal on the C21/1038/41/LL
application. It is considered that due attention is given to the cumulative impact of developing a
touring caravan site on the land on the application and associated appeal of C21/1038/41/LL. By
now, the touring caravan site has been established on the land and it must be remembered that this
is an application to install an additional nine touring caravans on a current caravan site and not to
create a new caravan site.

General and residential amenities

5.12  The property of T9y'n Lon stands alone parallel to the county highway. The nearest property is
over the A497 road and a field's width of approximately 135 metres to the south-west, namely
Fferm Afon Wen. Hen Efail is more than two fields away, approximately 270 metres to the north
east, and Swn y Mor property over two fields away, approximately 250 metres to the north west.
Based on the distance and the hidden nature of the field, it is not considered that the proposal
would have a substantial detrimental impact or cause disruption to any nearby residents. It is
considered that the proposal is acceptable in terms of Policy PCYFF 2 of the LDP that deals with
protecting the amenities of nearby land users.

Page 137



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

Transport and access matters

5.13  The site has direct access to a class 1 road, the A497 with an area of wide pavement between the
road and the entrance to the property. The road is straight at this location and visibility is clear in
both directions for a distance. There will be no need to make any changes to the access to serve
the proposal. No response to the application was received from the Transportation Unit. There are
plenty of parking spaces available within the site. It is therefore considered that the proposal is
acceptable in terms of Policies TRA 2 and TRA 4 of the LDP. The proposal also satisfies the
requirements of criterion 5 of policy TWR 5 as it is close to the main highway network and
adequate access can be provided without significantly harming landscape characteristics and
features.

Sustainability

5.14  Policy PS 5 (Sustainable Developments) supports developments which are consistent with
sustainable development principles, and where appropriate, developments should:

"Reduce the need to travel by private transport and encourage the opportunities for all users to
travel when required as often as possible by means of alternative modes, placing particular
emphasis on walking, cycling and using public transport, in accordance with Strategic Policy 4"
(Bullet point 12, Policy PS 5)".

This is supported by bullet point 4 of Policy PS 14 (The Visitor Economy).

5.15 It is considered that the policies of the LDP are consistent with local and national planning
policies in terms of how they deal with sustainable development principles.

5.16  Although it is accepted that users of the touring units would use private vehicles to reach the site
(due to the need to tow a caravan) there are various alternative transport options available once
they reach the site, including cycling, public transport and on foot.

5.17 It is noted that the bus stop is located close to Afon Wen roundabout and not far from the site's
main access on the A497. In addition, there is a pavement all the way along the road from the
site's access to Criccieth or paths to Pwllheli where several facilities and attractions are available.
The pavement also links to several of the area's public footpaths, such as y Lon Goed. In the
context of all the relevant material planning considerations, it is considered that the location of
the development is a sustainable site and is acceptable in relation to the requirements of policies
PS4, PS5 and PS14 of the LDP, and complies with the advice included in TAN 18 and PPW.

Biodiversity matters

5.18  The field in question together with the land to the north and west of the site has been identified as
a Local Wildlife Site. The field was acknowledged as improved grassland with low conservation
value on the C21/1038/41/LL application but the boundary hedges surrounding the site are
important. By now, the field acts as a touring caravan site. It is considered, like the previous
application, that it would be important to keep the boundary hedges surrounding the site and a
similar condition could be set to what is on the C21/01038/41/LL application to protect these
hedges on any planning permission. A very short Green Infrastructure Statement was received
which offered biodiversity improvements to include bird and bat boxes on the toilets / shower
building. It is considered that proposing a bird and bat box is acceptable, but it is considered that
there is an opportunity here to include more biodiversity improvements such as additional
planting to reiterate the boundaries and / or plant within the site. It is therefore considered that it
would be appropriate to include a condition to agree on biodiversity improvements. It is
considered that, from imposing appropriate conditions, the proposal is acceptable in terms of the
requirements of policy AMG 5 of the LDP and Planning Policy Wales.

Page 138



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

The Welsh Language

5.19 In accordance with the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, it is a duty when determining a planning
application to consider the Welsh language, where it is relevant to that application. This is
reiterated further in para 3.28 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, 2019), along with Technical
Advice Note 20.

5.20 The Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 'Maintaining and Creating Unique and Sustainable
Communities' (adopted July 2019), provides further guidance on how it is expected for Welsh
language considerations to be incorporated in each relevant development. The proposal does not
reach the thresholds to submit a Welsh Language Statement or a Report on a Welsh Language
Impact Assessment; however, the guidance included within Appendix 5 notes that every retail,
commercial or industrial development where there is no need to submit a Welsh Language Impact
Statement/Assessment should show how consideration has been given to the language.

5.21 A document was submitted to support the application explaining how the Welsh language was
considered when formulating this plan, noting the following points:
e Retain the Welsh name T§'n Lon and bilingual signage
e The use for short-term holiday use and in general for a period of approximately six
months during the summer period.
e The proposal would contribute directly and indirectly to the rural economy through
visitor spending in facilities such as local pubs, restaurants and other organisations.
e The development would include an initial investment of £60,000 to £70,000 with
local suppliers and contractors being used.
e Employ one part-time staff member.
e Thesite is central to local centres.

5.22  In considering the above, it is believed that sufficient information has been submitted to satisfy
the requirements of policy PS 1 and the SPG in terms of demonstrating that the Welsh language
has received appropriate consideration in creating this proposal.

Any other matters

5.23 It is seen from the observations of the Caravan Licensing Enforcement Unit and correspondence
received by a third party that there were concerns whether the caravan site implemented in
accordance with the C21/1038/41/LL planning permission. The Enforcement Service is aware of
these matters and are looking into the matters raised. Although it is a shame that there is a
possibility that the site does not implement in accordance with the planning permission, this alone
is not a reason to refuse the current application.

6. Conclusions:

6.1 Having considered the assessment above and all the relevant planning matters including the local
and national policies and guidance, as well as the observations received, it is believed that the
proposal is acceptable based on the matters noted in the report and that it would not have a
substantial impact on the landscape, amenities of the neighbourhood or road safety.

7. Recommendation:
7.1 To approve the application subject to the following conditions:

Time

In accordance with the plans

Restrict the number of touring units on the entire site to 28 touring caravans only.
Holiday use only and maintain a register.

Holiday season - 1 March to 31 October

No storing of touring caravans on the site.

ok wnE

Page 139



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

7. Retain the trees and hedges along the site's boundaries.

8. Submission and agreement of biodiversity improvements for the site.

9. Any hard standings are limited to caravan pitches and the track as shown on plan 1965/03 only.
Notes:

Caravans licence required
Draw attention to Dwr Cymru comments

Page 140



j—?ﬁetmappin;i.com

(2) 2

T
e

£
STt

istom |-

TR
e
£ 5
& 2
¥ il
Py
G g

Drstriarcw Sorpep wradll
Frarhs arid 0% Manterhieg e Ledrante
By A a8 CAakae0 1y Bps ey TLGreal B,

TR e R O T S GF G RIG Fen
o n o Wy

Tre el ieasi b oL Tnan i 04 HE6 B e dedie s 6l
Eraety S oy

T T obed

Symiisd s o pnber kv

Fiten

= witn

e

Scale’1- Y2601

o ] 8
Mitras

B o Dy (G
Caidi ooy ni || SUSSE, T
Ui iEves it 000 MIBAR

Cynllunio

Derbyn 25.04.24

Ty'n Lon, Chwilog

Location plan

Cefn Bryn, 24 Stryd Fawr, Criccieth LL52 0BT

Tel: 0770 925 8926
ebost: gwyn@ty-newydd.com

Design & project management www.ty-newydd.com

Ty-Newydd
Dylunio a rheolaeth project

2
-1}
.

1:1250
04-04-2024



Cynllunio

Darbyn 25.04.24

A %
K

2
\ //(( 7 7 .
r

"y

LT, ? \
)

o \

e

: _,,4

f)‘

i o
~toilet/ shower 1 | ) N
block 0o 5 b I
d \ 7 L)
X
X
A2
NN
h a NN
[y | i \‘\\\.
gravel track ) . Fr | ‘ 5 i3 R =48 SN
: ‘ - entrance i
recycling and bins S
L1 = - g T
=5 e
L, AiEe 47«»47«5&45’?&/ » ‘w/ /,/:?,2’«/»,f,ﬂ£/ e
r’f??”/r'/?a 55 e ” 4 s P

\ e -~
) 'g:’f:’«'/;:’f:’f///f/f///f //n:/ ////f/f 2

i
«"///f/(‘/

Ty'n L6n, Chwilog

Site plan (as existing)

i,
A

i
&

2T obed

Ty-Newydd

Dylunio a rheolaeth project

gwyn@ty-newydd.com

Cefn Bryn, 24 Stryd Fawr, Criccieth LL52 0BT

Tel: 0770 925 8926

ebost

Design & project management www.ty-newydd.com

-]
&
5]

1:500 @ A3

1109-12-2022



Cynllunio

B Derbyn 25.04 94

s f/x/

.}' ' "25/{&:,
,x

r.«/zra f/f

% J//’ 5
% vy

Touring
caravan's ' A ) )
0.74h ¢ ;
a J o ¢ /ﬁ{ {{;.ﬁ 2 )
T
/
\ /

fire point PR D 9 . "
S} watr - toilet block - "

Bio Pure 6 treaﬁnent plant \ AN

% entrance

recycling and bins

%
T ?‘if-G/ 7 ?S/ 5
7 S ’/’ /,".’»"r’}" f?ﬁ"r’/ /,'-.z, ’
7 r/m‘(( r/rr’(« e

] il e
72 ’ .—n’/.;‘ {? 5 i / ’f f‘?f.’/ é;/;f:%; ; g R /fr¢ /f/f =

Ty'n Lén, Chwilog

Site plan (proposed)

& AR

e abed

gwyn@ty-newydd.com

Cefn Bryn, 24 Stryd Fawr, Criccieth LL52 0BT
Tel: 0770 925 8926
ebost

Design & project management www.ty-newydd.com

Ty-Newydd

Dylunio a rheolaeth project

-t
-2}
Q
=]
@

1:500 @ A3
09-12-2022



'."ﬂ.‘ . '\* r”“:f%ﬂﬁ"w

T
- .
1“;'-' o)







R Ot o i oe s
<F S AT e

e g







Agenda Iltem 5.5

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 5

Application C24/0289/03/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 23/04/2024

Application Full

Type:

Community: Ffestiniog

Ward: Teigl

Proposal: Conversion of former Wynne's Arms into 5 residential flats

Wynnes Arms Hotel, Manod Road, Manod, Blaenau

Location:
Ffestiniog, Gwynedd, LL41 4AR

Summary of the
Recommendation:  To APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 148


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=86259
https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=86259

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1 Description:

1.1 The application is to convert a public house into five residential, self-contained flats, along with
the creation of parking spaces and alterations to the access. The plans indicate a proposal for 3
two-bedroom flats and 2 one-bedroom flats. The use made of the building as a public house
ceased at the beginning of 2017 and the building has been closed. The existing building provides
a public house facility on the ground floor, a storage cellar below and one flat on the first and
second floors. The existing flat includes a living room, kitchen, bathroom and three bedrooms on
the first floor and two bedrooms and storage space in the roof-space. The proposal would involve
interior changes to create the flats. It is also proposed to remove the signage and demolish the
smoking shelter on the southern (side) elevation to erect a two-storey side extension to include a
bedroom and living room for flats number 1 and number 2 situated in the basement and ground
floor. The exterior changes are restricted to the side extension and the slight alteration of the
layout of the ground floor windows and door openings on the basement level on the western
elevation (rear).

1.2 The building is situated on a triangular plot in a prominent position in Manod. It is proposed to
provide parking spaces for six cars along the southern boundary, a vehicular access to the
adjacent class 3 county road and a small garden with a patio in the south-eastern corner. A site for
locating refuse bins and a bike storage area are located along the western boundary of the

property.

1.3 As part of the application a Flooding Consequence Assessment (FCA) was submitted along with
a Design and Access Statement, valuation and information in terms of the viability of the
development, a Construction Plan, Highways and Environmental Management Plan and a Green
Strategy Statement.

14 The site is within the development boundary of Blaenau Ffestiniog. The site lies within a World
Heritage Site and within a Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest. The Manod Road trunk
road (A470) runs along the front (east), a class 3 county road runs to the side (northern) and rear
(western) and Hyfrydle Chapel is located to the south beyond the existing beer garden. The
building is situated within a residential area.

1.5 The application is submitted to the Committee at the request of the local member.
2. Relevant Policies:

2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of
Planning Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations
include National Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan. Although the Gwynedd and
Ynys Mon Joint Local Development Plan (LDP) pre-dates the latest version of Planning Policy
Wales (PPW), it is considered that the policies that are relevant to this application in the Joint
LDP remain consistent with PPW.

2.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the seven well-being goals within the Act.
This report has been prepared in consideration of the Council's duty and the "sustainable
development principle”, as set out in the 2015 Act. In drawing up the following recommendation,
the Council has sought to ensure that the needs of the present day are met without endangering
the ability of future generations to meet their needs also.

2.3 The Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-2026 adopted on 31 July
2017

PS 1: The Welsh language and culture

Page 149



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

ISA 1: Infrastructure Provision

PS4: Sustainable transport, development and accessibility

TRA 2: Parking standards

TRA 4: Managing transport impacts

PS 5: Sustainable development

PS 6: Alleviating and adapting to the effects of climate change

PCYFF 1: Development Boundaries

PCYFF 2: Development Criteria

PCYFF 3: Design and place shaping

PCYFF6: Water conservation

PS16: Housing provision

PS17 - Settlement Strategy

TAI 1: Housing in the Sub-regional Centre and the Urban Service Centres.
TAI 8: Housing Mix.

TAI 9: Sub-dividing existing property to self-contained flats and houses in multiple occupation
PS 18: Affordable housing

TAI 15: Affordable housing threshold and distribution

PS 19: Protect and/or enhance natural environment

AMG 5: Local Biodiversity Protection

PS 20: Protecting and where appropriate enhancing heritage assets

AT 1: Conservation Areas, World Heritage Sites and Registered Historic Landscapes, Parks and
Gardens.

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG):

SPG: Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities
SPG: Affordable Housing

SPG: Housing Mix

National Policies:

Future Wales: The National Plan 2040

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 - February 2024)
Technical Advice Note 12: Design

Technical Advice Note 15: Development and Flood Risk.
Technical Advice Note 18: Transportation

Technical Advice Note 20: Planning and the Welsh language

Relevant Planning History:

C19/1028/03/LL - Application to convert a public house into five flats, along with the erection of
a rear extension and parking spaces - Refused 23 October 2020. An appeal was refused on 24
December 2020. The application was refused based on flooding issues and that a Flooding
Consequences Assessment had not been submitted.

C17/0989/03/LL Application for change of use from a public house into offices (B1), along with
the creation of parking spaces - Approved on 05.12.2017.

C17/0988/03/LL Application for the change of use from a public house into one self-contained
residential house and creation of parking spaces - Approved 05.12.2017.

C07M/0056/03/LL Construction of sheltered decking on the gable end of the public house:
Approved 21 May 2007

Page 150



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

4, Consultations:

Community/Town
Council:

Transportation:

Welsh Water:

Water and
Environment Unit
YGC:

The Town Council wishes to object to the above planning
application. Letters of objection and a petition have been
received in the office.

I refer to the above application and | confirm that the
transportation unit does not have any objection to the
proposal.

We refer to your planning consultation relating to the above
site, and we can provide the following comments in respect
to the proposed development.

ASSET PROTECTION This site is crossed by a public sewer
with the approximate position being marked on the attached
Statutory Public Sewer Record. In accordance with the Water
Industry Act 1991, Dwr Cymru Welsh Water requires access
to its apparatus at all times in order to carry out maintenance
and repairs. Having regard to the Proposed Site Plan, it would
appear that a patio, bike racks and bin store are proposed
above and within the protection zone of the public sewer
measured 3 metres either side of the centreline. On the strict
understanding that these are demountable structures should
we require access to carry out maintenance and repairs on the
sewer we offer no objection in principle, however we would
request that the developer contacts us prior to commencement
of work on site.

SEWERAGE We would request if minded to grant planning
consent, that the following Condition and Advisory Notes are
included to ensure no detriment to existing residents or the
environment and to Dwr Cymru Welsh Water's assets:

Condition

No surface water from any increase in the roof area of the
building /or impermeable surfaces within its curtilage shall be
allowed to drain directly or indirectly to the public sewerage
system.

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public
sewerage system, to protect the health and safety of existing
residents and ensure no pollution of or detriment to the
environment.

The observations also include advice for the developer.

Flood Risk and Land Drainage

We have reviewed the Flooding Consequences Assessment
(FCA) submitted (Betts Hydro, November 2023) and we
agree that it appears that the flood risk associated with the
proposed development is acceptable. Flood risk mitigation
measures must be provided within the proposed development
as described in section 9.2 of the FCA (from page 28).

Page 151



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Biodiversity Unit:

Cadw:

INFORMATION: A watercourse in a culvert runs through
the site of the development but it does not appear that the
scheme would disrupt the flow of the watercourse in any
way. Nevertheless, the developer is advised to identify the
exact route of this culvert and avoid installing / erecting any
structures within 3m of it as this could impede future
maintenance. In addition, an Ordinary Watercourse Consent
will be required for any work that may affect the flow of the
watercourse and FCRMU@gwynedd.llyw.cymru should be
contacted for further advice.

SuDS Approval Body Comments

Since 7 January 2019, sustainable drainage systems (SuDS)
are needed to control surface water for every new
development of more than one house or where the
construction area with drainage obligations is 100m2 or
more. Drainage systems must be designed and constructed in
accordance with the minimum standards for sustainable
drainage as published by Welsh Ministers.

These systems must be approved by Cyngor Gwynedd in its
role as SuDS Approval Body (SAB) prior to commencement
of the construction work.

Due to the size and nature of the development, it is likely that
an application will need to be provided to the SuDS Approval
Body for approval before construction work commences. The
information provided suggests that the developer intends to
use suitable sustainable measures to drain the site, but until
an application is made to the SAB, there is no guarantee that
the site plan would enable compliance with the full set of
national SuDS standards.

Is it proposed to convert the attic or the roof-space, or to re-
roof? Is there work on the eaves? It may be better to get a
preliminary roost assessment.

Thank you for your letter inviting our comments on the
information submitted for the above planning application.

Advice

Having carefully considered the information provided, we
have no objection to the proposed development in regards to
the world heritage site listed in our assessment of the
application below.

The national policy and Cadw’s role in planning are set out
an Annex A.

Assessment
The application area is located inside the Ffestiniog: its Slate

Page 152



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Welsh Government’s
Transportation Unit:

Housing Strategic
Unit:-

mines and Quarries, 'city of slates’ and Railway to
Porthmadog section of The Slate Landscape of Northwest
Wales World Heritage Site.

The proposed development will see the conversion of the
former public house into five apartments. The only
significant change to the existing building will be the
replacement of an existing extension with a larger one in a
similar style. The proposed changes will not be out of place
in the Manod area of Blaenau Ffestiniog and will therefore
not have an impact on the outstanding universal values of the
World Heritage Site.

| refer to your consultation of 24/04/2024 regarding the
above planning application and advise that the Welsh
Government as highway authority for the A470 trunk road
removes the current holding direction and directs that any
permission granted by your authority shall include the
following conditions:

The construction works are to be carried out in accordance
with the construction traffic management plan (CTMP).

1) The above conditions are included to maintain the safety
and free flow of trunk road traffic.

The following points should be brought to the attention of the
applicant:

1) The applicant is advised that no loading or unloading is to
take place from the trunk road.

See the following regarding the need for affordable housing
in Blaenau Ffestiniog.

Number of applicants registered with Housing Options for a
social property: 105

Number of

bedrooms Need as a %

1 gwely / bed 29%
2 gwely / bed 40%
3 gwely / bed 24%
4 gwely / bed 5%
5 gwely / bed 1%

Number of applicants registered with Tai Teg for an
intermediate property: 23

Page 153



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number of

bedrooms Needasa%| rent purchase

1 gwely / bed 4% 4% 0%
2 gwely / bed 43%| 30% 13%
3 gwely / bed 30% 9% 22%
4+ gwely / bed 22% 9% 13%

*Note that figures could be duplicated between the social and
intermediate need and between the rent and buy need.

Public Consultation: A notice was posted on the site and neighbouring
residents/nearby properties were informed. Objections were
received on the grounds of:-

¢ Building unsuitable for five flats

No need for one-bedroom flats

Need homes, not more short-term accommodation

Lack of provision of affordable housing

No need for one-bedroom flats

Unnecessary provision of temporary accommodation

Will attract anti-social problems

Vagueness regarding accommodation for individuals

with relationship issues

Parking matters

The location of the building is dangerous - situated at

the side of two roads

Will reduce house prices

Will attract outsiders to the area.

Will spoil the area and the community.

Question the location of the site notice

Also, a petition was received with 74 signatories.
5. Assessment of the material planning considerations:
The principle of the development

5.1 Community Facility - As a starting point to assess the principle of this application, there is a
need to consider policy ISA 2: Community Facilities. The policy aims to protect existing facilities
and encourage the development of new facilities where appropriate. For the purpose of this
policy, community facilities are defined as facilities used by local communities for health,
recreation, social and educational purposes and they include schools, libraries, leisure centres,
health care provision, theatres, village halls, cemeteries, places of worship, public houses and any
other facility that performs the function of serving the community.

5.2 Clause 2 of Policy ISA 2 states that change of use of a community facility should be resisted
unless it is possible to comply with one of three options. Part iii. is relevant in this case, as it
involves a facility that is commercially operated. Planning permissions have previously been
granted to redevelop the site. It can be seen from the planning history that applications were

Page 154



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

granted in 2017 to convert the building into an office and a house. It must therefore be realised
that the principle of loss of use as a public house has been agreed by granting those previous
applications and no change in circumstances has occurred since those applications were granted.
Therefore, please note that the Council has accepted the conversion of the public house for
alternative use and in those circumstances, losing the use of the property as a Public House within
the town would not be contrary to Part iii of policy ISA 2.

5.3 Housing (self-contained flats) - As referred to above, the site is located within the development
boundary of the Urban Service Centre and the application conforms with the requirements of
Policy PCYFFL1 of the LDP.

5.4 Policy TAI 9 permits the sub-division of existing properties into self-contained flats provided
they fulfil the relevant criteria:-

° Criterion 1 - the property should be suitable to be sub-divided for the type and number of
units proposed without having to make substantial alterations and extensions - the
amended plans show that it is intended to erect a two-storey extension on the side of the
building to replace the existing smaller extensions. It is also intended to alter the layout of
the ground floor window and door openings on the rear elevation. It is not considered
that the proposed extension would be a significant addition to the building, especially in
considering that a smaller extension is to be demolished to facilitate the new extension.

° Criterion 3 - ensure that the proposal will not have a detrimental impact on the amenities
of nearby residents - it is considered that residential use would be more suitable than the
exiting public house use within a residential area and that the exterior alterations would
not be substantial enough to have a substantially unacceptable impact on the residential or
general amenities based on overlooking. It is also proposed to provide a storage area for
refuse bins within the site's curtilage. Six parking spaces would also be provided together
with a bicycle storage area.

. Criterion 4 - the proposal should not exacerbate existing parking problems in the local
area - it is acknowledged that the Council's services such as bus stations and car parks are
located to the north of the site; however, the proposal does include vehicle parking areas
within the site and it must be borne in mind that the building’s use is classed as a public
house.. It is also noted that the Transportation Unit together with the Welsh Government
have stated that there is no objection to the plan. It is likely that the use as a public house
could potentially attract more traffic to the site.

In the above circumstances, it is not considered that the proposal to convert the building into five
flats would be contrary to the objectives of policy TAI 9.

55 The indicative supply level for Blaenau Ffestiniog over the Plan period is 298 units (including a
10% 'slippage allowance', which means that the method of calculating the figure has taken into
account potential unforeseen circumstances which could influence the provision of housing, e.g.
land ownership matters, infrastructure restrictions, etc.). During the period between 2011 and
2023, a total of 23 units have been completed in Blaenau Ffestiniog. The windfall land bank; i.e.
sites with extant planning permission, in April 2023, was 23 units. Also, there are two housing
allocations for approximately 155 units in the Plan that have not received planning permission
thus far. Considering this information, it is believed that the development on this site can be
supported against the indicative supply level for Blaenau Ffestiniog.

5.6 Policy TAI 15 states that every development will be required to achieve an appropriate mix in
terms of tenure, types and sizes of affordable housing and this is supported by Policy TAI 8 along
with the SPG: Housing Mix. Please note that the Strategic Housing Unit states that there is a
recognised need for one- and two-bedroom flats in the town. The proposal provides 3 two-

Page 155



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

bedroom flats and 2 one-bedroom flats. Therefore there is a variety in terms of the number of
bedrooms and there is also a mixture in terms of the size of the units:

Flat 1 (2 bedrooms) approximately 104 m2.
Flat 2 (1 bedroom) approximately 54 m2.
Flat 3 (1 bedroom) approximately 40 m2.
Flat 4 (2 bedrooms) approximately 68 m2.
Flat 5 (1 bedroom) approximately 38 m2.

It is considered that the mixture proposed by the developer meets with the requirements identified
by the Strategic Housing Unit. To this end, it is believed that this amended application provides
an appropriate mix of accommodation in an existing building that meets a recognised need for
housing in the town.

5.7 Chapter 5 in SPG Housing Mix refers to the demand for housing in Gwynedd. Table 7 shows
projected figures for households of different sizes during the period 2014 and 2026 in Gwynedd.
Lifestyle choices and breakdown in relationships affect the composition of households, and the
economy affects household formation patterns. From the figures it can be seen that the number of
households is likely to increase by 3480 over the period 2014 to 2026 with the largest increase in
one-person households, followed by two-person households. This suggests that there will be a
high demand for smaller-sized housing. Please note that chapter 6 of the SPG Housing Mix sets
out planning for a more balanced housing market. It shows, amongst other things, that although
there would be demand for some large houses, the evidence shows that there is a more
fundamental need for a supply of smaller houses which are affordable to lower-income
households. It is therefore considered that the proposal meets with the policy objectives.

Affordable housing matters

5.8 Policy TAI 15 of the LDP states that Councils will attempt to ensure an appropriate level of
affordable houses in the plan's area. In Blaenau Ffestiniog, the threshold is two or more housing
units. In Blaenau Ffestiniog in line with Policy TAI 15 a 10% contribution of affordable housing
is expected. The proposal is for five flats, and it is appreciated that the building already includes
one flat and, consequently, any affordable element would have to be limited to the four new units.
Therefore, there is an expectation that the proposal will contribute 0.4 affordable units. When the
requirement for affordable housing falls below 1 unit on the site, then the provision of an
affordable unit will continue to be a priority where possible. However, if this is not deemed
possible, a pro-rata payment will be expected rather than no affordable provision on the site.
Where the viability of an individual scheme does not allow the policy requirements set out to be
met then it will be up to the applicant/ developer to demonstrate on a viability assessment pro-
forma what the circumstances are for justifying a contribution or lower tenure mix of affordable
housing.

59 The applicant submitted a Viability Assessment and valuation of the flats based on the 'Red Book’
valuation method. This information was assessed by the Planning Policy Team. The
representations received state that additional information has been received for the costs of
converting the existing building along with the open market value of the proposed units.
Following the verification of this information, it is confirmed that the conversion costs are a fair
figure and that the open market prices of the units are also reasonable. Based on this information
we agree with the applicant's analysis that in this case it in not viable to receive a contribution
towards affordable housing from the proposed development.

5.10 In accordance with criterion iv of policy TAI 15, the applicant submitted viability information
which indicates that it is not viable to provide affordable housing as part of the application. This
information has been assessed and the Planning Policy Team agree with the analysis that in this
case it is not viable to have a contribution towards affordable housing as part of this proposed
development. However, as noted in the Planning Policy Team's comments the open market E;ices

age 156



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

of the flats are reasonable and it is therefore assumed that the flats would be affordable in their
own right. Therefore, on the above basis, it is considered that the proposal complies with the
requirements of policy TAI 15 of the LDP.

Legislative Change

5.11  On 20 October 2022, the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) (Wales) Order
2022 came into force. This Order has made changes in terms of the use classes of residential
units. C3 use class has now been noted as dwelling houses used as sole or main residence. Two
additional use classes were added, namely C5 and C6. C5 use class is dwelling houses used in a
different manner to a sole or main residence and C6 use class is for short-term lettings no longer
than 31 days for each period of occupation. As this proposal has been assessed against the
expected growth level of Blaenau Ffestiniog to prepare a C3 residential unit to address the need of
the local community in accordance with Policy TAI 8, it is therefore considered appropriate to
include a condition for the flats to be restricted to C3 use class only namely residential dwellings
used as the sole or principal dwelling.

Visual amenities

5.12  Policy PCYFF 3 states that proposals will be approved, including extensions and changes to
existing buildings and structures, if they comply with a number of criteria including that the
proposal adds to or improves the character or appearance of the site, the building or the area in
terms of setting, appearance, scale, mass, the height and elevation treatment; that it respects the
context of the site and its place in the local landscape; that it uses materials that are appropriate to
their surroundings and incorporates soft landscaping; that it improves a safe and integrated
transport and communications network; that it limits the risk and danger of flood water run-off
and prevents pollution; that it achieves an inclusive design that allows access for all and helps to
create healthy and vibrant environments taking into account the health and well-being of future
users.

5.13  The proposal includes the conversion of a stone building into five flats. The plans indicate that a
side extension is planned to be erected along with minor external alterations. The design of the
extension is considered to be in-keeping with the appearance and character of the existing
building and the area, and would not detract from the area's visual amenities. Use of the building
will ensure suitable use and provide a means of ensuring the long-term use and condition of the
building. However, it is considered that a condition should be imposed on any approval to ensure
that any external work matches the design and materials of the existing exterior walls. The
proposal is considered acceptable on the grounds of the requirements of Policy PCYFF 3 of the
LDP.

Heritage Matters

5.14  The site lies within a World Heritage Site and within a Landscape of Outstanding Historic
Interest.

5.15  Observations were received from Cadw in terms of the impact on the World Heritage Site. The
observations state that the proposed changes to the building will not be out of place in the Manod
area of Blaenau Ffestiniog and will therefore not have an impact on the outstanding universal
values of the World Heritage Site. We would agree with the opinion of Cadw. The proposal does
not involve significant changes to the exterior appearance of the building and therefore it is not
considered that the proposal would have an impact on the outstanding universal values of a World
Heritage Site.

5.16  The site lies within a Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest. The proposal relates to making
alterations to existing property and in terms of its location and size, it is considered that the

Page 157



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

impact of the proposal would be local only and that it would not have a broader impact on the
historical landscape.

5.17  The proposal is considered acceptable in terms of Policies PS 20 and AT 1 of the LDP.
General and residential amenities

5.18 Policy PCYFF2 of the LDP states that proposals should be refused if they have a significant
detrimental impact on the health, safety or amenities of the occupants of local property, land uses
or other property due to increased activity, disturbance, noise etc. In terms of noise disturbance, it
is likely that the proposal will not have a significantly greater detrimental effect on the amenities
of nearby residents than the current use. In addition, it is considered that the use would be suitable
and compatible with the other existing uses surrounding the property. It must also be considered
that the site is located between two county roads.

5.19  The building lies in a prominent and public location. Please note that the building is located on
the opposite side of the road to terraced houses to the west, north and east and that objections
have been received alleging that the proposal would have a substantial negative impact on the
occupants of those properties. It must be considered that the building's existing use is as a public
house and it can therefore be used to its full potential without planning permission or any
planning conditions. It is felt that residential use would be more suitable to the area. The objectors
also state that the proposal, if approved, would attract anti-social problems; it is important to
remember that it is not possible to control the occupancy of the units under the planning system
and there is no evidence that this would be the case. It is reiterated that re-opening the public
house could also attract anti-social problems.

5.20 It is not considered that the proposal would exacerbate the current situation substantially in terms
of overlooking and loss of privacy, in particular considering the location and surroundings of
adjacent property. It must also be considered that community and passive overlooking already
exists between the various uses in the catchment area of the application site and that approving
this proposal would not exacerbate this situation to such an extent so that the application would
have to be refused on the grounds of its detrimental impact on residential amenities. The plan
shows a proposal to provide a bin and bicycle storage area within the building and it is proposed
to impose a condition on any approval to safeguard this provision. It is deemed that the proposal
complies with the requirements of Policies PCYFF 2 and TAI 9 of the LDP.

Transport and access matters

5.21  The proposal includes modifying the existing entrance at the western boundary with the adjacent
class 3 county road, along with providing parking within the site. Six parking spaces will be
provided within the site which would allow one space for each flat and one space for visitors.
Bicycle storage is also planned within the curtilage. It is also noted that a bus stop is located to
the front of the property on the A470. Comments have been received from the Council's
Transport Unit and from the Welsh Government on the proposal and they have no objection to the
proposal. The Welsh Government's Transportation Unit are eager to impose a condition on the
permission that the development should be carried out in accordance with the Construction,
Highways and Environmental Management Plan on any permission. Based on the observations
from highways and considering the residential nature of the proposal, it is deemed that the
application satisfies policies TRA 2 and TRA 4 of the LDP.

Language Matters

5.22  Strategic Policy PS1 (the Welsh language and culture) promotes use of the Welsh language in the
Plan area. This will be achieved by satisfying specific criteria. However, the policy refers to
housing developments that are larger than the indicative residential provision or to developments
for more than five residential units. The proposal does not meet the indicative housing provision

Page 158



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

and it is noted that the existing property already includes a self-contained flat on the first floor.
Therefore, please note that there will be four additional residential units to the site. It is therefore
not necessary to submit a language statement as part of the application.

5.23  However, when such a statement is not required, the applicant is encouraged to present
information about how consideration was given to the Welsh language when drawing up the
proposal. The applicant states that the mix of units has been changed from what was originally
submitted in application C19/1028/03/LL (5 one-bedroom flats) because of the Town Council's
comments. The financial information submitted shows that providing affordable housing would
make the proposal financially unviable. The size and nature of the flats is more likely to be
suitable for young professionals and first time buyers / renters and therefore do not consider that
the proposal would create pressure on local schools. Although the proposal would lead to the loss
of a community facility there is no reasonable prospect of the building returning back to its use as
a public house. Other uses were sought, including an office and detached house but these did not
appear attractive to the market and it is considered to benefit the wider community to see the
building in use rather than sitting empty and attracting anti-social behaviour. The applicant also
notes that he has a strong desire to comply with policy objectives to ensure that Welsh names are
used for the proposal. In consideration of the above, and of setting an appropriate condition for
ensuring the use of the Welsh language in the development it is believed that the proposal
complies with the requirements of Policy PS 1 of the LDP.

Educational matters

5.24  The relevant policy within the context of educational contributions for residential developments is
Policy ISA1 of the LDP. In considering the information in the SPG 'Educational Development'
(which remains relevant) and Policy ISA 1 (Infrastructure Provision), an education contribution
would not be relevant in terms of the one-bedroom units. The SPG states that one-bedroom units
should not be considered in this respect. Information in the Guidance states that in terms of two-
bedroom flats, 0.11 primary school age pupils would derive from this. Please note that the
proposal as amended indicates 3 two-bedroom flats, and it is assumed that 0.33 pupils of school
age would derive from this. It is considered that the change in the mix of bedrooms would not
require any educational contribution and the proposal complies with the requirements of Policy
ISA 1 of the LDP as well as the requirements of the relevant SPG.

Flooding Matters

5.25  The second clause of Policy PS6 supports proposals only when it can be shown with appropriate
evidence that they have given full consideration to specific criteria. It is noted that criterion 4
states that proposals should be located away from areas where there is a flood risk, with the aim
of reducing the general flooding risk within the plan area and areas outside, considering 100 year
flood risk for residential developments and 75 years for other developments, unless it can be
shown clearly that no risk exists or that it is possible to control that risk.

5.26 It should be noted that the site does not fall within flood zone C1 or C2 as shown on the
development advice maps linked with Technical Advice Note 15: Development and Flood Risk.
However, at the request of C19/1028/03/LL local information was received about recent flooding
at the site and the flooding issue was the reason for refusing that application.

5.27  As part of the current application a Flood Consequences Assessment (FCA) was submitted to
assess the flooding issues. The observations of the YGC Water and Environment Unit were
received and they state that they have reviewed the Flooding Consequences Assessment (FCA)
submitted (Betts Hydro, November 2023) and agree that it appears that the flood risk associated
with the proposed development is acceptable. Flood risk mitigation measures must be provided
within the proposed development as described in section 9.2 of the FCA (from page 28). A
condition may be included on any planning permission for the development to be carried out in

Page 159



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

accordance with the FCA submitted. It is considered as a result of imposing such a condition, that
the proposal is acceptable in terms of Policy PS 6 and TAN 15.

Biodiversity

5.28  Observations were received from the Biodiversity Unit on the application. The comments asked
for more information regarding the proposed work to the attic, roof-space or the proposal to re-
roof and noted that a preliminary roosting assessment should be received. In response to these
observations, further information was received. This information stated:-

e There was no work to alter the attic/roof-space or the eaves.

o That the roof had recently been repaired at which time a survey was carried out to see if it
would require any further work and it was discovered that the roof was in good condition.

e It was possible that the two bedrooms in the roof-space would require re-wiring and
central heating system work but the roof nor the roof-space did not require replacing and
therefore there would be no impact on any potential bat roost.

o OQutside what was most likely to happen was to paint the rainwater goods, fascias and
soffits and this would not affect any potential bat roost.

e Due to the nature of the above work, it was considered that a preliminary roost
assessment was unnecessary.

5.29  The Biodiversity Unit was consulted further but no response was received. Given the nature of
the work, the fact that the Biodiversity nit did not conclusively indicate that a preliminary roost
assessment was required and the absence of alterations to the attic, roof-space or re-roofing is not
considered necessary in this case. However, it is considered appropriate to place a note on any
planning permission to be aware that protected species may be present during the carrying out of
the work.

5.30 A Green Strategy Statement was also submitted as part of the application. The Green Strategy
Statement concludes that the proposal avoids any adverse impact on habitats and species, due to
its scale and nature relating to building conversion and therefore very limited changes to the
exterior. However, there are plans to achieve modest net benefits to biodiversity by installing bat
boxes on the building. Plans indicate an intention to install two bat boxes on the building, one on
the south gable-end and one on the rear elevation. The biodiversity improvements proposed are
considered reasonable given the nature of the development in question and a condition may be
placed on the permission to ensure that the biodiversity improvements are implemented.

5.31  The proposal is considered acceptable in terms of Policy AMG 5 in the LDP and Planning Policy
Wales.

Any other matter

5.32  Welsh Water have recommended a no surface water condition for any increase in roof area /
impermeable surfaces to connect to the public sewer. It would not be possible to measure the
additional water and therefore it would not be possible to impose the condition. It is therefore not
reasonable to impose such a condition.

6. Conclusions:

6.1 Having considered this assessment and all the relevant matters, including the local and national

policies and guidance, as well as local objections, it is considered that this proposal is acceptable
and satisfies the requirements of the relevant policies as noted above.

Page 160



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

7. Recommendation:

7.1 To delegate powers to the Senior Planning Manager to approve the application, subject to the
following conditions:

1. 5 years
2. In accordance with the amended plans
3. The external walls of the extension and work undertaken to the external walls to

complement the existing property in terms of colour and texture.

4 Restrict the occupation of the flats to class C3.

5. In accordance with the FCA

6 In accordance with the Building, Highways and Environmental Management Plan

7 Ensure that biodiversity improvements are undertaken in accordance with the Green
Infrastructure Statement and plans prior to the occupation of the flats for the first time.

8. Parking spaces to be completed in accordance with plans and to be operational before the
houses are occupied for the first time.

9. Provision and securing of bin and bicycle storage.

10. Ensure a Welsh name for the development and for the dwellings.

Notes:-

Vigilance of the presence of protected species when undertaking the work
Culvert note

Welsh Government’s Transportation Unit Advice

Welsh Water Advice

SUDS

Page 161



29T obed

Cynl]g___nio

YRION

Site

Wynnes Arms

Project Narme

Location Plan

Scale

1:1250




|
H R
e |hﬂﬂmﬂmﬂrﬂ"

€97 abed

v former beer garden

R N

chapel

EXISTING DRAINAGE PLAN - with site levels

Manod Rogd

|
I |

| existing undergrourd foul water drainage

Cynllunio

This demwing forms partof i
apgicanon only ik by ised 23
‘it information shown i for refarance purposes only. All gmansons

¥ m In

augh
any rsiansy e boation of any beundary shal ba confimed and
agres wih tre adacert awnr il agpicable Mo par il e warks
shellbo consiructed 50 i ¢ afecs & raspass upor: an adacenl
propeety. AR work shaf be canted outin socorndance with the Party
Wil it o 1956, Alwork shal b caried cut I strit sosonfamce.
with tha Britshs Sandun Cades of Pracics, Bulding Corral
Meguirments and spectie mindactuet stucions, s the
gy resgansily 10 ansura that any stuckra desgn it
Trarughly checkad and verfied by a shuctural engiveer

.quE:scEgn

|
' Cuet
MrJ Fatimilehin

]
I‘I
e
| PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE FROMA3TO G3
OF THE FORMER WYNNES ARMS, MANCD
ROAD, BLAENAU FFESTINIOG,
GWYNEDD.
LL41 4AR

!

/
| rainwater culvert lne
]

EXISTING DRAINAGE PLAN -with ste levels

j I

existing inderground surface water drainage

Seale
1:100@ A

[ Ty
APRL 2023

f
D b
1870323

Thini art o cmtruchion ey vt et oriectoe e sy hemsabe o o infrmtion o B aemanc verk D s from i sy




[ |
II Il |
T
—

opyr

9T abed

i - .
Yoht 2017, Supp
g whale oF pert Is prohibited Wi
/T~ i\\

.

e Dt
~_ %% %

a J:e:}&ﬁJﬂfdP
it tﬁp\p\-@
\ >

S
— oy

lied by mapservexsguk

St

/ =
~—_

/

“\
¥ o~
" ~

s
Fronheul 4 |
ronheulog // % o \ |
(|

P
/ / |' [
//”f_f_ﬁ Wymes Arms |

|

{

!

el

Y

/ i - i: ,"i,c T202
' / / _‘ I? ‘| | |
/ T
y — - i
R
/ I|, |
S

/ w

T I

EXISTING SITE PLAN

perpission

Manod Rogg

| |
|
wpnee ol o0sate

)
ice Slrvey ’Ip. i

f Ordnoncel Survey

] | 129

|
—— ] // \ -
A BN
Cae Gy a
—

[
Recreation Ground

10

I
metres

Cynllunio

This, rawng oeme sart of  plannie applcation/huding coniml
appication ory and should nor ba wsed s & consinucion drawing,
¥ lomiaton shown  fo reflrance puposes crly ¥ dmarsins
shaukd be Sroughiy chacked on she prie o commeroement. 11
any inataea the location of any bowrdary shall be pafimed and
‘greed wilh the acfscsint owner | applcable. Na pat of he werks
shiallbe eonsiucied st & aieck 4 espass upen an adcent
prepart, A werk shal b camad out in accoiance wih e Pary
Wil Actof 1906, Allwor s be camiad outin stvif acconfanca
with s Briish Standard Codes of Pracfics, Bulling Covirol

requiements and espective manuacners ignucsans, 11is the
cres rpsporsiiity 12 ansure My strorural desn is

gy checked nd v by a sl engress

ALy

5 ROTSTON AVENLE,
PADDMGTON,
WARRINGTON.
CHESHIRE.

WAL 3

Tel w8 T2
Enat indyBjcesiransty couk
Chenl

Mr J Fatimilghin

abTh

PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE FROM A3TO C3
OF THE FORMER WYNNES ARMS, MANOD
FOAD, BLAENAL FFESTINIOG,

GWYNEDD.
LL41 4AR

T T
EXISTING SITE PLANS

Sk
12008 A
T Dawdy
MARCH 2623 W
kg M £

1830323

This it 0 comparacion il fhe gt e comfrocur e o iy Phareseboes o o ifomation o dimanoes Sefore commanciog werk D gt sccle fro it dromy




G9T abed

Frenheulog

Cynllunio

r —am
| ——
% ) e This deawmg foems: patof a paering apicatontyiting corfrol
GL=211. 78 . plcafon orly and should nol be usee 8 @ ceinucion draming.
. B . | hnormation shaswn s o elerero purposas ank. Al dmersions
o s )52 shoiid te therougiry chodked on e oo ke commercemert bn
= s v
| [ — \I vt e acacent e gk, Mo g o] b wodks
| 1 | st s consinet 3o alecs a s upon o afeet
| | ropeny, Allwork siafl b ciied 0 in acoondance wih the Pary
[ | Wal Actof 1996, Ml s sl b cai ot s oo
" it oSt f Praces B Covtd
recitengels 0 respecie AN nstactions £

|
chiarts rmsponsbilty ¥ eneu's tal am sroned desge by
therwoptey chacked and verfied by 3 sttuctral engines

JTdesign

[ |
consu ncy

S ROYSTON AVENLE.

!
Eral atitbsgomatany cuk

o
o Cheel
Wr J Famighin

]
]
T
PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE FROM A3 TO C3
OF THE FORMER WYNNES ARMS, MANOD

ROAD, BLAENAU FFESTINIOG,
GWYNEDD.
L4t 4AR

| rainwater culvert line
T T
PROPOSED DRANAGE PLAN - wihsta ves

existing underground foul water drainage

existing underground surface water draingy

| | f'
| E)
1100@ A1
T Tl
APAIL 203 AN

PROPOSED DRAINAGE PLAN - with site levels : y
[

i
| / | |
J l [
1880323

I /
Thiif ot ot cromng e e e i cosreer iy e of o o mnd choeason o commarcng ek sk e ot drow




99T abed

EXISTING FLOCR ALANS

o =i
] ﬂ' e
o L i
- ‘ >
lﬂ\
"_ 3 =l
EAISTING BASEWENT FLOOK AN

bedraan £

beireem |

hichen

EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION

Thr At & compsnachien v o he chent o omtrachr e &

EXISTING FIRST FLOOR ALAN

Cynllunio

Derbyn 15.04.24

rctice i dnaraats befre cotmerciy wenk De it 3ase fron the drawiny

EAISTING SECOMDALOOR LN

Th drawing Yo pit of & plarning apoicanenfuidng con
appicaicn ol ane shot e b u5ed 25 s consinecion dising,
fre nlormaon shown & for reference pumosss orly. Al dmensione.
shouidi b2 thorougfty Checked tn e riot 1 commencement. in
any rsiance the location of mry baurdary shal be comimed and
aqvec with the adiacert owogr f sppicebie. No part of e works
shaf b conshuctee s it affcts  irospiss upon an adacert
propery. Al wark shal b carried oul in accordance wih e Pary
Wi et of 1506, A0 wory shal b carmad out in s¥ic accmdanss
with the Biish Standant Codes of Pracsice, Buiding Conrel
PRGBS 2N respuctia man EICUTES TEnuchns B je o
ehani respocsibibly |o enure that ary smucural desqnis
TForoughly chached and verifed by a stuchal angineer

JTdesign

it
M J Fatimilchin

aoTee

PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE FROM A3TOC3
QF THE FORMER WYNNES ARMS, MANGD
ROAD, BLAENAU FFESTINIOG,

GWYNEDD.

LL41 4R

Ty e
EXISTING FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

sae
1100@ At
]
WARCH 2003 i

1323

Crawg arter Fer
181




o

SN

i

| EE

Y

Riiii
il

_ poed riase
T wd

il
il

v o
ndicapog ek by 1500 PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION

Cynllunio
Derbyn 15.04.24

Thr -4 0 comeuction drme) i e cleat o o or ers o ssinfy thamumbves of o infiomoiod and dvnemsiaty Sefery commancn] ok st s frem hi g

‘Tris drawing forms part of & planning appicatantulding contrl
‘apgicaion ony and shoukd 1 be used 25 4 corsTLCHN drawg,
‘e inkormation shown & for refeceros puposes aoly, Alldmensare
i par In
any rsanch B ocafion of any baundary shall ba canfirmed and
agfasd with the adkacent owner f appicible. No part of fe wors
w0 b plecis adpeeni
prcpecty. Al werk ha ks carrie out n dccondance with e Pay
Wi At of 1995, M work stal be carpd out in st accordance
‘withthe Brish Srandard Goots of Pransos, Buiding Conml
TequTemEns and figpeciivg mandaclier bstuctons. Il the
chiets responghiity 1o ensure Fat any sincteal cesign is
‘homughl chesked and vefid by a stuctird engreer

.qugnscEgn

Gt
JOOF HOMES LIMITED

R T

PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE FROM A3T0 C3
OF THE FORMER WYNNES ARMS, MANOD
ROAD, BLAENAL FFESTINIOG,

Ty T
PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

Skt
110@ A
Dae
WARCH 223 W

| eyt A
1820323

/9T abed




.

™ / | | \7‘7—_‘7“'“—___
\ " || f "

rcr num

/ — e S
I "‘\_\_
/ T
|
ce [‘f}
erpission cﬁr" rlwr]éyr“CG

/ ]
St
Jrnuphu\g mapserve.co AA olicensed { "Irck‘m

/ 2017,
oW m\e ar puf E‘prfmbufnl without the D-QOK
I T
f L

'npyr\_ﬂt
T T——
(S -
Cynllunio

.
/

/

/
Fi
/

&
¥

i Tﬁfﬁ‘?‘rfi-f

urvey

tio

== 'a
I ‘ o |
| o
[ \ <
= ——— R
Wynnes Ams | | he
| —
Apﬂﬁmeﬂfs | , C&E CM This drning s pat of & wanring apglcaion'bulting contrel
I| I‘ apgicainn ol showsd ral e uced 25 2 consimucton drawig,
‘ T T ha mormalinshawe i o efrence purposes aly. Al dimensies
= { oz e —— ‘houtd ba amughly thecaed an #le prof 1o commeneement. In
] II = any insance helocaian oy boundary shal e conlimed and
(| f 2 | T gt e aacent o € apicae, No ert of i wors
~f shal b corsucted s that f ffests o buspass unor an adfacent
| | lli__i_i__‘l—— propery, Al wark sl b carid ot m acrance wih e Py
{ Sr— ww.xem :ms:uwgmm?nmma“n m
= it tha B ode of Practic, Buiding Cont
,I -‘é’ { — —_ I'l :mm«Jﬂswmme i m-u;gm Hsthe
‘I =3 II. eeis responsiibty 1o ersene thal any sruckrl desn s
| B I e | — Horaghycheced s vfed by 2 svuckrd gt
[ & | [ [ - =
— ]
' — JTdesign
- ——7-¥—-i_‘_, o consultancy
{ | LY A‘ o
| SROVSTON AVENJE.
| L PADOINGTON,
| 2 &:‘.ﬂ shrubs, max 800mm high Mk,
{ Wkt 3E
-'3D [ hedge/shrubs W g
li
. —4 [ gus =
' = . JOQF HONES LIMITED
[ 1 permeable surfocing
e
| PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE FROM A3TO C3
OF THE FORMER WYNNES ARMS, MANOD
FIOAD, BLAENAU FFESTINIOG,
I ; GWYNEDD.
| Recreation Ground L4 44
|
II‘ ey
' H ‘ ! H H L PROPOSED LANDSCAPING PLAN
| |
f 0 10
_U ! metres
T
@ PROPOSED LANDSCAPING PLAN 120@ Al
[ Ta Ty
«Q WRCH 2023 [
® e bt A
= RS e e i3 3
m Thi of 83t 0 comtuchen crameg onc S chent asd comractar ere %3 sohsfy thesdeined of o farmation ond Amespie before commencing werk Dot sicle From the ey,
(00]



Cynllunio

I"]ODSI?I"VE‘ COK

licernsed Lrd

/" i

|

Sur ey pamtnr
"')r‘ prrmis#ion of Ilﬂr‘“:m

A

Manod Rogd

FROPOSED SITE PLAN

amEﬁF*ﬁH5%43__

nce "?,L,{r vey,

lr__
|
|
r
|
|
r
|
{
|

lhscmlm;mwmmmmmmmu
me n&mm&ns-\ums o elence pumposes oy, Hldnw:'.w
L]

mr&l’."mﬂm dwmdmubemmw
“syeec i e facant v epoicabie Muwofmm
il afagts:

gy A o et o i be Py
Wit At ol 1996, Ml werk shal De camed out n 8t atcomdance
wilh the nkish Standered Codes of Pracioe, Buicing Cantrol
‘Tequraments 2nd especive man:iachurers nabuctons friathe
cherts resporsbify fyenure et ary stohes)desin
thosugly thecked and verfied by & sinuciurd engineer,

JTqESIgII
consu

5 ROYSTON AVENLE,

WARRMGTON

CESHRE

W18

Te GNETTR

Eral @iy s

o1
JOOF HOMES LIMITED

R TiE-

PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE FROM A3 TO.C3
OF THE FORMER WYNNES ARMS, MANOD
ROAD, BLAENAU FFESTINIOG,

GWYNEDD.
LL4t 4R

TRRR TS
PROPOSED SITE PLANS

£
1200@ A
WY

L
MARGH 2023

Dameghte
1840323

ot
Ths 1 gl 2 coisruction drowing ond e cient ond casructor are ¥ sofisty hemsatves of ol iformation md dhmensions befere commenciog ek Do not scale from s drowig

e d) B 21- Bt and e s e

9T abed



















Agenda Item 5.6

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

Number: 6

Application C24/0436/11/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 07/06/2024

Application Full

Type:

Community: Bangor

Ward: Dewi

Proposal: Proposal to erect 10 no. affordable housing and associated

developments

L ocation: Former Ysgol Babanod Coed Mawr, Bangor, LL57 4TW

Summary of the
Recommendation:  To APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 175


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=328747

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

1. Description:

1.1.  This is a full application to erect 10 intermediate affordable dwellings together with associated
work on the dormant site of the former Ysgol Babanod Coed Mawr, located in a residential area
south of Bangor city centre, between Caernarfon Road and Penrhos Road. The application can be
split into several different elements, which include: -

e Providing intermediate affordable housing in the form of 4 two-storey semi-detached
houses with two bedrooms and two terraces of three two-storey, three-bedroom houses,
all with shared equity tenure.

e Provision of off-road parking spaces.

o Creating garden areas, pavements and private curtilages.

o Alterations to existing access and provision of a road and paths for pedestrians within the
site.

e Hard and soft landscaping including planting a variety of trees and shrubs.

o Creating a play area for children.

¢ Installation of a foul water drainage system to serve the dwellings together with a surface
water managing system.

1.2.  This proposal is a re-submission of a development approved on 13/04/2023 under reference
C22/0525/11/LL. The plan had to be adapted to allow changes in the design to respond to
draining requirements and this meant that the layout of the development had changed. As a result,
the applicant had to ask for permission again for the development, as it meant material change
from what has already been approved. However, there is no change in the total of units or the
tenure method for the proposed housing compared to the development that had already been
approved.

1.3.  The current site is dormant and includes remains of the former school building which includes
hard (concrete) and soft (grassland) surfaces. North of the site are the backs of the dwellings on
Ffordd Coed Mawr, to the east are the backs of the dwellings of Toronnen, to the south are the
backs of the dwellings of Lon y Bedw and to the west is the unclassified county highway and the
dwellings of Bron y De. The land slopes downwards from Bron y De in the west to the backs of
the dwellings at Toronnen to the east.

1.4.  The site is located within the Bangor development boundary, as contained in the Anglesey and
Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan, 2017 (LDP) but it has not been allocated for any
specific use. To support the application, the following documents were submitted:

e Planning Support Statement

e Statement on the Need for Housing and Affordable Housing
e Community and Linguistic Statement;
e Design and Access Statement
e Arboriculture Impact Assessment
e Updated Ecological Survey
e Biodiversity Improvement Plan and Green Infrastructure Statement
e Water Conservation Strategy
e Geotechnical Report, Land Permeability and Contamination Audit
e Pre-planning Application Consultation Report (PAC)
1.5. It was confirmed that the applicant had undertaken a pre-application consultation in accordance

with the requirements of Article 1 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Control
Procedure) (Wales) (Amendment) Act 2016, as the proposal is a development that is defined as
major by the Welsh Government (10 dwellings or more).

Page 176



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

2.1

2.2

2.3

Relevant Policies:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of
Planning Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations
include National Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being goals within the Act. This
report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development
principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council has sought to
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.

Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-2026 (LDP) adopted 31 July
2017: -

PS 1 - The Welsh Language and Culture.

PS 2 - Infrastructure and developer contributions.

ISA 1 - Infrastructure provision.

ISA 5 - Provision of open spaces in new housing developments.
TRA 2 - Parking standards.

TRA 4 — Managing transport impacts.

PS 4 - Sustainable transport, development and accessibility.

PS 5 — Sustainable development.

PCYFF 1 - Development boundaries.

PCYFF 2 - Development Criteria.

PCYFF 3 - Design and place shaping.

PCYFF 4 - Design and landscaping.

PCYFF 5 - Carbon management.

PCYFF 6 - Water conservation.

PS 17 - Settlement strategy.

TAI 1 - Housing in the Sub-regional Centre and the Urban Service Centres.
TAI 8 - An appropriate mix of housing.

TAI 15 - Threshold of affordable housing and their distribution.

Page 177



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

AMG 5 - Local biodiversity conservation.

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG)

SPG: Housing Mix.

SPG: Maintaining and Creating Unique and Sustainable Communities.

SPG: Affordable housing.

2.4 National Policies:

Future Wales: The National Plan 2040

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 - February 2024)

Technical Advice Notes (TAN)

TAN 2: Planning and Affordable Housing.

TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning.

TAN 12: Design.

TAN 18: Transport.

TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh Language.

3. Relevant Planning History:

3.1 C22/0525/11/LL: To erect 10 intermediate affordable dwellings and associated works - Approved

05/09/22.

3.2 C21/0125/11/HD: Application for an advance notice for proposed demolition work - Approved

19/03/21.

4, Consultations:
Community/Town Council:

Transportation Unit:

Natural Resources Wales:

Welsh Water:

No response had been received

No objection. Request conditions to ensure that the estate road is
built to the appropriate standard and to receive a building
management plan to ensure appropriate arrangements during the
construction period.

Offer guidelines for the developer.
No objection - advice for the applicant

Observations regarding the need to protect sewerage and water

Page 178



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

system assets and specific guidelines for the applicant
Biodiversity Unit: No response received

Public Protection Unit: Note that construction work could cause noise and dust problems to
nearby residents.
Ask for conditions to manage working hours and ensure a detailed
plan to manage dust, noise and vibration as a result of the
construction work before starting work on the site

North Wales Fire and Rescue No response received

Service

Water and Environment Unit: Due to the size and nature of the development, it is likely that an
application will need to be provided to the SDS Approval Body for
approval before construction work commences.

Housing Strategic Unit: No response received

North Wales Police: No response received

Education Information Officer:  No response received

Language Unit: Express concern that the appropriate current information has not
been included in the linguistic statement

Tai Teg: No response received

Footpaths Unit: No response received

Public Consultation: Notices were posted on site and in the press and nearby residents
were informed. Correspondence was received expressing support to
the plan.

5. Assessment of the material planning considerations:

The principle of the development

51 It is important to remember that planning permission already exists for a development of the same
nature and scale on this site. The only practical difference between the two plans is the change to
the site’s arrangement to facilitate an amended surface water drainage system. It is acknowledged
that it has been necessary to update the supporting information to support the development,
however there is no significant change between the considerations in terms of the principle of this
application and the previous application.

5.2 The principle of constructing houses on this site is based on Policies PCYFF 1, TAI 1, TAI 15,
PS 5, PS 17 and PCYFF 2 of the LDP. Policy PCYFF1 states that proposals will be approved
within development boundaries in accordance with the other policies and proposals in the LDP,
national planning policies and other material planning considerations. As noted above, this site is
located within the development boundary of the Bangor sub-regional centre.

5.3 Bangor is identified as an Urban Service Centre in Policy TAI 1 and this policy supports housing
developments to meet the LDP's Strategy (Policy PS17) through housing designations on suitable
windfall sites within the development boundary based on the indicative provision contained

Page 179



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

within the LDP itself. The indicative housing supply for Bangor over the LDP period amounts to
969 units, which includes a slippage allowance of 10% - 393 on designated sites and 576 on
windfall sites. During the 2011-2024 period, a total of 737 units have been completed in Bangor
(266 on designated sites and 471 on windfall sites). In April 2024, the windfall land bank (i.e.
sites with current planning permission on sites not designated for housing) stood at 296 units,
with further permission for 70 units on sites designated for housing. It is noted that the LDP refers
to an indicative figure of 115 houses on two further sites that have been designated for housing in
Bangor, but have not received planning permission.

5.4 Given the information above, it is noted that the provision in Bangor is met through the sites that
have already been completed together with sites in the land bank. However, as the permission for
10 units exists on this site, this proposal would not add further units to the land bank. As such, it
was not necessary to present further justification with this application based on the fact that
Bangor is already (based on units completed together with units in the land bank) over its
indicative supply level. However, a Statement on the Need for Housing and Affordable Housing
was submitted with the application, noting the following information: -

e The development would offer a provision of 10 two-storey residential dwellings, that
are 100% intermediate affordable on an accessible brownfield land site within the
development boundary, with the tenure of the dwellings in the form of shared equity.

e The development, if approved, would be undertaken by Cyngor Gwynedd via its T¥
Gwynedd campaign to meet the identified gap in this type of provision in the Plan's
area in the Gwynedd Housing Strategy (2019 - 2024).

e The majority of affordable housing currently provided in Bangor are social rental
housing with a lower number being offered on an intermediate discount set on
private developments. This has left a gap for those who require a shared ownership
arrangement. The occupiers of these houses would be able to buy most of the value
of the house (setting a mortgage at a significant discount of the open market value)
with the Council retaining the remaining value.

e Documents such as Supplementary Planning Guidance: Housing Mix (2018);
Gwynedd Local Housing Market Assessment (2018); Gwynedd General Housing
Strategy (2019-2024); Gwynedd Households Projections, Welsh Government (2018)
together with the Tai Teg Register confirms that a need for this type of housing
exists in Gwynedd and, more specifically, in the city of Bangor based on the housing
mix, size of households (with a high percentage of 3, 4 and 5 person households in
Bangor), local need, type of tenure (high number of rented and social housing in
Bangor) and an accessible and sustainable location within the development
boundary.

e To this end, there would be justification, if needed, to go beyond the Bangor
indicative growth level in this case as the plan would meet a specific local need.

55 The proposal would mean providing 100% affordable residential units and Policy TAI 15 states
that as Bangor is situated within the housing price area of the South and North Arfon Coastal
Area in the LDP, it is noted that providing 20% of affordable housing in this area is viable, which
is the equivalent to providing three affordable units in the context of this application. As the
proposal involves providing 100% affordable units, and provided there is a need for this type of
units, the proposal meets the requirements of Policy TAI 15 and TAI 8 in relation to housing mix
in the LDP.

5.6 Policy PS5 states that developments will be supported where it can be demonstrated that they are
consistent with the principles of sustainable development, including reusing sites located in
appropriate locations. In this case, it can be considered that the location of the application is a site
that has previously been developed (brownfield) which is suitable for residential use in an area
including established residential dwellings of high density and is accessible to alternative modes
of travel instead of using a private car.

5.7 Criterion 3 of Policy PCYFF 2 states that proposals should make the best use of land, including a
minimum density of 30 units per hectare in terms of residential developments (unless there are

Page 180



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

local circumstances or restrictions on the site that determine a lower density). In this case is 27.5
living units per hectare proposed and justification was submitted for the low density based on: -

(i) site restrictions (retaining mature trees and safeguarding the main public sewer that
runs across the eastern section of the site); and

(it) provision of public (including a children's play area) and private (gardens of the
prospective occupiers) amenity spaces; and

(iii) provision of surface water drainage features to meet the sustainable drainage
requirements.

Therefore, given this, it is believed that the proposal complies with the requirements of Criterion
3 of Policy PCYFF 2.

5.8 Given all the above information, it is believed that this current application is consistent with the
previous application and the development of ten intermediate affordable housing on this site
continues to be acceptable in principle. Despite this, there is also a need to ensure that the
proposal as amended continues to comply with other relevant policies and these are discussed
below.

Visual amenities

5.9 As referred to above, the site is located within an extensive existing residential area, south of the
city centre, and this proposal is to provide 10 two-storey houses laid out in two rows (four blocks)
on either side of the "cul-de-sac" entrance road within an existing dormant site. The majority of
the nearby dwellings are single-storey dwellings or two-storey semi-detached dwellings. It is
considered that the design and form of the proposed houses reflect traditional designs but with
contemporary elements within the designs. The dwellings will have natural slate roofs, upvc grey-
coloured openings and brickwork walls and it is proposed to install solar panels on the roofs.
Each house will be set in its own private curtilage that will include parking spaces to the side,
open gardens to the side/front along with private gardens at the rear that reflect the pattern and
built form of the nearby area.

5.10  Although the proposal will result in the loss of some of the existing trees on the site, the main
trees which are of a high quality such as oak, cherry and silver birch will be retained, there will
also be a soft landscaping scheme that includes trees, shrubs, privet/hedges and a variety of
wildflowers.

5.11  Considering the above assessment, it is believed that the proposal is acceptable on the grounds of
the impact on visual amenities and it is envisaged that the proposal will ultimately make a
positive contribution to the character of this part of the streetscape. Planning Policy Wales,
Edition 12, as well as TAN 12: Design, supports developments that promote and encourage good
design by providing opportunities for innovative design that meet current and future needs.
Therefore, considering this, it is believed that the proposal is acceptable based on its visual
impact and based on landscaping and that it complies with the requirements of Policies PCYFF 3,
PCYFF 4 and AMG 5 of the LDP.

General and residential amenities

5.12  As referred to above, residential dwellings are located around the application site with their back
gardens abutting the site's boundary. As the land slopes downwards from the west to the east, the
setting of the proposed dwellings will be higher than the setting of those dwellings that are
opposite Toronnen and Coed Mawr. The setting of the houses within the site (along with the
location of the windows/openings) mean that there will be private amenity spaces (in the form of
gardens) between the backs of the proposed dwellings and the backs of the existing dwellings that
surround the application site, which vary from 17m to 22m. Considering the distance that will be
between the houses, setting and orientation of the proposed dwellings in relation to the nearby

Page 181



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

dwellings and the current and proposed trees and shrubs that will be along the site's boundaries, it
is not believed that the proposal, should it be approved, would create oppressive structures and
will not entail overlooking and significant loss of privacy at the expense of the amenities of
nearby occupants.

5.13 The Public Protection Service noted that the site is surrounded by residential houses and the
construction work could cause noise and dust problems to nearby residents. They believe that it is
important, therefore, to impose conditions to protect local residents as the construction work
progresses.

5.14 Ultimately, it is important to remember that this is an urban site in a dense housing area and it is
inevitable that there would be some inter-visibility, noise impacts and general disruption between
housing properties in the area, however it is not believed that this would be unreasonable or
unexpected in such a location, especially considering the previous public use of the site. It is
therefore believed that the development would not cause significant harm to the amenities of local
residents and, therefore, the proposal is acceptable under the requirements of policy PCYFF 2 of
the LDP as it relates to the protection of amenities near development sites.

Transport and access matters

5.15  The proposal would result in changes to the existing entrance from the unclassified county road
and, within the estate, parking spaces will be provided for each house off a new estate road and
will be constructed to the Council's adopted standards. Subject to conditions to ensure the
appropriate standards, the Transportation Unit was satisfied with the arrangement proposed. It is
therefore believed that the proposal complies with the requirements of Policies TRA 2 and TRA 4
of the LDP.

Biodiversity matters

5.16  As part of the application, an Ecological Survey, Biodiversity Improvement Plan (including a
Green Infrastructure Statement) and Arboricultural Impact Assessment from qualified advisers
was submitted. At the time of writing this report, no response had been received to the amended
plans by the Biodiversity Unit. However, considering the rather short period between the time of
considering the previous application and this application, it is not believed that the biodiversity
situation will have changed significantly in the meantime and, from imposing conditions to
ensure that the recommendations of the reports submitted are reached, it is believed that the
proposal would be acceptable based on the requirements of Policy AMG 5 of the LDP.

Sustainability matters

5.17  There are a number of policies within the LDP that promote sustainability in new developments
in Gwynedd. Policy PS 5 refers to the need to re-use previously used land and buildings wherever
possible. Policy PCYFF 5 states that a contribution from renewable or low carbon energy will
need to be demonstrated to satisfy the proposal's need for electricity and heating and Policy
PCYFF 6 states that proposals should incorporate water conservation measures where practicable.

5.18  To support the application, a Water Conservation Statement and a Design and Access Statement
were submitted along with confirmation that the proposed dwellings will be designed to reduce
the energy with extensive insulation and the use of technology and efficient energy fittings e.g.
solar panels on the roofs. The Water Conservation Statement states that the proposal would
include measures to harvest and control surface water. Therefore, considering this, it is believed
that the proposal complies with the requirements of Policies PS 5, PCYFF 5 and PCYFF 6 of the
LDP.

Page 182



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

5.23

Educational Matters

The relevant policy within the context of educational contributions for residential developments is
Policy ISAL of the LDP. The SPG adopted to support the previous Development Plan continues
to be a material consideration when determining planning applications until they are replaced by
new ones. To this end, it is material to consider the contents of SPG: Housing Developments and
Educational Provision together with SPG: Planning Obligations document when discussing this
application. As part of the previous application, the Education Department confirmed that there
was enough capacity in the local schools for the number of children anticipated that would derive
from this development, however this has not been confirmed yet as part of this application. From
receiving the appropriate confirmation, it is believed that the proposal would comply with the
requirements of Policy PS2 of the LDP. An update was given to the Committee on this matter.

Open space matters

According to Policy ISA5 of the LDP, proposals for 10 or more dwellings in areas where existing
open space cannot meet the needs of the proposed housing development should offer suitable
provision of open spaces in accordance with the Fields in Trust benchmark standards. The
information submitted with the application confirms that a provision of 70m? is provided as part
of this development and this more than meets the need for play areas and play equipment for
children within the area, without the need for a financial contribution. Based on this advice,
therefore, it is believed that the proposal complies with the requirements of Policy ISA 5 of the
LDP.

Linguistic matters

As this is a new application, in accordance with criterion (1b) of Policy PS 1 "The Welsh language
and culture' as this development would provide more than the indicative provision for Bangor
(also considering the additional number of houses offered compared with the figure in the Plan),
normally a Welsh Language statement should be submitted with the application. However,
considering that planning permission already exists for a development of the exact same nature
and scale and that this is not an unexpected windfall site, it is not believed that it is necessary to
submit a linguistic assessment in this case as changes in the number of dwellings in the land bank
would not derive from its approval. Nevertheless, a Community and Language Statement was
submitted with this application and the Statement refers to a number of possible mitigation and
improvement steps, including:

Use of Welsh names within the development

Local marketing

Provision of affordable units

Information packages for future residents

Construction step and after construction signs to be bilingual and,
Use of local contractors

Noting the assessment above, the Language Unit raised questions regarding the sources used for
the information as a basis to the document's findings. Acknowledging these concerns, it is noted
that much of the background evidence had been included in other supporting documents, such as
the Housing Needs Assessment, and ultimately, it is believed that sufficient information has been
included with the application to support the findings of the Linguistic Statement and therefore, it
is not reasonable to ask for an amended statement as the evidence is to hand.

Considering the above, and by imposing appropriate conditions to ensure the use of the Welsh
language in the development, it is believed that the proposal complies with the requirements of
Policy PS 1 of the LDP.

Page 183



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

5.24

6.1

7.1

Legislative Change

On 20 October 2022, the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) (Wales) Order
2022 came into force. This Order has made changes in terms of the use classes of residential
units. C3 use class has now been noted as dwelling houses used as a sole or main residence. Two
additional use classes were added, namely C5 and C6. C5 use class is dwelling houses used in a
different manner to a sole or main residence and C6 use class is for short-term lettings no longer
than 31 days for each period of occupation. As this proposal has been assessed against the
expected growth level of Bangor to prepare C3 residential units to address the needs of the local
community in accordance with Policy TAI 8, it is considered that it would be appropriate
therefore to impose a condition that the houses are restricted to C3 class use only, namely
dwellings used as the sole or main residence.

Conclusions:

Having considered the assessment above, it is believed that the proposal, as submitted, would
improve the visual appearance of the site which is currently dormant. Furthermore, it is believed
that the fact that 100% of the proposed residential dwellings would be affordable and respond to
the identified needs of the community, means that this plan would contribute significantly to the
city centre's affordable housing needs. In assessing the current proposal as a whole, no substantial
harmful impact was identified that is contrary to local planning policy and relevant national
advice. As a result, therefore, it is believed that the proposal is acceptable subject to including
relevant conditions.

Recommendation:

To delegate powers to the Senior Planning Manager to approve the application, subject to the
following conditions:

1. Five years.

2. In accordance with the plans/details submitted with the application.

3. Compliance with the landscaping plan along with future maintenance work.

4. Secure a plan/arrangements to provide the affordable units e.g. mix, tenure, occupancy
criteria, timetable and arrangements to ensure that units are affordable now and in
perpetuity.

5. Compliance with the recommendations of the Ecological Survey, Arboricultural Impact

Assessment and the Biodiversity Improvements Plan.

6. Ensure a Welsh name for the development and for the dwellings together with signs that
advertise and promote the development.

7. Working hours limited to 8:00-18:00 Monday to Friday; 08:00-13:00 Saturday and not at
all on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

8. Submission of a Construction Method Statement to the LPA to include measures to
reduce noise, dust and vibration, parking of development operators vehicles,
loading/unloading goods, storage of equipment on the site, security fences, facilities to
wash wheels and a recycling/litter disposal plan.

Page 184



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

10.

11.

12.

13.

Relevant conditions from the Transportation Unit.
Agree on the external materials for the dwellings.
Natural slate roofing.

Ensure timely provision of the play area.

Restrict the occupation of the Dwellings to C3 use.

Notes: Sustainable Drainage System

Welsh Water
Natural Resources Wales

Transportation

Page 185



0gT abed

Saety Health and Environmental information Bo
In addition to the hazardiisks nommally associsted wih the types of work datailed on this drawing take note of the

above. It is assumed that &l works on this drawing will be camied out by & competent confracior working, where
appropriate, 1o an sppeoprista method statament.

Construction Risks Maintenanceicizaning Risks Demuition/acagpiation Risks

04/06/24

DR PR LS8 GAYALED.

Rev  Changs Description Iniisls ~ Date

S £ NN G V' /5 e DESIGN
o BREFEY-DEL ot S 5 4 [~ 46
//_j-/;/'/i]\ i X-\\\< / Former Primary School Site Sy 1) h / > m ARC H ITECTU RE
e 3 Site Area 7 f =
N : 4. 1186m" approx R . . - ’ =

0.4116Ha apprax

M-SParc. Parc Gwyddoniaeth Menai, Gaerwen, Anglesey, LLED BAG

t: 01248 717230 e: officei@wmdesign_co.uk w: www wmdesign.co.uk

Housing Development
Ffordd Coed Mawr

Bangor

Site Location Plan

Gwynedd County Council

project | drawing status | date

SH2006 Planning 2010312024

originator | scale @ A4 | number [ rev
NM .1:1250 . A.00.02 .

This docwment and its design content |s copyright €. It shall be read in conjunction with all other associated project
information including meodels. specifications. schedules and related consutants documents. Do not scale from
documents. All dimensions to be checked on site. y repor any PENCIES, BTORS OF OITESS on this
docement i the Onginator. I in doubt ASK.




1,81 high close boarded fance
with 360mm trellis o1 o

= 1.8m high close Boardad fence

-~ 1200 high post and rai fence

) Ranwster Bul
T WastingLine

D1 Gudiname
Porous paviaurs ke parking Sres

B9 Boxhedge

/ CF L\ RainGaden

S Welsh Waler sewar easement =

/BT abed

s =
Lo kb

e

et S £ 17 a5 S B A, e
B

ADRAN GYNLLUNIO CYNGOR GWYNEDD

[ 04/06/24

o e i )
5 b SRR
o L e T

v =

DESIGN

AND
ARCHITECTURE
LIMITED

R, P Gy M S Aoy | 158 64T

1AM TR0 o B e i . e

HousIng Development
Fordd Coed Mawr

el Faneing b

a1 o it | o8 i = e e s
B A T ST
B R Al e e St St



88T abed

Tt
bty ety

[

7
o
A
i
7

s
5
<7

s
o
Z
Geritd
s
Z

e—

YSGOL COED MAWR

Veqol cued maw, Cosdrans, Hargor LLET 456

Ststio Craens Limited

21 44l Stpet

Haverioeowes:

Pambrkeatin

£481100
hesoslimdicmes.co.uk

+40 (01826 544000 (North Walks)
40 [ITAST 224008 [Pemibsrosashie)

{ S,
B T

e
o e Al 3y ) 3 S e e o
e
T W b ey s e, e
AR
o Bt g e
sty o s AT
i
-
g —
_— ] Em—
B Cumrse. T

L)
Stiwdio Owens Landscape Architecture

i

PLANNING

e

LANDSCAPE GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

664-5T0-H)-00-DR-L-0005 o3

scie [

1:2008A41 GO GLO 20223




e b 1

Pl forer g
i vy s s e

2R 4 ey

04/06/24

ADRAN CYNLLUKID CYNGOR GWYNEED
i
e
el
S
HE
H 3
w w
1 . « e «
b = i
et A& 01 A
1 GF Ground Floor 150 2 GA First Fioor 1:50

W\ S

e S

RTINSt s e e 8.
Housing Development

Plets 1 and 2

Coed Mawr, Bangor

. . Proposed Layout
South Elevation 1.100 4 Wesl Elevation 1400 5 North Elevation 1100 8 Easl Elevation 1:100 s
P —
g g Lo
[ Pansing ssasan
sz womat o -
o van v anor

P e 3 s 3 et 5 e s e e s
T A e =t =

e TR T S




e et
b 1 e iy v e e s s e 0 o i e < 1
T e o g e P sk B gt o Sy e
v e e S e

Comuie M ireie et e

04/06/24

ADRAN CYNLLUNIO CYNGOR GWYNEDD

1 South Elevation 1:100 3 East Elevation 1:100

Roe Chings  Dacorpsm W D

DESIGN
\\\ ARCHITECTURE

M&Farc, Parc Gyddaniants ena, Gasrwen, Anglesey, LLED BAG.

101242 717230 o: oftce gramses gn.co s w; wiem wme3(gn £0.6K
Housing Development

Plots 3, 4 and 5
Coed Mawr, Bangor

2 North Elevation 1:100 4 West Elevation 1:100 Proposed Terrace Elevations
Gwynedd County Counal
smipct araving saiis i
-U sH106 Fianning s34
angnalor sale @ A2 e o
QJ ™ 15100 aszs
o) ) . Bremr et s s s o e

ey
S ST W S T I L Y
S Gy Tt

(Drivamiiai




- s kg im

| |
=y i i ) ‘ ql .
i
B~
23
B
Lounge Lounge B Lounge
Dining Dining a Dining
zamn? sapan S zamm?
3
i
a -]
" I ) e ) frdeniccy
& B : it -
oy - =8t - I
N_1_» : Y
-4 weaher S F—— ;j+:- i o] ;:+:
| | —f | Bt
u i i, i) | e
i I I Kitchen . Kitche i
I Kn.f;:fﬂ I :!_J tatt? L T :!_ i l: =
] 0o 0c oo 3
S 00 I = [S0] =
| T
I 1]
e A o
5, o o i o 0
L) L T1 | ‘i* HB" * 3 r*i’ HB“ o B Chage Deerplon ik Ol
w L Hall i \ I w Il i 1 o
| ! = i Bl ; i DESIGN
wWC a4 a_4] HIWE B | - WwWe
At X B Lt
L] = = e = ARCHITECTURE
- 2000 g i _ |
ooy Cup' \ H ‘Gup'd i Sup'd o MeSPar: o Cipdonkasth M G, Arlessy. LLSG 43
" ! = |1k H e
: pr | : L i Aot i otz
i ! Housing Development
LI ! | e i [ e Plots 3,4and 5
! Coed Mawr, Bangor
! Proposed Terrace GF
Gumedd County Coundl
et CRwogaEha =
s [— e
Erginr @Az == 3
. (™) a2z
e 2 e et T S e S

T6T abed



akusn, § e 48w, o 14 iy b car cuf by & pu COUAS ARG sam

Sripadn & i e b e,

o
amrcisind
e ek
crskees.

[TV

DESIGN
ARCHITECTURE
|

Pimring

[l Az

[Eawngamne

4and§
150

g

WA

el

MSFarc, Pam Gwydoniast Menal, Gasrwan, Anglessy. LLE BAG
Housing Development

Plots 3,

Coed Mawr, Bangor

Proposed Terrace FF

Gy County Coundl

pecject

st vl

01248 T

Home Office/

fggfgg g’%%?fgg fglr%#l

O R S N AN o, B

W ot A

Page 192



sbeovw. | i smsirase ibat l worke: o s g wil b cawiec cu by 3 corspaard mrimcior

Pproprisia D an appmyrist esihed st ant
Corsurter s

n son 5

DESIGN

WA

Chagn

ARCHITECTURE

Bedroom 3

]

hSRarc. Pan Gwyddoniasth Menal Gasrwen, Arglessy, LLEO BAG

Housing Development

Plots 3, 4and 5
Coed Mawr, Bangor

01248 TIEI0 &

Second Floor/Roof Space

Owraad County Coundl

B
20nIRTL

e

originas

1:50

01-Second Floor/Roof Space

150

W

Suchural Engi
0 st ASK

Page 193



Win doubt ASK

v6T abed

South Elevation

North Elevation

1:100

1:100

3 East Elevation

4 West Elevation

1100

1:100

" b w0 o o e
e v it e 1 b e b areed By 3 Somteed e i o
et b e g Saba

o [t —— (e

R Change  Deaipion ba Dae

DESIGN
AND
ARCHITECTURE

M-SParc, Parc Gwyddonianth Menai, Gaerwan, Anglesay. LL6O SAG.

ED124 7 ko we g ek

Housing Development
Plots 6, 7 and 8
Coed Mawr, Bangor

Proposed Terrace Elevations

Guwymedd County Coungl
] drawing saius oals

SH2008 Flanning 280312824
oaginste oale @ A2 e )
Ny 1100 ABZEY

This onuent ang) 1 Besigs COnS 1 copySghL . Il e s 31 ngmcion wis & ofier e ot

e e e

e 4 et T e e o ahe, et e g Secries, i < e o T
Pl



6000 {80 Bricha)

2474 {55n Bricks)

by WD wsign.

955 abed

2 jimn Bicha)

P S PSSO, 1

I
aen e . L m P = I \ PR
]
" 144 N A |, o
P T i i
_______ !
8-
s§
@
Lounge § Lounge Lounge
Dining o Dining Dining
Fre s e 2am?
k-
c'g 1
A i R
---- o e =i iy ] T m i T
H . 1 I
i 1 | ] !
| ! i | i 1
e - o ____: Ervmbint B Erimdiot Bur ! =
Ram T | I T |
r—- i) 1 s - | |
o | H I I ! I
- || L e
(oo 20
b = [8[8] (8] =
| r -
i 1 1
b 1" L g 1
a i)
Hall 7 Hall f = a F—r
1 1
- i Wil () I I | v J|
3 ; i i 1 I . 4
LN vt 1 [N
| 1 i
N . . 1 1
B - ————— pam— | e P R A | R 4 ] =
a ‘i;
Cup'd: =z Cup'd! a Cup'd
[LIEE LU = L

Aamiin s Bricks)

e ¥ et b e Sae o o s e koY & Syt e
g 4 R A g e e

B Chage B

DESIGN
\\\ ARCHITEC

M-SFarc, Pam Gwyddonketh Menal, Gasrwen, Arglessy. LLED 843

EO1MET

Housing Development
Plots 6, 7 and 8
Coed Mawr, Bangor

Proposed Terrace GF

Gunpecd County Coundl

et I £

sHanee 'n-q " avnzeze
g [rter T
T Amn

T ok st 1 i coroet b o8 ikt i oot b b chor 2
e Al S o i e S |t s g PR, R B




Sl i i o k. oo 15 i 218 b ik & s S £

R i P it

ik B

DESIGN
ARCHITECTURE

Pimning
i@ Az
20
waet
£
e
e

[Crawing kb

Bt
MSPare Pam Clusdioniseth Monai, Gasewas, Arplassy, LLE0 UG
Housing Development

Plots 6, 7 and 8
Proposed Terrace FF

‘Coed Mawr, Bangor
Bwynadd County Coundl

e
e i e

EolMET

Home Office/

ST e

e ﬂ;ﬂ!&f/ﬂﬂlﬂfd’ﬂl’ﬁfq4»!!4!!4!!#% e e

S

S N e

Page 196



i ot

Srin bl smairiat e s e £ e ke ol b corkd b by % g ity ARG, s

ppruprsi o e sppren e e
ey

[r———

DESIGN

i
I

Z
-

3
g
!
|
m
|
:
m

-

ARCHITECTURE

Housing Development

Plots 6 7 and 8

£ ON248 7172

Coed Mawr, Bangor
Second Floor/Roof Space

Qs County Counal

P P st

£
| |
T nm-
H
mmmm m
!
!
2 w
|1l Mmm
il
.
2
3
5
3
3
]
!

Page 197



S 4

A

bihen f

ew W

Eo1 A

GF Ground Floor

A cos

1:50

ez

e

we s - by -
g
Bedroom 2 Bedroom 2
phein P
o
g
3 ﬂ[.__m.mm
[
i g ;
L ling H o
bt Bathroom
| i asHPCyl 4
oS4 Cupd
s C ;’}
e ]I - e
Srolll ok
R || W
Bedroom 1 = SieEl Bedroom 1
o) i
s, e S g .

|
|
5
I
|
I

E01

GA First Floor

Mt
T

A cos

North Elevation

4

East Elevation

1:100

South Elevation

1:100 6

West Elevation

1:100

[ [P

DESIGN
\\\ ARCHITECTURE

145, Parc Gvydonoass Mecal. Gaenven. Asgbasy. LG BAS

1248 7172306 oo umcasnco k. e WSS o

Housing Development
Plots 8 and 10
Coed Mawr, Bangor

Proposed Layout

T e 10 o 1 e et st s s sty WM
e

86T obed
















Agenda Item 5.7

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 7

Application C23/0618/39/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 11/08/2023

Application Full

Type:

Community: Llanengan

Ward: Abersoch with Llanengan

Proposal: Full application for the demolition of three existing open

market dwellings and erection of three replacement
dwellings (to be used as holiday units), demolition of
existing storage buildings, erection of 4 new build holiday
units, relocation and replacement of existing static caravan
(for holiday purposes) together with associated works and
landscaping.

L ocation: Fferm Cim, Bwlchtocyn, Gwynedd,

Summary of the
Recommendation: To RerFusE

Page 203


https://gwynedd-planning.tascomi.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=11127

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1. Description:

1.1 Full planning application for the demolition of three dwellings described as existing open market
houses and erection of three replacement dwellings (to be used as holiday units), demolition of
existing storage buildings, erection of 4 new build holiday units, relocation and replacement of
existing static caravan (for holiday purposes) together with associated works and landscaping.
The whole site is 1.97ha in size and situated outside any current development boundary within
the rural area of Bwlchtocyn and within the Llyn AONB and the Llyn and Bardsey Landscape of
Outstanding Historic Interest designations.

1.2 Specifically, the main element of the proposal would provide:

e 3 new four-bedroom houses to replace the existing 3 houses providing a total of 8 bed spaces
each.

e 4 new holiday units to replace the existing storage sheds providing 3 bedrooms each creating
6 bed spaces each.

¢ Relocate an existing holiday caravan to a new location.

1.3 In relation to the appearance of the dwellings and holiday units, the materials intended to be used
on the external elevations of the buildings include:

e Roofs: Natural slate
o Walls: Render/timber/stone cladding

1.4 The application site currently includes a mix in terms of building type as well as use. As has
already been noted, there are three existing houses known as Cim, Cim Canol and Cim Bach on
part of the site. In Planning terms, these three properties are open market residential housing with
no restriction of use as proved by granting an application for a lawful use certificate under
reference C21/0631/39/TC. The current use of all three as confirmed in the application documents
is as holiday units.

1.5 The buildings/sheds to be demolished to construct the 4 new holiday units are within part of a site
that has been granted permission for a lawful use certificate under reference C17/0595/39/TC for
the use of land for the storage of touring caravans.

1.6 Finally, an existing caravan is located on a site close to the buildings/sheds, this structure has also
received a lawful use certificate under reference C21/0632/39/TC for the use of land to locate a
static caravan for holiday use.

1.7 The following information was submitted in support of the application:

Planning, Design and Access Statement

Protected Species Survey

Drainage Statement

Structural Report

A Pre-application Consultation Report (PAC Report)

Design Document

Visual and Landscape Impact Assessment (an update to this document was received as a
result of comments received)

Page 204



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1.8 In accordance with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Development Control
Procedure) (Wales) Order 2012 (as amended), the development that is the subject of this
application is defined as a "major development" due to the size of the area of the proposed
development. In line with the appropriate procedure, a Pre-application Consultation Report was
received as a part of the application. The report shows that the developer advertised the proposal
to the public and statutory consultee before submitting a formal planning application. The report
contains copies of responses received at the time.

1.9 For clarity, there are existing traditional-looking detached outbuildings abutting the south of the
existing buildings/sheds for demolition; these buildings are not part of the current application. In
respect of these buildings, it is seen that permission was granted on 21/07/09 under reference
C04D/0621/39/LL to be converted into 3 holiday units. Evidence was received in the form of a
Building Control invoice and work details from a contractor to confirm that work had
commenced on these buildings and thereby, protecting the permit itself and keeping it 'live'.

2. Relevant Policies:

2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of
Planning Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations
include National Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

2.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being goals within the Act. This
report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development
principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council has sought to
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.

2.3 Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-26, adopted 31 July 2017
PCYFF 1: Development boundaries
PCYFF 2: Development criteria
PCYFF 3: Design and place shaping
PCYFF 4: Design and landscaping
PS 5: Sustainable development
PS 6: Alleviating and adapting to climate impacts
PS 17: Settlement Strategy
PS 14: The visitor economy
TWR 2: Holiday accommodation
PS 14: Sustainable transport, development and accessibility

TRA 2: Parking standards

Page 205



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

2.4

3.1

TRA 4: Managing transport impacts

PS 1: The Welsh Language and Culture

PS 19: Conserve and where appropriate enhance the natural environment
AMG 1: Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty Management Plans

AMG 5: Local biodiversity conservation

PS 20: Preserving and where appropriate enhancing heritage assets

AT 1: Conservation Areas, World Heritage Sites and Registered Historic Landscapes, Parks and
Gardens.

AT 4: Protection of undesignated archaeological sites and installations
Also relevant in this case are the following:

Supplementary Planning Guide (SPG): Replacement Dwellings and Conversions in the
Countryside

SPG: Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities

SPG: Tourist Facilities and Accommodation

National Policies:

Future Wales: The National Plan 2040

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11 — February 2021)

Technical Advice Note 5: Planning and Nature Conservation
Technical Advice Note 6: Planning for sustainable rural communities
Technical Advice Note 12: Design

Technical Advice Note 13: Tourism

Technical Advice Note 20: Planning and the Welsh Language

Relevant Planning History:

Application C21/0631/39/TC — Use of Cim, Cim Canol and Cim Bach as three separate dwelling
houses — Approved 04/03/22.

Application C21/0632/39/TC — Use of land to locate static caravan for holiday use — Approved
03/03/22.

Application C17/0595/39/TC — Application for existing fixed use certificate of land as caravan
storage site — Approved 31/08/17.

Page 206



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Application C04D/0621/39/LL — conversion of buildings into 3 holiday units — Approved
21/07/09

4, Consultations:

Community/Town Council: It was stated that it was felt necessary to treat this application as two
separate applications due to the Lawful Use Certificate granted in
2021 under which Cim, Cim Canol and Cim Bach were used as three
separate dwelling houses and the outbuildings converted into three
holiday units in 2004. As a result, the proposed demolition of the
three houses and the erection of three replacement holiday units will
be supported. However, there is objection to the proposal to create
five new holiday units in the countryside due to significant over-
development. Cim is located in a secluded area at the far end of
Bwlchtocyn at the end of a rural and narrow road in the LIyn AONB.
A huge increase in traffic and congestion is seen on the road during
the holiday season and approving this scheme would drastically add
to this, along with polluting more of the environment. There is a high
percentage of holiday homes in the area as it is, without adding to it
by over-developing Cim. There is a greater need to prioritise housing
for local people.

Transportation Unit: The road currently serves a holiday park and a number of houses. |
do not believe that traffic generated by a net increase of four units is
likely to have a notable impact on the local highway network, on this
basis | confirm that the transport unit has no objection to the
proposal.

Natural Resources Wales: We have concerns regarding the application as submitted because
inadequate information has been provided in support of the proposal.
To overcome these concerns, you should seek further information
from the applicant regarding designated landscape. If this
information is not provided, we would object to this planning
application.

Re-consultation

We continue to have concerns with the application as submitted
because inadequate information has been provided in support of the
proposal. To overcome these concerns, you should seek further
information from the applicant regarding designated landscape. If
this information is not provided, we would object to this planning

Page 207



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

application.

Welsh Water: In our response to the pre-application enquiry, it was noted that it
was unlikely that sufficient capacity exists within the public
sewerage system to accommodate additional discharges from the
proposed development. As such, it has been suggested that either a
sewerage pumping station assessment would be required or the
developer could consider other options.

Since then, discussions have been held with the developer and
although no specific drainage strategy has been submitted, it is
deemed reasonable to include a standard condition to agree on an
appropriate drainage plan for the site.

Public Protection Unit: I note that the site will connect to the Welsh Water sewerage system,
the applicant will have to ensure that permission is received before
development starts.

Demolition work may cause noise and dust problems for nearby
residents. It will be necessary to ensure that dust is controlled during
demolition and that the applicant has measures in place to control
dust if it arises, such as a water bowser.

The applicant should undertake an assessment on the buildings that
are going to be demolished to ensure Asbestos is not present. If
Asbestos is present, an asbestos assessment will have to be carried
out prior to demolition work.

In order to safeguard the area's residents, any demolition and
construction work should be undertaken between the hours of 09.00
and 18.00 Monday to Friday, 09.00 and 13.00 on Saturday and not at
all on Sunday or Bank Holidays.

Due to the proximity of a historic weapons production and storage
site, contamination may affect the land. It is suggested to include a
standard condition in order to carry out a desktop investigation to
assess the feasible pollution risk on site for the proposed
development.

Rights of Way Unit: It does not appear that there are any Rights of Way recorded that will
be affected by this proposal.

AONB Unit: Fferm Cim is located in the rural, coastal area of Bwlchtocyn and in
the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). The area is also
part of the Llyn and Bardsey Island Landscape of Outstanding

Page 208



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Historic Interest. The houses, storage buildings and caravan that are
the subject of the application are fairly prominent on the landscape.
Right of way number 23 Llanengan is nearby and the site is visible
from parts of the National Coast Path.

The three houses in question — namely Cim, Cim Canol and Cim
Bach — are attached together. It was probably originally one
farmhouse but was extended, converted and divided into three living
units. The house(s) is now quite a large building that is lacking in
character and it does not contribute much to the local environment. It
is also noted that the structural condition of the building is quite
poor. Demolition of the existing building would not disrupt the
AONB but any new building (buildings) would need to be of a size,
layout, design and materials that are in keeping with the area and
location. The plans submitted for 3 buildings are of a contemporary
appearance with a lot of glazing on the front and rear elevations.
Although the uses are potentially suitable it does not appear that the
buildings would blend in well with the location in question due to the
design (see Policy TP6 of the AONB Management Plan).

Those referred to as "storage buildings" are old agricultural
buildings. Many of the buildings are unkempt and demolishing them
would be a visual improvement to the area. Again, any buildings that
would be constructed to replace these buildings would need to blend
into the area and location.

There are some aspects of the development that would benefit the
environment such as the cloddiau, hedges and trees that are intended
to be planted. However, priority should be given to native trees,
shrubs and plants.

Biodiversity Unit: Survey findings: There was no trace of bats roosting in any of the
buildings and no bats were seen leaving during the survey. Protected
species or other protected or distinct habitats were not recorded at the
site. Although there was no evidence of bats roosting, there is
potential for buildings to contain external roosting features in
addition to the roof and they may occasionally be used by bats.

It is therefore advised, as noted in the report, that mitigation measures
be taken during demolition works.

There is no potential for roosting bats in the storage buildings and
there was no evidence of presence in any of these buildings while
investigating. They host nesting birds.

The survey concerned protected species only and no other ecological
features such as habitats, reptiles etc. were highlighted. No data
research or overall Biodiversity improvements were shown. The

Page 209



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

development is substantial and involves an area measuring 1.7ha.

There is objection to the proposal until a Biodiversity plan is
submitted with appropriate features to be included such as the
provision of bird nesting habitats.

Land Drainage Unit: Standard response and advice regarding sustainable drainage systems
matters.
Licensing Unit: Standard response and advice relating to the need for a separate

licence and to ensure that the development is in line with the
requirements of legislation relating to caravans.

Archaeological Service: There is a possibility of impact on archaeological remains and an
agreement should be reached, through a condition, on an appropriate
mitigation programme to ensure that archaeological remains are not
lost or destroyed.

Public Consultation: Notices were dispersedly posted on site and nearby sites, an
advertisement was placed in the press and nearby residents were
informed. The advertising period expired and letters / correspondence
were received objecting on the following grounds:

Inadequate local roads network

Excess holiday accommodation

Scale of development/over-development

Setting a precedent

Design not fitting with local character/urban design/too

modern

e Landscape assessment recognises there would be a
significant visual impact from the north

e Will existing caravan storage areas be affected?

e Current use of the site including caravan/storage numbers etc,

not in accordance with permissions/breach of planning

regulation

Permission to convert obsolete traditional buildings

Lack of local infrastructure

Lack of justification for demolition

Prominent and sensitive location/harmful visual impact

An open and elevated location within the AONB and fully

visible from the adjacent public footpath

Page 210



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

51

5.2

5.3

54

Assessment of the material planning considerations:

The principle of the development

In this case, because there are three elements to the application, it is thought reasonable to
consider all three separately to avoid any doubt as to the relevant considerations.

Cim, Cim Canol, Cim Bach — these three properties are two-storey buildings located in the
western part of the site. As has been proven by granting an application for a lawful use certificate,
they are three separate residential houses with no restriction as to their use. The application form
identifies them as open market housing and as the use rights of such buildings currently stand,
there is no restriction on the right to use them as permanent residential dwellings, second homes
or holiday homes to be let within the relevant use class. It is stated that they are intended to be
used as holiday units and information has been submitted and evidence is available, that this is the
current use. In addition, it will be seen from the planning history, and specifically application
C21/0631/39/TC, that comprehensive evidence had been submitted as part of that application
including letters from visitors stating that they had used the units since 1991, extensive records
showing that the units had been installed as separate holiday units, together with the Community
Council's response at the time that the houses were being let to visitors for more than 4 years. The
Legal Unit confirmed that the information submitted confirmed that there was sufficient evidence
that these buildings had been let to visitors for more than 4 years and based on this, the
application was granted.

Therefore, it is reasonable to consider this current application on the basis that the proposal is for
a 'like-for-like' development, which is to demolish 3 existing houses and replace them with 3 new
houses without any change in the use class of the buildings in question, in accordance with the
current situation from the perspective of rights to change within the same use class. Due to the
location of these houses in the open countryside, the relevant policy to consider would therefore
be policy TAI 13.

Policy TAI 13 of the LDP specifically relates to the reconstruction of housing and sets out a series
of criteria that must be complied with (where appropriate) to approve such schemes. The current
proposal will be discussed in the context of criteria attached to the policy:

1. Outside development boundaries...,the existing house has a lawful residential use;

There is no doubt that lawful residential use of the houses remains valid and, therefore, there is no
concern in terms of this criterion.

2. The building is not a listed building;
These existing buildings are not listed buildings.

3. The existing building is of no architectural and/or historical and/or visual special value that
would mean it should be retained;

There are no truly special or unique features to the buildings, they are last century buildings that
have been modified over time and are simple in design and scale and convey these type of
buildings from the period.

4. Outside development boundaries, it is not possible to retain the existing building through
renovation or extension and/or it can be demonstrated that repairing the existing building is not
economically feasible;

Page 211



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

A structural survey was submitted by a qualified company as part of the application which
confirms that the condition of the buildings is poor. It appears from afar that the buildings appear
structurally sound without obvious and significant defects to the condition of the structure and of
course, given that the lettings are currently used as holiday units, the current condition is not so
defective that no use can be made of them. However, it is quite clear on closer inspection that
there are significant defects. It must be recognised that the existing buildings are defective in
terms of insulation to current standards and that reconstructing to higher energy efficient
standards, would ultimately be better. It is therefore not believed that there is value in preserving
the existing building and that sufficient evidence has been submitted to confirm that it would not
be economically feasible to renovate or extend it. The proposal therefore meets the requirements
of criterion 4.

5. Outside development boundaries, the proposed house does not replace a caravan or a holiday
chalet which has lawful residential use;

This part of the proposal does not involve replacing a caravan with a permanent house.

6. Outside the Coastal Change Management Area, a house to be reconstructed should be located
within the same footprint as the existing building unless it can be shown that relocating within the
curtilage reduces its visual impact and its impact on local amenities;

The new housing would be located over the footprint of the existing buildings.

7. Outside development boundaries, the layout and design of the whole new development should
be of a similar scale and size and should not create a visual impact that is significantly greater
than the existing dwelling, so that it can be satisfactorily absorbed or integrated into the
landscape. In exceptional circumstances, a larger dwelling of good design that does not lead to a
substantially greater visual impact than the existing building could be supported;

There would be an increase in the area size of the new houses compared to the existing buildings
but, due to the form and layout of the three proposed houses compared to the current layout, in
terms of form and appearance they would lead to a significantly larger appearance than the
current situation. The proposal, which would be situated in a high and prominent location within
the AONB, would affect the local landscape due to its location on its own. In some
circumstances, larger dwellings of good design could be supported which does not result in a
significantly greater visual impact than the existing building. It is clear that there would be a
significant change from the current situation and it cannot be accepted that the proposed design
and scale is sufficiently mindful of its location and the context of the site. As a result, it is
believed that the proposal as submitted fails to meet the requirements of criterion 7 of the policy
(the visual impact is further elaborated in the report).

8. Areas at risk of flooding — Not applicable
9. Building destroyed by accident — Not applicable

10. The new buildings would be built over the footprint of the existing buildings and, therefore, it
is inevitable that the existing buildings would need to be demolished to realise the proposal.

11. Due to the site's prominent location and setting within the AONB, it is believed that if the
application was acceptable it would be justified to restrict permitted development rights and
therefore meet this criterion.

5.5 Therefore, given the above, the Local Planning Authority is satisfied that the principle of the
proposal is acceptable in terms of demolishing the existing houses and erecting new houses in
their place. However, because of the form and design of the proposed buildings, it fails to meet all

Page 212



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.6

5.7

5.8

the criteria of policy TAI 13, specifically criterion 7, the proposal is therefore unacceptable on the
basis of policy TAI 13 of the LDP.

Demolition of existing storage sheds and construction of 4 new holiday units — the second
element to the application is the proposal to demolish existing storage sheds and replace them
with 4 new detached two-storey holiday units. It can be seen that there are 4 existing sheds on the
site which are approximately 45m away from Cim, Cim Canol and Cim Bach dwellings to the
north-east. They are standard buildings for the type of original use they were intended for, namely
agricultural and storage use. Although they are relatively large in surface area combined, due to
their form and size they are relatively insignificant and are the type of buildings that would be
expected to be seen in a rural setting such as this location.

The agent argues that due to the current size and bedspace available in Cim, Cim Canol
and Cim Bach, there would be no change in the provision of beds offered on site by
combining the number of beds of the three new buildings to replace the three existing
houses as well as the 4 new holiday units, which is 48. We do not agree with this
argument, as 4 completely new holiday units would change the situation on the site and
because the number of beds is not a matter that can be given much weight. The current
arrangements of the three houses mean that there is room for 48 at present; this number
could reduce or increase if internal re-organisation of the buildings is carried out and
there is no guarantee that the 48 are filled with every single booking. Therefore, the
element to build 4 new holiday units must be considered as it stands and, therefore,
consideration will be given to the requirements of the relevant policy which is policy
TWR 2.

Policy TWR 2 permits the development of new permanent serviced or self-serviced holiday
accommodation, or the conversion of existing buildings into such accommodation provided the
development complies with a series of specific criteria.

3i. In the case of accommodation, which is a new build, that the development is located within a
development boundary, or makes use of a suitable previously developed site; - the site is located
outside any current development boundary but is a previously developed site. The use of this part
of the site has been confirmed through permission granted for a lawful certificate
(C17/0595/39/TC) to be used as part of a caravan storage site. The buildings were originally for
agricultural use and over time they have changed to storage use linked to the caravan storage
element. Although it does not appear there is a specific reference to the building in the certificate
application, they have been included within the red line of the area permitted for "the use of land
for storing touring caravans, boats and tractors™ and it can therefore be considered as previously
developed land.

3ii. The scale of the proposed development is appropriate given the site, location and/or dwelling in
question; - It is not believed that the difference between the scale of the site, i.e. the existing
buildings and the proposed is insignificant given the form and appearance of the existing and the
proposed. There would be an obvious difference between the scale and form of what exists now
and what is being proposed. The proposal, therefore, fails to meet the requirements of this criterion.
(the visual impact is discussed further on in the report)

3.iii. That the proposal will not result in a loss of permanent housing stock; - The proposal will not
result in a loss of permanent housing stock.

3. iv. It is not believed that the proposal could cause significant harm to the residential character of
the area as there are no residential houses directly adjacent to the site, the existing houses are

Page 213



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

dispersed and some distance from the location of the proposed development, and therefore the
proposal is not considered contrary to the requirements of criterion iv.

3.v. The development does not lead to an over-concentration of such accommodation in the area; -

Paragraph 6.3.67 of the LDP expands on criterion 'v' of the policy and confirms that there are
concerns about over-provision of self-serviced accommodation in parts of the Plan area, and this
may mean that providers and operators may not receive the income anticipated from what could be
presumed to be a significant investment. Obviously, neither national policy nor this policy intends
for this policy to lead to an excessive concentration of this type of holiday accommodation in a
specific location which could result in businesses failing.

To this end, paragraph 6.3.67 confirms that applicants will need to submit a detailed
business plan to show the robustness of the proposed plan, and this would be a means for
the Council to assess whether the proposal had a realistic hope of being viable. A Business
Plan was not submitted in this case as it is deemed there will be no difference in the
number of beds provided. As already noted, we do not agree with this argument and it
should also be recognised that the number of units is changing and the type of provision is
changing, therefore; this type of information is necessary to explain the background and
vision of the proposal and to ensure there is a market for this type of use (paragraph 6.3.67
of the JLDP). No reference is made to specific figures or evidence regarding the
established business and what is anticipated and there is no comparison with other
established businesses within the area. Consequently, it is not considered that the proposed
development meets with the needs of criterion 'v' of policy TWR2 as there are no details
regarding the current provision in the local area, analysis and examples of the competition,
and an explanation of how the business would compete with them and be able to respond
to a demand that cannot currently be satisfied. Therefore, it is not believed that sufficient
evidence has been submitted, and on this basis, it is not considered that the proposed
development meets with the needs of criterion 'v' of policy TWR 2.

Furthermore, the Supplementary Planning Guidance: Tourist Facilities and Holiday
Accommodation (March 2021) notes that favourable consideration should not be given to
applications for holiday accommodation when 15% or more of the housing stock is in holiday use
(including second homes and dedicated holiday accommodation). In accordance with Council Tax
figures (01/07/24), the figure of second homes and holiday accommodation in the Llanengan
Community Council is 48.1%, therefore the numbers within the Community Council area are
substantially higher than the 15% threshold noted in the SPG.

5.9 In accordance with the guidance included in the SPG, as there are 48.1% second
homes/holiday accommaodation in the Llanengan Community Council area the threshold in
terms of numbers of second homes has been significantly surpassed. Therefore, it is
considered that the proposal does not comply with this element of the relevant SPG or
criterion v of policy TWR 2.

5.10 Relocating a holiday caravan - Policy TWR 3 approves proposals to improve existing static and
chalet sites within the AONB by relocating units from prominent settings to less prominent
locations. The caravan is currently located between existing buildings and although visible from
some directions, the buildings that surround it reduce its visual impact. The proposal involves
relocating the caravan to the eastern side of the site above the row of proposed new holiday units.
The caravan is on a smaller scale than the holiday units and will be screened from the west,
however it is considered that the site is much more open than the current situation and it will not be
in a less prominent location. Therefore it is considered that the proposal is contrary to criterion 3 of
policy TWR 3. Policy TWR 3 also asks for the proposal to be suitable in the context of other
policies in the plan. Given that redeveloping the entire site is not supported, this element is not

approved under policy TWR 3 either. Page 214



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Visual amenities

5.11 The location of the site is prominent within a relatively open area and is entirely visible from the
public footpath which is also part of the nearby Wales Coast Path. The existing buildings of Cim,
Cim Canol and Cim Bach are houses, although now 3 separate units in terms of use and despite
the changes made over the years, which appear as a single farmhouse, especially from a distance,
which can be expected in the countryside. It seems that this was the original use, namely a single
farmhouse. It now gives the impression of a rather large building with no character that does not
contribute to the local environment to any specific extent. Demolishing the existing building
would not be a loss in appearance however, any new building or buildings must be of a size,
layout, design and materials that are in keeping with the area and location.

5.12  The submitted plans show 3 buildings of a contemporary and urban appearance with stand-out
elements of mainly glazing on the front and rear elevations. Although the uses are potentially
suitable it does not appear that the buildings would blend in well with the location due to the
layout, form and design which appear as three new detached houses. It is considered that this
visual impact is significantly different to the existing situation that would cause a harmful visual
impact on the local landscape.

5.13  Similarly, the storage buildings that are to be demolished are considered to be practical and up to
standard for what is deemed to be their original use, namely agriculture. Nevertheless, they do
not make a contribution of significant value to the appearance of the local area and therefore
losing them would be of no concern. However, the proposal for their replacement would change
the appearance significantly and introduce an urban and alien appearance to the site. The 4
holiday units are detached two-storey buildings that are not in keeping and do not reflect
elevations that would be more suitable for a site like this in the countryside, namely a design that
would blend in with what is considered a traditional outbuilding appearance. There is an example
of this nearby with a series of stone buildings that have been granted permission to be converted
to holiday units.

5.14  From the observations received, we see that the AONB unit has some concern about aspects of the
proposal. Nevertheless more comprehensive observations were received from NRW in its role as
a statutory consultee which provides advice on applications that are likely to affect the purposes
of National Parks or Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty.

5.15 Despite the information submitted in the form of a Landscape Visual Impact Assessment, it is
apparent that the situation would change when comparing the existing situation with the proposal.
In response to concerns highlighted by NRW, an update and/or additions have been included in
the landscape assessment and it is argued that the impact especially from broader locations is
likely to be an improvement given the site's existing elevations and the proposed landscape would
be an improvement to the nearby area also. What is also striking from the assessment is that it
recognises that the development would be prominent from the public footpath and by
implementing the development there would be a significant visual change in the landscape
especially when viewing it from the north.

5.16  Due to concerns highlighted in NRW's original observations, additions were made to the visual
assessment. In their response to the latest changes, NRW continues with its concerns due to the
lack of information to support the proposal and therefore has stated that unless it receives further
information it will object to the Planning application. It highlights the defects in the latest

Page 215



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

assessment and suggests where the information could be improved or at least elaborated
especially the sections that are defective in NRW's opinion.

5.17 However, it is obvious there are fundamental concerns about the proposal in its submitted form as
it does not convey the general agricultural character of the site and its context. NRW goes on to
note that the new buildings would have an urban form and character that would not blend into the
rural character and would be visible against the skyline when looking at the site from the nearby
public footpath/coastal path. There would not be a realistic option of reducing or mitigating the
impact by including landscaping measures and this is confirmed within a photomontage that has
been submitted.

5.18 The Local Planning Authority reiterates this opinion and notes that the proposal as submitted is
not considerate enough of the site and the context of its location. The advice in TAN 12 refers to
matters such as external appearance and design noting "this means the aspects of a building or
place within the development which determine the visual impression of the building or place
makes, including external built form of the development, its architecture, materials, decoration,
lighting, colour and texture." It must be borne in mind that the main objective of the AONB
designation is to protect and enhance the natural beauty of the landscape. It is crucial that any
development schemes that affect the AONB or its setting favours safeguarding the area's natural
beauty.

5.19 Itis not believed that the proposal can be approved without entirely reconsidering the layout, form
and design of the buildings and therefore it is not believed that the proposal as submitted is
acceptable and is therefore contrary to the relevant requirements of criterion 7 of policy TAI 13,
criterion 3ii of policy TWR 2, criteria 1, 2 and 3 of policy PCYFF 3 along with section 2.6 of
Technical Advice Note 12: Design which notes that design which is inappropriate in its context,
or which fails to grasp opportunities to enhance the character, quality and function of an area,
should not be accepted, as these have detrimental effects on existing communities. Nor is it
considered that the scheme would protect or enhance the AONB and it is not considered that any
economic benefit resulting from the scheme (which has not been established in the absence of a
business plan) would outweigh the harm to the landscape and is therefore contrary to policy
PS19.

General and residential amenities

5.20  As already noted, the site is not within an established residential area and therefore it is not
believed there would be an apparent harmful impact on local residential amenities. It is
acknowledged that the current use of the main buildings is for holiday units and that the use of an
extensive part of the site is linked to storing caravans and therefore it is believed there is already
an element of disruption in relation to these uses. The proposed application would not change the
situation to a significantly detrimental extent and therefore it is not believed that it would be
contrary to the relevant requirements of PCYFF 2 which relates to this specific consideration.

Transport and access matters

5.21 In their response to the public consultation, the Transportation Unit confirms that it is not of the
opinion that the traffic generated by a net increase of four units is likely to have a notable impact
on the local roads network. That is, the current use is established on the site and there would be a
relatively small increase as a result of the proposal given the proposed use and the existing use.

5.22 It is acknowledged that the area's public roads are narrow and there is pressure in terms of use
during busy times. However, having considered the proposed change in numbers along with the

Page 216



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

observations and the guidance of the Transport Unit, it is not believed that the proposal is entirely
unacceptable on the basis of this element and that it is in accordance with the relevant
requirements of policies PS 14, TRA 2 and TRA 4.

Language Matters

5.23  In accordance with the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, it is a duty when making a decision on a
planning application to consider the Welsh language, where it is relevant to that application. This
is reiterated further in para 3.28 of Planning Policy Wales along with Technical Advice Note 20.
The Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 'Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and
Sustainable Communities' (adopted July 2019), provides further guidance on how it is expected
for Welsh language considerations to be incorporated in each relevant development. It is noted
that there are some specific types of development where it will be required for the proposal to
submit a Welsh Language Statement or a Welsh Language Impact Assessment. The thresholds in
terms of when it is expected to submit a Statement/Report have been highlighted in policy PS1 of
the LDP and Diagram 5 of the SPG.

5.24 1t does not appear that the proposal reaches the threshold where it is mandatory to submit a Welsh
Language Statement, however consideration has been given to the Welsh language when drawing
up the proposal as can be seen in the Planning Statement submitted with the application. It notes
that the development would be run by a local family business which already operates a number of
sites across the area and employs local Welsh speakers. They use local contractors and it is
intended to continue with this in order to protect local jobs and to enable these workers to remain
in their own area.

Biodiversity matters

5.25  No evidence was found of bats roosting in any of the building and no bats were seen leaving the
buildings during the dusk survey. No protected species or notable habitats were seen on the site.
Nevertheless, there is potential for such buildings to be used and therefore should the application
be acceptable in all other aspects, it would be reasonable to include a condition to ensure that the
recommendations of the ecological report are followed and that suitable improvements are
submitted and agreed.

5.26  As the competent authority under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as
amended), Cyngor Gwynedd, before deciding to give consent for a project which is likely to have
a significant effect on a Special Area of Conservation (SAC), either alone or in combination with
other plans or projects, make an appropriate assessment of the implications of the project for that
site in view of its conservation objectives and that those proposals will not lead to a detrimental
impact on the SAC.

5.27  The Biodiversity Unit confirms that the development would not lead to the loss of habitats related
to the Special Area of Conservations (SAC) or other protected areas nor would it affect the
species related to these sites. It is therefore accepted that the proposal is acceptable and in
accordance with the relevant requirements of Policies PS 19 and AMG 5.

Archaeological Matters

5.28 It can be seen from the Archaeology Service's response there is potential for archaeological
features on the land. The Archaeological Service suggests including standard conditions to carry

Page 217



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.29

5.30

out a further inspection of the site. It is believed that including standard conditions to ensure that
the appropriate inspection is held is entirely reasonable in this case, and therefore, it is believed
that the relevant requirements of policies PS 20 and AT 4 are met.

Response to the public consultation

It is acknowledged that objections have been received to this proposal and it is considered that all
relevant planning matters have been given appropriate consideration as part of the above
assessment. A decision is made based on a full consideration of all the material planning
considerations including the relevant observations received during the public consultation and
that no one was let down when considering this application.

Any other considerations

It is believed that the site's specific form and layout must be considered in the context of
development and seek a proposal that is uniquely tailored to the site rather than a standard
proposal. No rationale has been submitted to sufficiently discuss why this proposal is the best for
the site, for instance, it is not known whether any other options were considered before arriving at
this final plan.

5.31 Also, although it is not a statutory requirement, no pre-application enquiry was submitted to obtain

6.1

7.1

the opinion of the Planning Authority about the proposal; there would have been an opportunity
to discuss concerns before submitting an application if an enquiry had been made. TAN 12 notes
that "a multi-disciplined collaborative approach and a shared ambition for quality are important
in delivering good design and should be evident at each stage of the design process. This is best
achieved by ensuring the continuous involvement of professionals providing expert advice such
as: planners; architects.....and others. Engaging those who procure, promote and finance
development early on in the process is essential to assist a shared commitment to design
guality....Local planning authorities should also help applicants and potential applicants to
respond effectively to the planning and design process, through an advisory as well as a
regulatory role....."

Conclusions:

Having considered the above and all the relevant planning matters including local and national
policies and guidance, as well as the observations received and the additional information
submitted by the agent, it is believed that this proposal is unacceptable in the form submitted, as it
fails to satisfy the requirements of the relevant policies and guidance as noted above.

Recommendation:

To refuse the application for the following reasons:

It is not considered that the design of the proposal, in terms of layout, scale and appearance adds
to enhancing the character and appearance of the site context neither does if fully integrate within
the context of the adjacent rural area nor its prominent location in the landscape. It also fails to
protect and improve the natural beauty of the landscape of outstanding natural beauty. The
proposal is, therefore, contrary to the requirements of criterion 7 of policy TAI 13, criterion 3ii of
policy TWR 2, criteria 1, 2 and 3 of policy PCYFF 3 and policy PS 19 of the Anglesey and
Gwynedd Local Development Plan, 2018 along with relevant advice provided in section 2.6 of
Technical Advice Note 12: Design, which notes that design which is inappropriate in its context,
or which fails to grasp opportunities to enhance the character, quality and function of an area,
should not be accepted, as these have detrimental effects on existing communities.

Page 218



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/07/2024

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

2. The element of the proposal to construct 4 new holiday units on this site as part of this proposal is

considered unacceptable as there is an excess of this type of accommodation in the local area and
no Business Plan was submitted to support the proposal. Specifically, no information/evidence
was provided regarding the current provision of this type of accommodation within the local area,
no detailed analysis of the local market is given nor a strategy showing how the development
would compete with established enterprises. A high number of holiday accommodation or a
concentration of holiday accommodation in a specific area can have a detrimental impact on the
social fabric of those communities with the Supplementary Planning Guidance: Tourism
accommodation and facilities clearly stating that favourable consideration should not be given to
applications for holiday accommodation if 15% or more of the housing stock is in use for holiday
purposes. Current figures note that there are 48.1% of second homes and Holiday units within the
Llanengan Community Council area (01/07/24), it is therefore considered that the proposal is
contrary to the requirements of criteria 3v of Policy TWR 2 of the Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint
Local Development Plan 2011-2026 and the requirements of the Supplementary Planning
Guidance: Tourism Accommaodation and Facilities (2021).

It is considered that the proposal to relocate the static holiday caravan is contrary to policy TWR
3 as it will not be located in a less prominent location.

Page 219



0zz abed

19,790.02 m? \

| NV

P ———
L [ 72.1m

Cim

AR

S BN

Pryerere

H e -
o i 4 s s st
[

M Gl Dmcwes [

DESIGN
\\\\ ARCHITECTURE

EorzE Ty

Cim Farm Project - Cim House
Bwichtocyn,
Aberscoch, Gwynedd

Site OS Plan

Escamert Sand & Grve! I

freied o st =

mum Fratminary sz

rginaer = | =3

™ (=) o081

e ey v
hrmton beiaiy oo rat i misl oo e, D5 14 s fom

s, A drearacn . 4 e o . Feretal et ey Sacmparcies, e ¢ Sriasion 2 Ha
ommmact s m Crghst [Tkt RS




i O et S

GRAvEL

G Do —

DESIGN
\\\\ ARCHITECTURE

76.58 \SPare, Par Gurrisem e, Gasruen, Angieze) LLSD §AG

T

£ BT TI7I0 - cfce mcesin co.k . e co ok

Cim Farm Project - Cim House
Bwichtocyn,
+ Aberscoch, Gwynedd

Topo Survey

byt

T2c obed



S 5 e e, e e ey 4
3 + om0 o+ i e s e ok by v
Ne o e
5
Revised

fence line

Coastal Path

bt " Cim

e G Poseton

DESIGN
\\\\ ARCHITECTURE

-GPa, Par Suygtst Menst Saenwen, Angiesey, LLETEAG

£ 01348 717220 = ofizeamdesign. o2k w: wwwmdesgn <ok

Cim Farm Project - Cim House
Bwlichtocyn,
Aberscoch, Gwynedd

site Layout Plan 1-3
5 [ y—
(= LT O
e retmnary sz
1 ite Layout Plan 1950 iz T L L
- 20 aaom
TSy e




+ s - < 5 \
% £ + 67.3% i, .
3 “ es.oe £
S . 4 e + +
+ + 7012 N, + eses ¥ B .‘ “
= N \ =
\\ -+ b h
N + y + X, P N
+ - e %,
< 0
%
+ \ s +
i . “ = +
Revised + - 2 < e
+  fence line %——'*—‘l—/¥“1lm+ 4__\\ S
+ 70.82  rencyline S — + b
+i’_/ -+ + 3}\ Lt e + )r,_,(&

" +
ety __J:::_;—f

e G Brncpden

DES\GN
\\\ ARCHITECTURE

NS, Par: Gayeconiast Mo, Gieen Anisey, LLEQGAG

B LT T ——

Cim Farm Project - Cim House
Bwichtocyn,
Aberscoch, Gwynedd

Site Layout Plan 2.3

Sieamece-Sanc 8 et
= i -2

e ey avema

= [T [reesr T wv

] e Ty

T o ko e 3 kvt e o s e

o s ot v b st iy oo
T S T e s s o o - EnmiEnmaaanE




vz abed

-

ea.31

+

6360

Site Layout Plan

:“m‘ et s s e g

crnsban.

g Dwsgton - o

DESIGN

AND
ARCHITECTURE
LIMITED

A, Par Gurese Mens, Gosmen Angesey L6055

£07328 717230 £ omce gaecesn. o waudesgn .1k

Cim Farm Project - Cim House
Bwichtocyn,
Aberscoch, Gwynedd

Site Layout Plan 3.3
[ ——

" oo T

Trginer ] EE13-L I =

- v
)



wn

1 Froni Elevation 1100

a Sicle 2 Elavation 1100 3 Sicte Elaviation

2 Fiear Bevation. 100

GZg abed

DESIGN
\\\\ ARCHITECTURE
i o s s o sy 4 [
B —

Gim Farm Project - Gim House

Buichtocyn,
Aberscoch, Gwynedd

Existing Elevations




9ce abed

H

-

Cim Bach \ Cim Canol
; 1
| 04/08/23
I DERBYN - Cynllunio Cyngor Gwynedd
l =4
|
umas I weas
(= I ot
|
|
|
|
o | ) I ! [} |
C _I_.
- |
I —
|
|
[
I nscria
|
. |
| I / - - (/
-~
7 |
] r I
- L ' - |
o4 '— - - i
I | -
- | -
: 5 g ,
= £ 1 ¢
Ay i P .
|
Cim Farm Project - Cim House
Bwichtocyn,
Aberscoch, Gwynedd
Cim Existing Ground Floor
GF-Ground Fioor 150

i




e

oo+

T ]~

g

I.'-_

i

A

—_—————————

e

prn—

01-First Floce

=

axcrou

I Cim

|
I
e —

/zc abed

o =
et T R T et 2

B o Omrsn

DESIGN
\\\\ ARCHITECTURE

8. Oy o, G, et 18440 CIAT
LAHINTITIE S i st . v s

Gim Farm Project - Cim House

Bwichtocyn,

Aberscach, Gwynedd

Existing First Floor




vt i
ety tine

1 Front Elevation 1:100

gl sy alns

2 Fear Ervation 12100

Pt ik e

ool oty e,

Mt Tt e I S0080 PV B ek
s

Nt oty Lo ki s Comet stost e

Extienal walls ooy suited 200 o sing 1 ot
s s g

Vo timaron

Bomes & wintaws 1457 T
5P WA A4ERTE. BT,

o - W s V) o s

ksl Side 01 Elevation. 1100 4 Side 02 Flevation

8¢e¢ abed

1100

[ —— [rer

DESIGN
\\\\ ARCHITECTURE

S o G e G ara, S 1S5 B4

L ETMETITIE & leabmmtesion ok, ma mridess ik

Cim Farm Project - Cim House
Bwichtocyn,
Abersoch, Gwynedd

Proposed Elevations - Cim House




’hwn.."
Shower
Uty
mq..,:-

- @
Hain g
Stairg

Living Arey

Cim Bach

Dashed red lines
indicate the original
property autline

z¢ obed

@—._

Dining arg,

um

Steam Room /
Sauna
Dining Area
o Boom |
saund piving Ared
Planl Room
Uility Kitchen &
Breakiast Area
we Snower
wtchen &
iy Wlﬂl
Hall &
Stairs
H
We
Living Area
Wall &
" stalrs.
‘.,
Gim Canol

Dashed red lines .
indicate the original 4 U Living Are?
property outline

pram Room

04/08/23

DERBYN - Cynllunio Cyngor Gwynedd

VG TN b A 100 w50
Cim Farm Project - Cim House
Bwichtocyn,

Abersoch, Gwynedd

Proposed Ground Floor Plan - Cim House




0gg abed

Batcany
Bediraom oy
Bedroan, gy
E-s,,bl
Bathragg,
Badrogm g
Landing
” Dressing Room

ity

Bedroom gy

Baleany

Cim Bach

Dashed red lines
indicate the original
property outline

brr=i=4

Bedroom 01

04/08/23

DERBYN - Cynilunio Cyngor Gwynedd

Baicony
Bedroom 02
o Balcony
T En-Suita
i ” petronm
: sodroom 02
Bearsomos y ensune
:
] ‘Bathroom
Dressing Room
e getroom 03
En-Suite
‘Bedroom 04 Landing
{ressing R00™
B ¥ ' _ M O Dmembn s e
' k= searoon 04 DESIGN
' 7 \\\\ ARCHITECTURE
Cim Canol Dashed red lines v z . VEES st racin E—— -
indicate the criginal : - — e -
property outling ; : ] Cim Farm Project - Cim House
Bwlehtocyn,
Absrsoch, Gwynodd
Proposed First Floor Plan - Cim House
Cim




A

R
T j' |
sa e e

i




04/08/23

b et i o g kbt U g ki s o e
i iy 28 e o] v 1 3 (vogeess oAt ) s

DERBYN - Cynilunio £y ngor Gwynedd

V¥V Eo2

y =

E01 A

Plan Shed 4 1:100

How  Ghenge  Boseasan el - Dk

LV P DESIGN
R AN \\\\ ARCHITECTURE

M<SPars, Parc Geyddanian Menal. Goorwen, Angiesey, L) 6AG

£ 01248 717230 & office @wmoesign co.uk v, waw wmdesign.co, ik

Cim Farm Project - Agri Sheds
Blwchtocyn
Abersoch, Gwynedd

Existing Floor Plan and Elevations - Shed 4

Eflesmare Sand & Gravel L

Froeet [arawng st [t

sHig7s Prafiminary 1182023

et ] T ramoer T
Am 1100, 1:5.60 A0z:03

il ) s s bnkl ek
. cheduden vt relaied oty decrseni. Cu ot vt bt
w1 ity i vy S niain, 1riem 17 cemsedien <ot

okt 2.1 shal b o 1 oo




cee abed

a3y

SHED 3

e

£00 A

e
>
2 SHED 1
sl
L 'Y
ﬁ en'yW
I + I‘
SHED 2

24

s

et D Do

DESIGN
\\ \ ARCHITECTURE

et e e R ()
Lo rm.w ST,
Cim Farm Project - Agri Sheds

Blwchtocyn
Abersoch, Gwynedd

Existing Floor Plans Sheds 1to 3

= ey s [
e Portrerery R
e [rE ==




04/08/23

DERBYN - Cymilunia Cyngar Guynodd

Cottage 01

S 4

™

Coftage 01

o Bedroom 01
ressing Room
rSuite
sing Room

Rear 01 Elevation
1:100

East 01 Elevation
1100

 Dressing Roon

En-Sulfe.

s
Snug Lowge 7
5 Z
\\
L ‘Entrance Hall
[ (] Plant i . .
\\
- : /
o i
E b
2
ity
B
w
] 5
Open Plan Kitchen, Dining & Living
= i
a0 ¥
fan GF-Ground Floer ]
S/ ; o

=

yez abed

01-First Floor
1:50

B West 01 Elevation
1:1

== ey

[HE——

Pl - s e g vt oV b s

e GO v AR i et i T

o et 5

ST —
e kg s e

T W G i 2

Do & mirelonn.- ke, citoorence de o fe T
e v, e Gy

oG - ek i Vs o oot

r—

e Shen Dt —

DESIGN
\\\\ ARCHITECTURE

st diredis oo 7T
D T o e g S

o T
o T i e 1 by 1 e e e

Gim Farm Project - Holiday Cottages
Bwichtocyn,
Abersoch, Gwynedd

Proposed Cottage 01




| 04/08/23

DERBYN - Cynilunlo Cynger Guynedd

Cottage

Open Plan Kitchen, Dining & Living

iy GF-Ground Floor
- 1:50

0

o SR R S R

i e bty e i P i ik ] o ey i o B
i g s

[EEre—

oot - Nl slfm o wih composte LV e a3
i

Pt g - | rebis i dnser Coeki ek tan

0100 B S g 3 L
pee

e, et st Wi e P

ey Tt e e

D00 8 windiswra . i potoamance Al o o Tt
Comeese Wi st M gy

Foofghs | Uskan o ek Wit o B 5 o mese

LRy — -

DESIGN
\\ ARCHITECTURE

P Pare oot e Gcowan, Mepeses LLBORAG

B T T e——

Cim Farm Project - Holiday Cottages
Bwichtocyn,
Abersoch, Gwynedd

Proposed Cottage 02

e e e g b g ey
i e s




View representative of VP4: View from public footpath looking south

Cim Holiday Cottages, Bwichtocyn

Figure 08
Viewpoint Photographs

o

QD viewpoint Number; 04
Lense Focal Length: 50mm
Direction: South

w
(®))



Visualisation representative of VP4: View from public footpath looking south

Cim Holiday Cottages, Bwichtocyn

Figure 08
Viewpoint Photographs

o

QD viewpoint Number; 04
Lense Focal Length: 50mm
Direction: South

w
~



View representative of VP11 : View from Wales Coast Path looking South

Cim holiday Cottages,Bwichtocyn

Figure 15

_UViewpoint Photographs
g Viewpoint Number: 11

(D Lense Focal Length: 50mm
NoDirection: south

w
co



Visualisation representative of VP11 : View from Wales Coast Path looking South

Cim holiday Cottages,Bwichtocyn

Figure 15

_UViewpoint Photographs
g Viewpoint Number: 11

(D Lense Focal Length: 50mm
NoDirection: south

w
O






/

Uﬂ“
:if].im
i










	Agenda
	4. MINUTES
	5.1 Application No C24/0011/30/AM Bodernabwy, Aberdaron, Pwllheli, Gwynedd, LL53 8BH
	Plans

	5.2 Application No C24/0083/18/LL Cartref Nyrsio Penisarwaun, Penisarwaun, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 3DB
	Plans

	5.3 Application No C23/0556/19/LL Land At Cae Stanley, Bontnewydd, LL55 2UH
	Plans

	5.4 Application No C24/0331/41/LL Tŷ'n Lôn, Afonwen, Pwllheli, Gwynedd, LL53 6TX
	Plans

	5.5 Application No C24/0289/03/LL Wynnes Arms Hotel, Ffordd Manod, Manod, Blaenau Ffestiniog, Gwynedd, LL41 4AR
	Plans

	5.6 Application No C24/0436/11/LL Former Ysgol Babanod Coed Mawr, Bangor, LL57 4TW
	Plans

	5.7 Application No C23/0618/39/LL Fferm Cim, Bwlchtocyn, Gwynedd
	Plans


